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Our Fellow Shareholders

As we look back on the past year we reflect on a set of market conditions which offered great challenges.
The communications market continued to decline as it remains beset with overcapacity. 
The commercial market remained flat as capital equipment expenditures in the U.S. and Europe
demonstrated little growth. The single bright spot this past year was the government market as military and
homeland security expenditures for equipment grew slightly. During this era of market malaise we focused
on returning the company to profitability and improving the company’s prospects for the future. We have
our costs under control, we are developing new products, and we are aggressively pursuing new business.
Despite these weak economic conditions, SBS generated positive cash flow while continuing to invest
heavily in business development and R&D activities that will generate the growth of our business.

For fiscal year 2003, total company sales were $115.5 million, a 3% decrease from $118.9 million for the
prior fiscal year. Commercial and Government Group sales increased 10% and Communications and
Enterprise Group sales declined 31%. The financial results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, include
a transitional impairment charge of $6.1 million, net of tax, or ($0.41) per common share – assuming
dilution, for the cumulative effect of the change in accounting for goodwill, resulting from our adoption of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (SFAS 142). For the fiscal year ending June 30,
2003, income before the transitional impairment charge was $1.6 million, or $0.11 per common share –
assuming dilution. After the transitional impairment charge, we incurred a net loss for the twelve-months
ended June 30, 2003 of ($4.4) million, or ($0.30) per common share – assuming dilution. For the prior
fiscal year we reported a net loss of ($24.4) million, or ($1.67) per common share – assuming dilution. The
total cash balance at the end of the year was $37.1 million compared to $24.8 million at the end of fiscal
2002, and we remain debt free.

By the end of fiscal year 2003 we had returned the company to a profitable position by focusing on
eliminating excess capacity and reducing overhead costs. At the same time we continued to invest in our
future. We have added new technology by acquiring Avvida Systems Inc. - a manufacturer of FPGA-based
imaging solutions for commercial, military and communications applications. We also developed new
products based on the Infiniband® architecture and released 24 new products in fiscal year 2003.

In April, we announced a change in senior management. Clarence W. Peckham was promoted to CEO and
Christopher J. Amenson was elected Executive Chairman while retaining his role as Chairman of the Board.
SBS has always been a leader in corporate governance as six of our eight board members are independent
and membership on all board committees is limited to independent directors. With the separation of the
role of CEO and Chairman of the Board we continue to strengthen our corporate governance.

Going forward we will be managing and reporting the operations of SBS in two geographic groups - the
Americas and Europe. As part of this organization change we have also consolidated all of our
Communications and Enterprise group activities into Mansfield, Massachusetts and have closed our
Carlsbad, California operation. An additional result is that we have consolidated our U.S.-based
manufacturing operations into one location in St. Paul, Minnesota. 

continued on next page



For fiscal year 2004 there are some signs of economic recovery, which we see in our lead generation and
quoting activity; however, the timing and scale of the effects on our business of these early indicators are
unpredictable at this time. It is our belief that the communications and commercial markets have bottomed and
that the government market will continue to offer opportunities for new systems and applications. However,
should the U.S. defense budget be reduced, or programs delayed, in response to growth in the federal budget
deficit, it will likely affect procurement spending. We will continue to invest in a strong business development
team and in a focused research and development program so that we can grow market share. We believe that
our product portfolio is competitive, and that we will benefit from new opportunities in the government market
which should contribute to total company sales growth in fiscal year 2004.

We want to thank our dedicated employees who have worked hard in the past year and are focused on
returning SBS to its legacy of profitable growth. Also, we would like to thank all of our shareholders, customers
and vendors who partner with us as we expand SBS. We remain committed to building shareholder value by
managing the business cost effectively toward growth and profitability while continuing to invest in new
technology and product development that will solve more of our customers’ needs. We believe we have a solid
future, and we sincerely appreciate your continued support.

Sincerely yours,

Clarence Peckham Christopher J. Amenson
Chief Executive Officer Executive Chairman

SBS Acquires Key Technology for Continued Growth

In June, SBS completed its acquisition of the Canadian company, Avvida Systems. Avvida specialized in
developing imaging solutions for commercial, military and communications applications using Field
Programmable Gate Arrays. FPGA Computing provides system-on-a-chip functionality that can compete
with multiple processors in high performance computing applications. This technology is complementary
with many products within SBS’ existing product portfolio creating new solutions for image processing and
DSP applications. Avvida’s innovative approach to data processing and FPGA development expertise
combined with SBS’ extensive product line are a powerful combination. Ronald E. Strauss, Vice President of
SBS Canada and co-founder of Avvida, said, “We are excited about the opportunity to complement SBS’
embedded computing products with our own. SBS is an established supplier to the embedded computer
market, and we share a common commitment to providing world class, high performance computing
solutions to our customers. With the additional sales, marketing and engineering resources of SBS, we
expect to expand our market position in all of SBS’ markets.”

“The acquisition of Avvida is a critical initiative in our strategy to provide a full range of innovative embedded computing
solutions to the government, commercial, and communications markets.”

— Clarence Peckham



ViaSat

In a recent project, ViaSat, Inc. developed hardware and software for an airborne communications application. SBS
engineers worked closely with ViaSat to not only identify the right embedded products for their system, but also to
customize a board never developed before to meet the precise performance requirements of the application. Because of SBS’ expertise with
ruggedization and conduction cooling for the military and aviation industries, these embedded boards for ViaSat’s airborne units were easily
built to meet shock, vibration and temperature standards generally required of such environments. SBS was able to draw from its broad product
portfolio to meet ViaSat’s embedded board needs. When the project was complete, SBS was the provider of a CompactPCI processor board, an
intelligent 18-port Ethernet switch, and an Ethernet PMC for packet routing.

Intuitive Surgical

Intuitive Surgical, Inc., a pioneer of robotic surgery, selected SBS to provide the processors and I/O that are used to help digitize,
packetize and send signals between the console and robotic instruments in its prototype Zeus® Telesurgery System. Using the Zeus® Telesurgery
system, the movements of a surgeon’s hand, wrist and fingers can be translated from the Zeus console, over a distance of nearly 400 kilometers
with a delay of no longer than 150 milliseconds, to control the robotic surgical instruments and camera positioned in a patient’s abdomen. Over
the two-year relationship SBS has ensured that the custom chassis and third-party cPCI hardware worked together with SBS processor boards 
and I/O modules.

Orbital Sciences Corporation

SBS Technologies supported Orbital Sciences Corporation by providing the flight computer which performs flight control,
guidance and sequencing in a recent missile program under development by Orbital. SBS worked closely with Orbital to design and build this
flight computer to meet the requirements of the missile program. The complete system was a combination of SBS standard products as well as
derivatives of standard products designed specifically for this program.

“When designing any of our computer aided medical products, we look for the highest quality sources of components. SBS
Technologies provided us a reliable turnkey solution for our cPCI computer needs and is one of the few companies to meet our
stringent requirements. SBS products have been used without issue in human surgery since September of 2001.”

— Moji Ghodoussi, PhD, Director, Telemedicine & Telerobotic Programs

“SBS engineers worked as an extension of ViaSat’s engineering capacity to successfully develop a truly unique, customized solution 
and to provide technical support throughout the integration process. When necessary, SBS engineers went back to the drawing 
board and provided product revisions and upgrades. The engineering partnership continues today as the application is modified 
and customer demand grows.”

— John Hoffman, Mobile Broadband Business Area Director

“It was very clear to us that our success was important to SBS. This was demonstrated through the attention we received throughout the design process 
and the support SBS provided to ensure everything went smoothly during our test and validation process.”

— Rich Fahrner, Senior Vice President of GMD Boost Vehicle Program, Orbital Sciences Corporation

Building Loyalty Through Customer Successes



  

 
2400 Louisiana Blvd. NE 

AFC Building 5, Suite 600 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87110 

Tel. (505) 875-0600 
 
 

PROXY STATEMENT AND NOTICE OF 
ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 

To Be Held on November 13, 2003 
 
Dear Shareholders: 
 

You are cordially invited to attend the SBS Technologies, Inc. 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which 
will be held on Thursday, November 13, 2003, at 9:30 a.m. Eastern Standard Time, at the Massachusetts Institute of 
Technology Faculty Club, 50 Memorial Drive, 6th Floor, Cambridge, Massachusetts, 02139.  The purpose of the 
meeting is to act on the following: 

 
(1) To elect eight Directors;  
 
(2) To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as principal independent auditors for the fiscal year ended  

June 30, 2004; 
 
(3) To approve an amendment to the 1993 Directors and Officers Stock Option Plan; and 
 
(4) To transact any other business as may properly come before the meeting. 

 
If you were a shareholder of record at the close of business on September 24, 2003, you may vote by proxy or 

in person at the Annual Meeting. Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, please 
complete, date, and sign the enclosed proxy card, and mail it in the enclosed business reply envelope. For your 
convenience, you may also vote your shares via telephone or Internet according to the instructions on the proxy 
card.  If you vote your proxy over the telephone or Internet, please do not mail in your completed proxy card. If you 
are a registered shareholder and wish to vote your shares in person at the meeting, you may do so even if you have 
previously returned your proxy card. However, if you hold your shares in Street Name and wish to vote your shares 
in person at the meeting, you must indicate that on your proxy card as instructed and return it before the meeting in 
the envelope provided. 

 
 

Bruce E. Castle 
Secretary 

 
 
October 6, 2003 
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PROXY STATEMENT FOR SBS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
2003 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 

 
INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING 
 
Why Did You Send Me This Proxy Statement? 
 

We sent you this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card because the Board of Directors of SBS 
Technologies, Inc. (“SBS,” the “Company” or “we”) is asking you to vote for three items or, if you prefer, asking 
your permission to allow us to vote your shares at the 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Annual Meeting 
will be held on November 13, 2003 at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology Faculty Club, 50 Memorial Drive, 
6th Floor, Cambridge, Massachusetts, 02139, at 9:30 a.m. Eastern Standard Time. This proxy statement includes 
information about the issues to be voted upon at the meeting, and on the transaction of such other business as may 
properly come before the meeting. 

 
On October 6, 2003, we began mailing these proxy materials to all shareholders of record at the close of 

business on September 24, 2003. On September 2, 2003, there were 15,009,498 shares of SBS Common Stock 
outstanding and entitled to vote. 

 
In accordance with New Mexico law, a list of shareholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be 

available on November 13, 2003 at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology Faculty Club, 50 Memorial Drive, 6th 
Floor, Cambridge, Massachusetts, 02139 and for 10 days before the meeting, between the hours 8:30 a.m. and 5:30 
p.m., at SBS’ Corporate Headquarters, 2400 Louisiana Blvd. NE, AFC Building 5, Suite 600, Albuquerque, New 
Mexico, 87110. 

 
How Many Votes Do I Have? 

 
If you were a shareholder at the close of business on September 24, 2003, you will be entitled to vote. Each 

share of SBS Common Stock that you own entitles you to one vote. 
 

How Can I Vote My Shares? 
 
You can vote on matters presented at the Annual Meeting by proxy in three ways or in person: 
 
(a) By Proxy — If you are a shareholder of record, you may vote your proxy by mail, telephone or the 

Internet. Telephone and Internet voting procedures are designed to authenticate shareholders by using individual 
control numbers. Voting by telephone or Internet will help SBS reduce costs. 

 
Voting Your Proxy by Telephone 

 
In the U.S. and Canada, you can vote your shares by telephone by calling the toll-free telephone number 

on your proxy card. Telephone voting is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, until 11:00 a.m. Central 
Standard Time on November 12, 2003. Easy-to-follow voice prompts allow you to vote your shares and 
confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded. If you vote by telephone, you do not need to 
return your proxy card. 
 
Voting Your Proxy by Internet 
 

You can also choose to vote over the Internet.  The web site address for Internet voting is on your proxy 
card. Internet voting is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, until 12:00 p.m. Central Standard Time on 
November 12, 2003. If you vote over the Internet, you do not need to return your proxy card. Please note that 
if you vote over the Internet, you may incur costs such as telecommunication and Internet connection charges 
associated with normal Internet usage. 
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Voting Your Proxy by Mail 
 

If you choose to vote by mail, simply mark your proxy card, date and sign it, and return it as instructed 
on the proxy card in the postage paid envelope provided. 

 
If you vote by proxy using any of these three methods, the persons named on the card (your “proxies”) 

will vote your shares in the manner you indicate. You may specify whether your shares should be voted for 
all, some, or none of the nominees for Director, whether your shares should be voted for or against the 
ratification of the appointment of the principal independent auditors for fiscal year 2004 and whether your 
shares should be voted for or against the approval of the amendment to the 1993 Directors and Officers Stock 
Option Plan. If you vote by telephone or Internet and choose to vote with the recommendation of SBS’ Board 
of Directors, or if you vote by mail, sign your proxy card, and do not indicate specific choices, your shares 
will be voted: 

 
 “FOR” the election of all eight nominees for Director; 

 “FOR” ratification of the appointment of the principal independent auditors for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2004; and 

 “FOR” approval of the amendment to the 1993 Directors and Officers Stock Option Plan. 
 
If a nominee becomes unable to serve as Director, which we do not anticipate, your proxies intend to 

vote for the election of a substitute nominee recommended by the Board of Directors. 
 
If any other matter is presented, your proxies will vote in accordance with the best judgment of 

management. At the time this proxy went to press, we knew of no matters that needed to be acted on at the 
Annual Meeting other than those discussed in this proxy statement. 

 
If you wish to give a proxy to someone other than the persons named on the enclosed proxy card, you 

may strike out the names appearing on the card and write in the name of any other adult person, sign the 
proxy, and deliver it to the person whose name has been substituted. 
 
(b) In Person — If you are a shareholder of record, you may cast your vote in person at the Annual Meeting. 

If you hold your shares in Street Name, please see the section below entitled “If I Hold Shares In Street Name, How 
Can I Vote My Shares?” for information on how to vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting. 

 
If I Hold Shares In Street Name, How Can I Vote My Shares? 

 
You can submit voting instructions to your broker or nominee. Please refer to the voting instruction card 

included in the materials provided by your broker or nominee. 
 

May I Revoke My Proxy? 
 
If you give a proxy, you may revoke it at any time before it is exercised. You may revoke your proxy in any 

one of three ways: 
 

 send another proxy with a later date,  

 notify SBS’ Secretary in writing to arrive at SBS’ Corporate Headquarters, 2400 Louisiana Blvd. NE, 
AFC Building 5, Suite 600, Albuquerque, New Mexico, 87110, before the date of the Annual Meeting 
that you have revoked your proxy, or 

 vote in person at the Annual Meeting.  
 
How Can I Present An Issue To Be Addressed At Next Year’s Annual Meeting? 
 

Shareholders must submit proposals, intended to be considered at the next Annual Meeting, in writing to the 
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Secretary of SBS, no later than June 5, 2004, for inclusion in SBS’ Proxy Statement and Form of Proxy relating to 
the meeting. Also, shareholders who wish to propose proper business from the floor, for consideration at the 2004 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and who have not properly submitted that proposal for possible inclusion in SBS’ 
2004 proxy materials, must notify SBS’ Secretary in writing no later than August 22, 2004. 

 
What Are the Costs Of Soliciting These Proxies? 

 
SBS is paying all expenses to prepare, print, and mail this proxy material. We will also pay the cost of 

soliciting the proxies, if necessary. We will reimburse banks, brokerage firms, and other custodians, nominees, and 
fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred in forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners and obtaining their 
instructions. We do not expect the expenses to exceed $5,000. 

 
How Are The Proxy Statements And Ballot Forms Distributed To Shareholders? 

 
We have engaged our transfer agent, Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A., to assist in the distribution and 

tabulation of proxies. A few employees of SBS may also participate, without additional compensation, in the 
solicitation of proxies by telephone, facsimile, e-mail, and personally. 

 
What Vote Is Required To Approve Each Proposal? 
 
Proxy Item No. 1 
Election of Directors: 
 

 
Each Director who receives a “FOR” vote by a majority of shares 
represented in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting will be 
elected. If you vote to withhold authority to vote for all listed nominees 
or if you vote to withhold authority for a particular nominee, your vote 
will count as a vote “AGAINST” the nominee(s). Otherwise, your vote 
will count “FOR” the nominee(s). 
 

Proxy Item No. 2 
Ratification of Appointment 
of Independent Auditors: 
 

 
A “FOR” vote by a majority of the shares represented in person or by 
proxy at the Annual Meeting is required to ratify the appointment of 
KPMG LLP as the principal independent auditors for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2004. If you “ABSTAIN” from voting, your abstention 
has the same effect as if you voted “AGAINST” the proposal. 
 

Proxy Item No. 3 
Approval of Amendment to 1993 
Director and Officer Stock Option 
Plan: 
 

 
A “FOR” vote by a majority of the shares represented in person or by 
proxy at the Annual Meeting is required to approve the amendment to 
the 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan. If you “ABSTAIN” 
from voting, your abstention has the same effect as if you voted 
“AGAINST” the proposal. 
 

 
Please note the following:  

 
Shares not voted by brokers and other entities holding shares on behalf of beneficial owners will not be 

counted in calculating voting results on those matters for which the broker or other entity has not voted. 
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OWNERSHIP OF SBS COMMON STOCK 
 
How Much Stock Do Shareholders Who Have More Than 5% of Common Stock Own? 

 
The following table sets forth, as of June 30, 2003, the beneficial ownership of Common Stock by each 

person who is known by SBS to own beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock: 
 

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner 
 Amount and Nature of 

Beneficial Ownership (1) 
Percent of Class 

Beneficially Owned (2) 

Fidelity Management and Research (3) 1,684,016 11.23% 
Alliance Capital Management L.P. (4) 1,062,566 7.09% 
Putnam Investment Management, L.L.C. (5) 1,022,995 6.82% 
Kern Capital Management LLC (6)  970,500 6.47% 
Kennedy Capital Management, Inc. (7) 937,614 6.26% 
Barclays Global Investors, N.A. (8) 823,167 5.49% 
Dimensional Fund Advisors, Inc. (9) 813,366 5.43% 

__________ 
 
(1) The ownership information disclosed above is based on a Schedule 13F report dated June 30, 2003 filed with 

the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
(2) To SBS’ knowledge, except where otherwise noted, each person listed has sole voting power of the shares. 
(3) The address for the shareholder is in care of Fidelity Management and Research, One Federal Street, Boston, 

Massachusetts 02110-2003. 
(4) The address for the shareholder is in care of Alliance Capital Management L.P., 1345 Avenue of the Americas, 

39th Floor, New York, New York 10105-0096. 
(5) The address for the shareholder is in care of Putnam Investment Management, L.L.C. One Post Office Square, 

Boston, Massachusetts 02109. 
(6) The address for the shareholder is in care of Kern Capital Management, LLC, 114 West 47th Street, Suite 1926, 

New York, New York, 10036-1510. 
(7) The address for the shareholder is in care of Kennedy Capital Management, Inc., 10829 Olive Boulevard, St. 

Louis, Missouri, 63141-7739. 
(8) The address for the shareholder is in care of Barclays Global Investors, N.A., 45 Fremont Street, San 

Francisco, California, 94105-2228. 
(9) The address for the shareholder is in care of Dimensional Fund Advisors, Inc., 1299 Ocean Avenue, 11th Floor, 

Santa Monica, California, 90401-1005. 
 
How Much Stock Do The Directors And Named Executive Officers Own? 

 
The following table sets forth, as of September 2, 2003, the beneficial ownership of Common Stock by each 

Director and nominee for Director of SBS, each Named Executive Officer, and by all Directors and Named 
Executive Officers as a group (see footnotes for explanations): 

 

Name of Beneficial Owner 
Amount and Nature of 

Beneficial Ownership (1) 
Percent of Class 

Beneficially Owned (6) 

Christopher J. Amenson (7) (nominee)* ..............  384,474 (3,5,8)     2.56% 

Warren W. Andrews (nominee)* .........................  71,150 (5)  (2) 

Lawrence A. Bennigson (nominee)* ....................  90,750 (4,5)  (2) 

Bruce E. Castle (7) ............................................... 10,423 (3,5)  (2) 

James E. Dixon, Jr. (7) .........................................  156,957 (3,5,9)     1.05% 
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Name of Beneficial Owner (Continued) 
Amount and Nature of 

Beneficial Ownership (1) 
Percent of Class 

Beneficially Owned (6) 

Peter D. Fenner (nominee)* .................................  23,122 (4,5)  (2) 

Louis C. Golm (nominee)*...................................  45,296 (4,5)  (2) 

David H. Greig (7) ...............................................  196,000 (5)     1.31% 

Clarence W. Peckham (nominee)* (7) .................  106,943 (3,5)  (2) 

Richard Szafranski (nominee)* ............................ —  (4)  (2) 

Alan F. White (nominee)*....................................  38,153 (5)  (2) 
All the Directors and Officers as a group ............. 1,123,268  7.48% 

__________ 
 

*  Director as of September 2, 2003.  

On September 2, 2003, there were 15,009,498 shares of SBS Common Stock outstanding. 

The address for each of these shareholders is in care of SBS at 2400 Louisiana Blvd. NE, AFC Building 5, 
Suite 600, Albuquerque, NM 87110. 

(1) A person is deemed to be the owner of securities that can be acquired by that person within 60 days of the date 
of the table upon exercise of options. Each beneficial owner’s percentage ownership is determined by 
assuming that options that are held by that person and that are exercisable within 60 days of the date of this 
table have been exercised. 

(2) Owns less than one percent of total outstanding stock.  
(3) Includes Common Stock owned by this person through the SBS Technologies, Inc. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan 

(“401(k) Plan”): Christopher J. Amenson 4,442 shares; Bruce E. Castle 423 shares; James E. Dixon, Jr. 1,839 
shares; and Clarence W. Peckham 443 shares. 

(4) Mr. Bennigson, Mr. Fenner, Mr. Golm and Mr. Szafranski elected to receive shares of SBS Common Stock in 
lieu of cash compensation for the 2002-2003 term. Upon completion of their current year term on  
November 12, 2003, Mr. Bennigson, Mr. Fenner, and Mr. Golm will each receive 3,319 shares, and Mr. 
Szafranski will receive 1,319 shares. 

(5) Includes, as to the person listed, options to purchase shares of Common Stock exercisable as of September 2, 
2003 and for 60 days thereafter, under SBS’ stock option plans: Christopher J. Amenson 270,000 options, 
Warren W. Andrews 60,000 options, Lawrence A. Bennigson 60,000 options, Bruce E. Castle 5,000 options, 
James E. Dixon, Jr. 154,500 options, Peter D. Fenner 20,000 options, Louis C. Golm 40,000 options,  
David H. Greig 196,000 options, Clarence W. Peckham 106,500 options, and Alan F. White 30,000 options. 

(6) To SBS’ knowledge, except where otherwise noted, each person has sole voting and investment power as to 
the shares. 

(7) Is a Named Executive Officer. 
(8) Includes 1,000 shares owned indirectly by his spouse and 2,000 shares owned indirectly by his minor children. 
(9) Includes 618 shares owned indirectly which are held in spouse’s SBS 401(k) account. 

SBS knows of no arrangements concerning anyone’s ownership of stock, which may, at a subsequent date, 
result in a change in control of SBS. 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Would You Please Describe The Structure Of The Board Of Directors? 
 
SBS’ Bylaws provide for a Board of Directors composed of a minimum of one but not more than nine 

directors, all of whom are elected annually. Annually, the Board of Directors determines the number of nominees to 
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be recommended to the Shareholders for election to the Board. For the annual term ending November 13, 2003, six 
(6) Directors were elected on November 14, 2002.  All of these Directors are expected to fulfill their terms.  
Vacancies in the Board occurring during a term are filled by persons appointed by a majority of the remaining Board 
members. A Director appointed to fill a vacancy, or a new Directorship created by an increase in the size of the 
Board, serves for the remainder of the term.  On January 10, 2003, the Board of Directors appointed Richard 
Szafranski as a new Director.  On April 17, 2003, the Board of Directors appointed Clarence W. Peckham as a new 
Director. 

 
The Board of Directors held nine regular and special meetings during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003.  No 

incumbent Director attended less than 75% of the total of the Board meetings and meetings of Committees on which 
he served. 

 
At the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, eight Directors will be elected by the holders of Common Stock to 

hold office until the Annual Meeting of Shareholders in 2004, and until their successors are elected, or until their 
death, resignation, or removal. 

 
At the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors, the Board elects a Chairman of the Board and a Lead 

Director, who must be an independent Director, to preside over meetings of the independent Directors. 
 
The following persons have consented to be nominated and, if elected, to serve as Directors of SBS. 
 

Nominees for The Board of Directors 

Christopher J. Amenson, 53, became a Director in August 1992.  Mr. Amenson served as Chairman of the 
Board from May 1997 to November 2001 and from April 2002 to present. Mr. Amenson was appointed Executive 
Chairman on April 17, 2003. Mr. Amenson served as President of SBS from April 1992 through March 2001 and 
Chief Executive Officer of SBS from October 1996 through March 2001, when he retired to pursue faith-based 
ministry, and from April 2002 to April 2003. From April 1992 to October 1996, Mr. Amenson was Chief Operating 
Officer of SBS. For five years before joining SBS, Mr. Amenson was President of Industrial Analytics, Inc., a 
Boston-based firm engaged in consulting in support of operations, mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Amenson also 
serves on the Board of Directors of Rainbow House International, the Board of the Technical-Vocational Institute 
Foundation, the Board of Directors of PointCross, Inc., and the Board of Directors of Best Choice Educational 
Services, Inc.  Mr. Amenson serves as the Director of Development for the Care Net Pregnancy Center of 
Albuquerque, New Mexico.  Mr. Amenson holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Government from the University of Notre 
Dame and a Master of Science in Management from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (“MIT”) as a Sloan 
Fellow.  

Warren W. Andrews, 59, became a Director in November 1996. Mr. Andrews is a market and technology 
analyst, and is publisher and editorial director of two monthly magazines, RTC Magazine and COTS Journal. The 
former is the leading publication in the open-systems, embedded-computer industry, and the latter covers embedded 
computers in the military. He serves on the Advisory Board of BitMICRO Networks, and the Board of Directors of 
Accolade Semiconductor. The former is a manufacturer of solid-state storage devices and the latter a fabless 
semiconductor company specializing in PCI Express. From 1987 to 1994, Mr. Andrews served as a senior editor for 
Computer Design Magazine while, at the same time, publishing his own newsletter, Embedded Computer Trends. 
Before that he was managing editor of Electronic Design Magazine and semiconductor editor for Electronic 
Engineering Times. Previously, he owned and operated his own business, providing electronic design services and 
developing, manufacturing and selling microprocessor-based switching systems for a variety of audio and video 
applications. In addition, he holds one U.S. patent and has designed other products for the cable TV, security 
systems, education and communications markets. Mr. Andrews holds a Bachelor of Science Degree from Fairleigh 
Dickinson University.  

Lawrence A. Bennigson, Ph.D., 65, became a Director in November 1995 and serves as Lead Director. Dr. 
Bennigson has provided consulting services on corporate, business and manufacturing strategy and related 
organizational issues to major corporations and to governments in the U.S. and Europe since 1965. In 1998, he was 
appointed a Senior Fellow of the Harvard Business School’s Executive Development Center and in 2001 he was 
appointed Senior Vice President and Senior Fellow of Harvard Business School Interactive. Dr. Bennigson serves on 
several advisory boards, including Central Maine Power Corp and Toffler Associates, the strategic advisory firm 
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founded by Alvin and Heidi Toffler. As Senior Vice President and a Managing Partner of the former MAC Group, 
Inc., Dr. Bennigson helped to lead the strategic development of the firm, resulting in its 1991 acquisition and merger 
to become Gemini Consulting. Dr. Bennigson taught executives and graduate students as a faculty member of the 
School of Engineering, Stanford University, the Harvard University Graduate School of Business, and as a visiting 
faculty member at the London Business School and the Graduate School of Business, Lund University, Sweden. 
Before his academic and consulting career, Dr. Bennigson served for six years as a U.S. Naval Officer. Dr. 
Bennigson holds a Bachelor’s Degree in General Engineering from UCLA, as well as Master’s and Doctorate 
Degrees in Industrial Engineering (with specialization in Human Factors Engineering and Industrial Organization) 
from Stanford University. 

Peter D. Fenner, 67, became a Director in November 2000. On January 1, 2001, Mr. Fenner retired after 5 
years as President and CEO of Com21, Inc. (Nasdaq:CMTO), a start-up Broadband Access company which, during 
that time, grew from 45 employees and zero revenue to over 400 associates and $200 million in sales. Before joining 
Com21, Mr. Fenner was, for over 30 years, with AT&T, where he held numerous sales, marketing, product 
planning, and senior management positions. From 1989 to 1992, Mr. Fenner was President and a corporate officer of 
AT&T Network Systems’ Transmission Business, a $3 billion unit with 10,000 employees. In this position, he was 
instrumental in the quality efforts that resulted in winning the Malcolm Baldridge Award. Before that, Mr. Fenner 
was Vice President of Product Planning for AT&T’s entire $12 billion Network Systems Division, with operations 
that included Transmission Systems, Switching, Cellular, Cable & Wire, and Operations Support (Software). Mr. 
Fenner is also on the Board of Directors of BitMICRO Networks, a company producing solid state storage devices, 
and ActiveStrategy, a pioneer in software designed to manage the process of “Strategy Execution.” Mr. Fenner holds 
a Bachelor of Science Degree in Industrial Engineering from Lehigh University and a Master of Science in 
Management from MIT as a Sloan Fellow. 

Louis C. Golm, 61, became a Director in November 1999. Mr. Golm is an independent consultant and senior 
advisor to the telecommunications and information management industries. Until 1999, he served as President of 
AirTouch International, the international division of AirTouch Communications - a wireless communications 
business. Vodafone Group Plc merged with AirTouch in 1999 to form Vodafone AirTouch, the world’s largest 
wireless communications company. Mr. Golm joined AirTouch in 1997 from AT&T, where he was President and 
CEO of AT&T-Japan. He was elected to this position in 1994 and was instrumental in successfully growing this $2 
billion business. The businesses he led in Japan are now organized as the subsidiaries of AT&T, Lucent 
Technologies, Inc. and NCR Corporation. Before his assignment in Japan, Mr. Golm held a series of senior 
management positions at AT&T. From 1991 to 1994, he headed AT&T’s business sales force with revenues 
exceeding $17 billion and an employee force in excess of 10,000 people. He started his career with AT&T in 1964. 
Mr. Golm serves on the boards of Quanta Services, Inc. and Global Intermodal Systems, Inc. He was a founder and 
also serves as a senior adviser to the CEO, of Kirusa, Inc., a high technology start-up company. Further, he is a 
Director of the Japan Society of Northern California. Mr. Golm graduated from the University of Denver in 1963 
and earned an MBA from the same university in 1964. He graduated with a Master of Science in Management from 
MIT in 1980 as a Sloan Fellow. 

Clarence W. Peckham, 54, was appointed a Director and Chief Executive Officer on April 17, 2003. Prior to 
that, Mr. Peckham was appointed Executive Vice President of SBS in February 2002, and served as President of 
SBS’ Commercial and Government Group. In February 2001, Mr. Peckham was appointed President of SBS’ 
Government Group and for the period 1997 to 2001, Mr. Peckham was President of SBS’ wholly owned subsidiary, 
SBS Technologies, Inc., Embedded Computers in Raleigh, North Carolina. Before joining SBS in 1997, Mr. 
Peckham was Vice President of Engineering and Chief Technologist at DY4 Systems in Canada, a leading supplier 
of military computer systems. Mr. Peckham has over 30 years’ experience in the embedded computing field. Mr. 
Peckham holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering from Northeastern University. 

Richard Szafranski, 55, was appointed a Director on January 10, 2003.  Mr. Szafranski is the managing 
director of and a partner in Toffler Associates. Toffler Associates is the strategic planning and business advisory 
firm created by Alvin and Heidi Toffler which helps organizations create their future by capitalizing on the 
opportunities that transition to a knowledge-based economy and organizational forms present. His portfolio includes 
working with CEOs, COOs, and senior executives in global aerospace, manufacturing, telecommunications, 
associations, the US intelligence community, and other US and non-US Government agencies.  Mr. Szafranski 
retired from active service in the United States Air Force as a colonel in July 1996. In his last assignment, he was the 
National Military Strategy Chair at the Air War College, Maxwell AFB, Alabama and the study director for Air 
Force 2025, an inquiry into the capabilities required for air, space, and information power in the next century. While 
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serving, Colonel Szafranski’s duties included staff positions in the headquarters of Strategic Air Command, United 
States Space Command, North American Aerospace Defense Command, and Air Force Space Command. He 
commanded B-52 units at the squadron and wing level, including assignment as commander of the 7th Bomb Wing, 
Carswell AFB, Texas, from 1991 to 1993. He was also the base commander of Peterson AFB, Colorado. Colonel 
Szafranski was designated a Joint Specialty Officer in 1989. He is a member of the International Institute of 
Strategic Studies and a recipient of the US Air Force Association National Medal of Merit. His military decorations 
included the Defense Superior Service Medal and the Legion of Merit with oak leaf cluster. Mr. Szafranski is a 
multi-engine, instrument-rated jet pilot and instructor pilot with 3,000 flying hours. He serves on the Board of 
Reviewers for the Aerospace Power Journal, the professional Journal of the United States Air Force. Mr. Szafranski 
is a graduate of Air Command and Staff College and was the top graduate of his Air War College class. He holds a 
BA from Florida State University and an MA from Central Michigan University.  

Alan F. White, 65, became a Director in November 1997. Mr. White is Senior Associate Dean at the MIT 
Sloan School of Management and a member of the MIT Faculty (Ex Officio). Mr. White has traveled extensively 
and has been responsible for MIT programs in Asia, Europe and Latin America. His current responsibilities include 
a major assignment in China, where MIT is working with three universities to develop international MBA programs. 
His activities in Asia encompass Korea, Japan, Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia and China. Mr. White 
began his career at MIT in 1973, as an Alfred P. Sloan Fellow, and later served as Director of that Program. From 
1973 to 1988, Mr. White served as Director of Executive Education at MIT.  From 1967 to 1970, Mr. White was the 
Director of the University of Hawaii Center for Cross Cultural Training and Research, and served as Executive 
Assistant for the President of the University of Hawaii from 1971 to 1973. From 1963 to 1967, Mr. White gained 
international government experience as a regional director for the U.S. Peace Corps in the Philippines. From 1956 to 
1965, Mr. White worked in the private sector, where he served as a printer, and later worked in financial printing 
sales and production.  Mr. White serves on the boards of Ceridian Corporation (NYSE: CEN), StartupAvenue.com 
(France), Management Sciences for Health, and the advisory board of the Japan Management Institute.  Mr. White 
also serves on the board of Jones Education, Inc., a subsidiary of Jones International, Ltd., a private company. Jones 
Education develops Internet education tools and customer support services for high-quality online education at the 
university level. Mr. White has served as a consultant in the area of management development and business 
development to many organizations, including British Petroleum PLC, Citicorp, Inc., Gemini Consulting, and the 
Young Presidents’ Organization. He has published several articles in leading journals in the field of management 
development. Mr. White holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Political Science from the University of Miami (Ohio) and a 
Master of Science in Management from MIT as a Sloan Fellow. 

There are no family relationships among any Directors or executive officers of SBS.  Information about the 
stock ownership in SBS held by these individuals is shown under the heading “Ownership of SBS Common Stock” 
and is based on information provided by these individuals. 

Does SBS Have Committees Of The Board Of Directors? 
 
The Board of Directors has three standing committees: Audit; Management Development and Compensation; 

and Nominating and Corporate Governance. 
 
Audit Committee 
 
Members: Louis C. Golm (Chairman), Warren W. Andrews, Lawrence A. Bennigson and Peter D. Fenner 
 
The Audit Committee, which held nine meetings in fiscal year 2003, consists of four directors who are 

independent, as determined in accordance with all applicable rules and laws.  Currently, the Board of Directors has 
determined that two members of the Audit Committee are “audit committee financial experts” consistent with SEC 
rules.   

 
The Audit Committee’s primary functions are to oversee the accounting and financial reporting processes of 

SBS and audits of the financial statements of SBS.   
 
The Audit Committee is directly responsible for the oversight of the independent auditor of SBS and has sole 

authority and responsibility for the independent auditor’s appointment, termination and compensation (subject, if 
applicable, to shareholder ratification).  The independent auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee and the 
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Audit Committee is responsible for the resolution of any disagreements between management and the independent 
auditor regarding financial reporting.  The Audit Committee approves all audit fees and terms and all non-audit 
services provided by the independent auditor. Effective February 7, 2003, the Board of Directors adopted a revised 
written charter for the Audit Committee, which is attached to this Proxy Statement as Appendix A, and is also 
available in the Investor Relations section of the Company’s website at www.sbs.com.   

 
Management Development and Compensation Committee 
 
Members: Lawrence A. Bennigson (Chairman), Peter D. Fenner, Louis C. Golm, Richard Szafranski and 

Alan F. White 
 
The Management Development and Compensation Committee, which held five meetings in fiscal year 2003, 

consists of five directors who are independent and is responsible for making recommendations to the Board of 
Directors concerning policies and procedures which will attract, develop and retain key managers and executives 
critical to the long-term success of SBS, and to align executive compensation with shareholder interests. The 
Management Development and Compensation Committee provides guidance and overview of all management 
development, executive salary, incentive and benefit programs. In addition, the Management Development and 
Compensation Committee is responsible for evaluating the performance of the Chief Executive Officer, 
recommending Chief Executive Officer compensation to the full Board, and meeting annually with the Chief 
Executive Officer to review management development programs and activities, and succession planning. While the 
administration of management development and compensation is the responsibility of SBS management, the review 
and recommendation of the Management Development and Compensation Committee is required for overall 
executive (individuals who lead businesses or functional responsibilities) compensation, philosophy and policy; 
incentive programs; executive benefit and perquisite programs; stock and stock option awards and their terms to be 
awarded to officers subject to Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; Board member compensation 
and any other compensation issues as may be directed to it.  Effective February 7, 2003, the Board of Directors 
adopted a revised written charter for the Management Development and Compensation Committee, which is 
attached to this Proxy Statement as Appendix B, and is also available in the Investor Relations section of the 
Company’s website at www.sbs.com.   

 
All members of the Management Development and Compensation Committee during the fiscal year ended 

June 30, 2003 were independent Directors, and none of them was an employee or former employee of SBS.  During 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, no SBS executive officer served on the compensation committee (or 
equivalent), or the board of directors, of another entity whose executive officer(s) served on SBS' Management 
Development and Compensation Committee. 

 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee 
 
Members: Alan F. White (Chairman), Warren W. Andrews, Peter D. Fenner and Richard Szafranski 
 
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, which held six meetings in fiscal year 2003, consists 

of four directors who are independent.  The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has the 
responsibility to make recommendations to the Board with respect to nominees to be designated by the Board for 
election as directors and officers, the effectiveness, structure, size and composition of the Board, including 
committee assignments, and to monitor corporate governance standards of the Company. The Board of Directors 
approves the proposed slate of nominees for recommendation to the shareholders. Nominated Directors stand for 
election by the shareholders at SBS’ Annual Meeting of Shareholders. SBS has no provision for recommendation by 
shareholders of nominees for Director.  Effective February 7, 2003, the Board of Directors adopted a written charter 
for the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, which is attached to this Proxy Statement as Appendix 
C, and is also available in the Investor Relations section of the Company’s website at www.sbs.com.   

 
How Much Are The Directors Paid? 

 
Employees who are also Directors receive no additional compensation for serving as Directors.  
 
During the board term commencing November 2002,  Directors who were not employees were paid an annual 



   10

retainer of $10,000 for service on the Board and $4,000 for each committee of the Board on which a Director served. 
Non-employee Directors were also paid a meeting fee of $1,000 per Board meeting day and travel day. In addition, 
non-employee Directors were paid $500 for each meeting of the Board held telephonically. Expenses incurred in 
connection with attending Board and committee meetings were reimbursed. Non-employee Directors were able to 
elect, under SBS’ 1998 or 2000 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plans, to receive a portion of these payments in 
restricted shares of SBS’ Common Stock or options to purchase shares of SBS’ Common Stock subject to, and in 
accordance with, Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In addition, each non-employee Director 
received an option for 10,000 shares of SBS’ Common Stock, in each case 5,000 granted under the terms of the 
1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan, as previously amended, and 5,000 granted under the terms of the 1998 
or 2000 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plans. The exercise price of all such options is the market price of SBS’ 
Common Stock on the grant date as provided in the respective plan.  In the case of Mr. Szafranski, this 
compensation was prorated effective upon the date of his appointment to the Board of Directors. 

 
Beginning in the board term commencing in November 2003, Directors who are not employees will be paid 

an annual retainer of $10,000 for service on the Board, and an additional retainer for Committee Chairpersons as 
follows: Audit Committee Chair $5,000; Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chair $2,500; and 
Management Development and Compensation Committee Chair $2,500.  The Lead Director will be paid an annual 
retainer of $2,500.  Non-employee Directors are also paid a meeting fee of $1,500 per Board meeting day, a meeting 
fee of $750 per Committee meeting, and $1,000 per travel day for any Board or Committee meeting.  In addition, 
non-employee Directors will be paid $500 for each meeting of the Board or any Committee held telephonically. 
Expenses incurred in connection with attending Board and Committee meetings are reimbursed.  Non-employee 
Directors will be able to elect, under SBS’ 1998 or 2000 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plans, to receive a portion of 
these payments in restricted shares of SBS’ Common Stock or options to purchase shares of SBS’ Common Stock 
subject to, and in accordance with, Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  In addition, each non-
employee Director will receive an option for 11,500 shares of SBS’ Common Stock upon election or appointment to 
the Board, and each year of service thereafter.  If the shareholders approve Proxy Item No. 3 of this Proxy 
Statement, the amendment to the 1993 Directors and Officers Stock Option Plan, each non-employee Director will 
receive the annual option grant of 11,500 shares from the 1993 Directors and Officers Stock Option Plan.  If the 
shareholders do not approve Proxy Item No. 3 of this Proxy Statement, the amendment to the 1993 Directors and 
Officers Stock Option Plan, each non-employee Director will receive an option for 5,000 shares under the terms of 
the 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan, as previous amended, and an option for 6,500 shares under the 
terms of the 1998 or 2000 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plans.  The exercise price of all such options is the market 
price of SBS’ Common Stock on the grant date as provided in the respective plan.    

 
COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 
 
Named Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors 

 
Bruce E. Castle, 45, was appointed Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of SBS in November 

2002. Mr. Castle was hired by SBS as General Counsel in July 2002. Before joining SBS, Mr. Castle practiced law 
in Albuquerque, New Mexico for 19 years, including as a director and shareholder of Kemp Smith Duncan & 
Hammond, P.C., managing shareholder of Eastham Johnson Monnheimer & Jontz, P.C., and most recently a 
principal of Vogel Campbell Blueher & Castle, P.C.  Mr. Castle holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Northeast 
Missouri State University (now Truman State University) (1980) and a Juris Doctor Degree from the University of 
Missouri (1983). 

 
James E. Dixon, Jr., 58, was appointed Executive Vice President in November 2001, and Treasurer and Chief 

Financial Officer in September 1995.  From September 1995 to November 2001, Mr. Dixon held the position of 
Vice President, Finance and Administration.  In addition, Mr. Dixon served as Secretary from November 2000 until 
November 2002.  Mr. Dixon served as a Director from November 1998 through November 2000. For eight years 
before joining SBS, Mr. Dixon held the position of Director of Finance, Howden Group America, Inc., a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Howden Group PLC. Howden Group America’s subsidiaries, whose combined annual revenue 
then exceeded $200 million, specialize in the design and manufacture of air and gas handling equipment, defense-
related products and food processing equipment. Before that, Mr. Dixon held various controller positions at 
Westinghouse Electric Corporation from 1971 to 1985. Mr. Dixon holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Education 
from Indiana University of Pennsylvania. 
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David H. Greig, 48, was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer in April 2002.  From February 

2001 to April 2002, Mr. Greig held the positions of Vice President of SBS and President of SBS’ Commercial 
Group.  Mr. Greig joined SBS in October 1997 as President of SBS’ wholly owned subsidiary, SBS Technologies, 
Inc., Connectivity Products in St. Paul, Minnesota. Before joining SBS, Mr. Greig was employed by Perle Systems, 
a designer and manufacturer of computer networking equipment. During his fourteen-year tenure with Perle, Mr. 
Greig served in several capacities, including President of the Perle Customer Engineering Division, and later served 
simultaneously as President of Perle’s U.S. operations, and Executive Vice President and Director of the Canadian 
parent company. Previously, Mr. Greig was Founder and President of Greig-Power Co. Ltd., a Toronto, Canada-
based developer of custom electronic systems used to automate and control manufacturing operations. Mr. Greig 
performed duties as a research assistant at York University’s Center for Research in Experimental Space Science 
before founding his own business.  Mr. Greig holds the equivalent of a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering 
from Ryerson Polytechnical Institute in Toronto, Ontario, Canada. 

 
How Much Do The Named Executive Officers Get Paid? 

 
The following table provides an overview of compensation that SBS paid to the Named Executive Officers 

for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001. 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

  
  

  
  

Annual 
Compensation 

 Long-Term 
Compensation 

Awards 
  
  

Name and Principal Position Year 
Salary 

($) 

 Securities 
Underlying 

Options (# shares) 

All Other 
Compensation 

($) 

Clarence W. Peckham  2003 272,870 100,000 43,508 (5) 
Chief Executive Officer (1) 2002 212,463 60,000 7,435 (6) 
    2001 176,932 20,000 7,186 (6) 

Christopher J. Amenson  2003 192,335 — 9,291 (7) 
Chairman of the Board, Executive Chairman 2002 62,154 120,000 5,849 (8) 
& Former Chief Executive Officer (2) 2001 315,278 — 9,011 (6) 

David H. Greig  2003 275,000 30,000 48,835 (9) 
President and Chief Operating Officer (3) 2002 232,489 110,000 — 
    2001 196,646 20,000 — 

James E. Dixon, Jr.  2003 275,000 — 8,253 (6) 
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer &  2002 257,618 60,000 7,287 (6) 
Treasurer 2001 230,077 20,000 29,698 (10)

Bruce E. Castle  2003 197,308 20,000 4,500 (6) 
Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary (4)     

__________ 

(1) Effective April 17, 2003, Clarence W. Peckham was appointed to the position of Chief Executive Officer. 

(2) Effective April 17, 2003, Christopher J. Amenson was appointed to the position of Executive Chairman. 

(3) David H. Greig was appointed to the position of President and Chief Operating Officer effective April 26, 2002; before 
that, he served as Vice President of SBS beginning in February 2001. 

(4) Bruce E. Castle was appointed Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of SBS in November 2002. 

(5) Includes $34,622 in relocation payments and $8,886 in payments made by SBS pursuant to a contribution-matching 
program under its 401(k) plan.  Effective January 1, 2001, SBS changed the 401(k) plan’s year-end to December 31. 
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(6) Represents payments made by SBS pursuant to a contribution-matching program under its 401(k) plan.  Amounts paid 
under SBS’ other employee benefits plans are not included because the benefits provided to officers under these plans are 
identical to those provided to all other employees.  Effective January 1, 2001, SBS changed the 401(k) plan’s year-end to 
December 31. 

(7) Includes $7,692 made by SBS pursuant to a contribution-matching program under its 401(k) plan and $1,599 in fringe 
benefits.  Effective January 1, 2001, SBS changed the 401(k) plan’s year-end to December 31. 

(8) Includes $2,486 made by SBS pursuant to a contribution-matching program under its 401(k) plan and $3,363 in fringe 
benefits.  Effective January 1, 2001, SBS changed the 401(k) plan’s year-end to December 31. 

(9) Represents relocation benefits paid to employee. 

(10) Includes $8,160 in payments made by SBS pursuant to a contribution matching program under its 401(k) plan and 
$21,538 paid for accrued leave compensation.  Effective January 1, 2001, SBS changed the 401(k) plan’s year-end to 
December 31. 

 
The following table provides information about shares acquired upon exercise of stock options by, and 

unexercised stock options held by, the Named Executive Officers in the Summary Compensation Table at  
June 30, 2003: 

AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR 
AND FISCAL YEAR END OPTION VALUES 

 
Shares 

Acquired Value 

Number of Shares 
Underlying Unexercised 

Options at  
June 30, 2003 

Value of Unexercised  
In-The-Money Options at  

June 30, 2003 
Name on Exercise Realized Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable 

C. Amenson  556 $   4,030 270,000 — $          —  $            — 
C. Peckham  — — 101,500 142,500 (1) 57,600 184,000 

D. Greig  — — 191,000 110,000 (1) 12,160 55,200 
J. Dixon Jr. — — 149,500 52,500 (1) 120,400 — 

B. Castle  — — — 20,000 (2) — 35,500 
__________ 
 

(1) 5,000 of these options became exercisable September 25, 2003.  
(2) 5,000 of these options became exercisable July 31, 2003.  

 
The following table provides information about individual grants of stock options made to the Named 

Executive Officers in the Summary Compensation Table during the year ended June 30, 2003: 

OPTION GRANTS IN FISCAL YEAR 2003 

Name 

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Options Granted 

Percent of Total 
Options Granted to 

Employees in   
Fiscal Year 

Exercise 
Price Per 

Share 
Expiration 

Date 
Grant Date  

Present Value 

C. Peckham  100,000 (1) 15.69% $   7.92 4/30/2013 $  459,258 (4) 
D. Greig  30,000 (2) 4.71% 7.92 4/30/2013     137,777 (4) 
B. Castle 20,000 (3) 3.14% 8.00 7/31/2012       78,514 (5) 

__________ 
 

(1) Options were granted under the 1993 Directors and Officers Stock Option Plan; 20,000 per year become exercisable 
upon continuous employment beginning April 30, 2004 through April 30, 2008, and the option expires on April 30, 
2013. 
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(2) Options were granted under the 1993 Directors and Officers Stock Option Plan; 6,000 per year become exercisable 
upon continuous employment beginning April 30, 2004 through April 30, 2008, and the option expires on April 30, 
2013. 

 
(3) Options were granted under the 2000 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan; 5,000 per year become exercisable upon 

continuous employment beginning July 31, 2003 through July 31, 2006, and the option expires on July 31, 2012. 
 
(4) Estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions; expected 

life of 4.12 years, risk free rate of return of 3.12%, expected volatility of 76.97% and a dividend yield of 0%. 
 
(5) Estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions; expected 

life of 2.67 years, risk free rate of return of 2.673%, expected volatility of 79.81% and a dividend yield of 0%. 
 

Compensation Plans Of SBS Under Which Securities May Be Issued 
 

The following sets forth certain information as of June 30, 2003 with respect to compensation plans of SBS 
under which securities may be issued: 

 
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION 

 
 
 
 
Plan Category 

Number of securities to be 
issued upon exercise of 

outstanding options, 
rights, restricted stock, 

and other  
stock-based awards 

Weighted-average 
exercise price of 

outstanding options, 
rights, restricted stock, 

and other  
stock-based awards 

Number of securities 
remaining available for 
future issuance under 
equity compensation 

plans (excluding securities 
reflected in first column) 

Equity compensation 
plans approved by 
security holders 

 

3,353,309 

 

$15.08 

 

2,758,443 

 

Equity compensation 
plans not approved by 
security holders 

 

— 

 

— 

 

— 

 

Total  3,353,309  $15.08  2,758,443  

 
Does SBS Have Employment Agreements For The Named Executive Officers? 

 
All of our Named Executive Officers have employment agreements with SBS.  
 
Christopher J. Amenson serves as Executive Chairman under an employment agreement executed on  

April 17, 2003. The agreement provides for a base annual salary of $150,000 and a two-year term unless terminated 
as described below. The agreement provides that, upon either voluntary or involuntary resignation, SBS will employ 
Mr. Amenson for two years following termination as an advisor to the Board of Directors at an annual rate of pay of 
$40,000.  The agreement assigns to SBS certain intellectual property developed by Mr. Amenson on SBS time, is 
terminable by either party, with or without cause, upon thirty days’ notice, contains non-competition clauses which 
apply during the employment period and for two years thereafter, and contains restrictions against disclosure of 
proprietary information.  Also, the agreement provides for six months’ severance payable upon Mr. Amenson’s 
termination by SBS without cause. 

 
Bruce E. Castle serves as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary pursuant to an employment 

agreement effective July 29, 2003. The agreement provides for a base annual salary of $225,000 and has a three-year 
term unless terminated as described below. The agreement assigns to SBS certain intellectual property developed by 
Mr. Castle on SBS time, is terminable by either party, with or without cause, upon thirty days notice, contains non-
competition clauses which apply during the employment period and for two years thereafter, and contains 
restrictions against disclosure of proprietary information.  Also, the agreement provides for six months’ severance 
payable upon Mr. Castle’s termination by SBS without cause and one-year severance payable upon Mr. Castle’s 
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termination without cause within one year after a change in control of SBS.  
 
James E. Dixon, Jr. serves as Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to an 

employment agreement effective July 29, 2003. The agreement provides for a base annual salary of $275,000 and 
has a three-year term unless terminated as described below. The agreement assigns to SBS certain intellectual 
property developed by Mr. Dixon on SBS time, is terminable by either party, with or without cause, upon thirty days 
notice, contains non-competition clauses which apply during the employment period and for two years thereafter, 
and contains restrictions against disclosure of proprietary information.  Also, the agreement provides for six months’ 
severance payable upon Mr. Dixon’s termination by SBS without cause and one-year severance payable upon Mr. 
Dixon’s termination without cause within one year after a change in control of SBS.  

 
 
David H. Greig serves as President and Chief Operating Officer pursuant to an employment agreement 

effective July 29, 2003. The agreement provides for a base annual salary of $275,000 and has a three-year term 
unless terminated as described below.  The agreement assigns to SBS certain intellectual property developed by  
Mr. Greig on SBS time, is terminable by either party, with or without cause, upon thirty days notice, contains non-
competition clauses which apply during the employment period and for two years thereafter, and contains 
restrictions against disclosure of proprietary information.  Also, the agreement provides for six months’ severance 
payable upon Mr. Greig’s termination by SBS without cause and one-year severance payable upon Mr. Greig’s 
termination without cause within one year after a change in control of SBS.   

 
Clarence W. Peckham serves as Chief Executive Officer pursuant to an employment agreement effective  

April 17, 2003. The agreement provides for a base annual salary of $300,000 and has a five-year term unless 
terminated as described below. The agreement also provides for issuance to Mr. Peckham of a stock option grant of 
100,000 shares of SBS common stock, with annual vesting of 20,000 shares beginning on April 30, 2004 through 
April 30, 2008, based on continuous employment through these dates.  The agreement assigns to SBS certain 
intellectual property developed by Mr. Peckham on SBS time, is terminable by either party, with or without cause, 
upon thirty days notice, contains non-competition clauses which apply during the employment period and for two 
years thereafter, and contains restrictions against disclosure of proprietary information.  Also, the agreement 
provides for six months’ severance payable upon Mr. Peckham’s termination by SBS without cause and one-year 
severance payable upon Mr. Peckham’s termination without cause within one year after a change in control of SBS. 

 
REPORTABLE TRANSACTIONS 
 

During The Last Fiscal Year, Has Any Director, Officer, Nominee For Director, Or Shareholder 
Identified In The Ownership Of SBS Common Stock Section, Or Any Of Their Immediate Family Members, 
Been Involved In Any Transaction, In Which SBS Or Any Of Its Subsidiaries Was Involved, Or May Be 
Involved In The Future, Which Exceeded $60,000? 

 
SBS knows of no reportable transactions. 
 

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE  
 

Did The Directors And Officers File All Of Their Required Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reports 
With The SEC On Time? 

 
Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Directors and Officers of public companies are required to report 

to the Securities and Exchange Commission all personal transactions involving SBS’ Common Stock. Based upon a 
review of Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed by Directors and Officers of SBS during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, all 
reports required by Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 were timely filed, except for one form with 
respect to one transaction which was filed by Mr. Dixon. 
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INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  
 
Approval of Services 
 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors pre-approves all engagements for audit and non-audit 
services provided by the Company’s principal accounting firm, KPMG LLP.  The policies and procedures for 
approval of all services as outlined in the Audit Committee charter follow:   

 
 The Audit Committee shall approve all audit fees and terms and all non-audit services provided by the 

Company’s auditor; and  

 A Committee member designated by the Committee, or in the absence of such designation the Chairman 
(the “Designated Member”), may approve additional proposed non-audit services that arise between 
Committee meetings, provided that the Designated Member notifies promptly the other members of the 
Committee in writing and the decision to pre-approve the service is presented for ratification at the next 
scheduled meeting of the Committee. 

 
Audit Fees 

 
The aggregate fees billed during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 for professional services 

rendered by SBS’ principal accounting firm, KPMG LLP, for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
included in Form 10-K, and for the review of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements included in 
Form 10-Q, were approximately $361,500 and $293,900, respectively.  Included here are fees associated with the 
review by KPMG of registration statements filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the related 
issuance of independent accountant consent letters. 

 
Audit Related Fees 

 
The aggregate fees billed during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 for assurance and related 

services rendered by SBS’ principal accounting firm, KPMG LLP, were approximately $18,400 and $61,800, 
respectively.  Assurance and related service fees include the audit of employee benefit plan financial statements and 
due diligence assistance on potential acquisitions. 

 
Tax Fees 

 
The aggregate fees billed during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 for professional services 

rendered by SBS’ principal accounting firm, KPMG LLP, for tax compliance, tax advice, and tax planning were 
approximately $633,600 and $568,300, respectively.  Tax compliance services include the preparation of income tax 
returns filed with the Internal Revenue Service and the tax authorities in Germany.  Tax advice and planning 
services included assistance with the examination of prior year income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service, 
implementation of domestic and international tax planning strategies, and consultation on other tax matters. 

 
All Other Fees 

 
The aggregate fees billed during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003, and 2002, for all other professional 

services rendered by SBS’ principal accounting firm, KPMG LLP, were approximately $5,400 and $34,400, 
respectively.  Other services consisted of assistance with the interpretation of new accounting standards and other 
related services. 

 
REPORT OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised of four Directors who are independent and  

financially literate, and two of whom are financially sophisticated, within the current meaning of the National 
Association of Securities Dealers’ (“NASD”) rules regarding audit committees. In its role as an audit committee, the 
committee reviews and monitors SBS’ internal controls, financial reports, and accounting practices as well as the 
scope and extent of the audits performed by SBS’ independent auditors. In addition, the committee, in its capacity as 
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a committee of the Board, is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, and oversight of the work of 
SBS’ independent auditors, and advance approval of all audit and non-audit services provided by SBS’ independent 
auditors, KPMG LLP. 

 
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 added a number of provisions to federal law to strengthen the authority of, 

and increase the responsibility of, corporate audit committees.  With regard to the independence of audit committee 
members, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and rules of the United States Securities and Exchange Commissions (“SEC”) 
require that NASD adopt additional rules that define independence more restrictively than under the current rules: 

 
• Audit committee members would be barred from accepting any direct or indirect consulting, advisory or 

other compensatory fee from the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer, other than in the member’s capacity as a member 
of the Board of Directors and any Board committee.  This prohibition would preclude payments to a member as an 
officer or employee, as well as other compensatory payments.  The members of our Audit Committee comply with 
these SEC-mandated requirements.   

 
• A member of the audit committee could not be an affiliated person of the issuer or any subsidiary of the 

issuer apart from his or her capacity as a member of the Board and any Board committee.  In this context, the SEC 
defines the terms “affiliate” and “affiliated person” to mean “a person that directly, or indirectly through one or 
more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, the person specified.”  The SEC 
defines the term “control” as “the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the 
management and policies of a person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or 
otherwise.”  Under the safe harbor adopted by the SEC, a person who is not an executive officer or a shareholder 
owning 10% or more of any class of voting equity securities of a specified person will be deemed not to control the 
specified person.  The members of our Audit Committee fully comply with these SEC requirements.   

 
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act also requires that audit committees of public companies establish procedures for (a) 

the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints received by the company regarding accounting, internal 
accounting controls, or auditing matters; and (b) the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the 
company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.  The Audit Committee has adopted the 
SBS Financial Complaint Procedures Policy (the “Financial Complaints Policy”), which is posted on the SBS 
website at www.sbs.com under the “Investor Relations” heading on the Corporate Governance webpage.  The 
Financial Complaints Policy complies with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and provides, among other 
things, for confidential, anonymous submission by SBS employees of accounting and auditing concerns, submission 
by non-employees of similar concerns, and mandatory management reporting of all such submissions to the Audit 
Committee.  As of the date of this report, the Audit Committee has not been notified by management of any internal 
or external submissions of financial complaints pursuant to the Financial Complaints Policy. 

 
In addition, the SEC has also adopted rules under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act that require a company to disclose 

whether it has at least one “audit committee financial expert” serving on its audit committee, and if so, the name of 
the expert and whether the expert is independent of management.  SBS is required to comply with these disclosure 
requirements in its annual reports for fiscal years ending on or after July 15, 2003.  The SEC rules define an “audit 
committee financial expert” as a person who has the following attributes: 

   
 An understanding of generally accepted accounting principles and financial statements; 

 The ability to assess the general application of such principles in connection with the accounting for 
estimates, accruals and reserves; 

 Experience preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial statements that present a breadth and 
level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of 
issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the registrant’s financial statements, or experience 
actively supervising one or more persons engaged in such activities; 

 An understanding of internal controls and procedures for financial reporting; and 

 An understanding of audit committee functions.  
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Under the SEC rules, a person must have acquired such attributes through any one or more of the following: 
 
 Education and experience as a principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, controller, public 

accountant or auditor or experience in one or more positions that involve the performance of similar 
functions; 

 Experience actively supervising a principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, controller, 
public accountant, auditor or person performing similar functions; 

 Experience overseeing or assessing the performance of companies or public accountants with respect to 
the preparation, auditing or evaluation of financial statements; or 

 Other relevant experience. 
 
Although the disclosure requirements regarding “audit committee financial experts” will not apply to SBS 

until its 2004 Annual Report, the Board of Directors of SBS has already determined consistent with the SEC rules 
that SBS has two “audit committee financial experts” serving on the Audit Committee, that they are Louis C. Golm 
and Peter D. Fenner, and that each is independent of management. 

 
Management has primary responsibility for SBS’ financial statements and the overall reporting process, 

including SBS’ system of internal controls. KPMG LLP audits the annual consolidated financial statements prepared 
by management and expresses an opinion on whether those statements fairly present in all material respects SBS’ 
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. KPMG LLP also discusses with the committee any issues KPMG LLP believes the 
committee should consider. The committee has reviewed SBS’ audited consolidated financial statements for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, and discussed them with both management and KPMG LLP. 

  
The committee has also discussed with KPMG LLP the matters required to be discussed by generally 

accepted auditing standards, including those described in Statements on Auditing Standards No. 61 and No. 90, 
issued by the Auditing Standards Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

  
The committee has received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from KPMG LLP required by 

Independence Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees, issued by the Independence 
Standards Board, and has discussed with KPMG LLP its independence from SBS. In addition, the committee has 
considered whether the provision of the non-audit services that it has approved is compatible with maintaining 
KPMG LLP’s independence and believes that it is. 

  
Based on these reviews and discussions, the committee has recommended to SBS’ Board of Directors that 

SBS’ audited consolidated financial statements be included in SBS’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
June 30, 2003, and filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 

  
      Audit Committee 
  
      Louis C. Golm, Chairman 
      Lawrence A. Bennigson 
      Warren W. Andrews 
      Peter D. Fenner 
  

REPORT OF THE BOARD MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 
ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

 
The Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised entirely 

of outside Directors.  Members are not eligible to participate in the officer and employee compensation programs 
they oversee.  
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The responsibility of the Management Development and Compensation Committee is to: 
 
 Review the Chief Executive Officer’s policies and procedures designed to attract, develop and retain key 

managers and executives critical to the success of SBS and align executive compensation with 
shareholder interests, and to make related recommendations to the Board of Directors,  

 provide guidance and overview of all management development, executive salary, incentive and benefit 
programs, 

 evaluate the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and recommend Chief Executive Officer 
compensation to the full Board, and 

 meet annually with the Chief Executive Officer to review management development programs and 
activities, and succession planning. 

 
While the administration of management development and compensation is the responsibility of SBS 

management, the review and approval of the Management Development and Compensation Committee is required 
for: 

 overall executive (individuals which lead businesses or functional responsibilities) compensation, 
philosophy and policy, 

 incentive programs,  
 executive benefit and perquisite programs,  
 stock and stock option awards and their terms to be awarded to officers subject to Section 16(b) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and 
 Board member compensation and any other compensation issues as may be directed to it. 

 
Chief Executive Officer Compensation Policy:   
 
In June of 2000, the Management Development and Compensation Committee recommended and the Board 

adopted the policy that future primary incentive compensation for the Chief Executive Officer would be based on 
stock options, more closely aligning the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation with the interests of SBS’ 
shareholders.  In addition, the Board adopted the policy that the Chief Executive Officer would be eligible for cash 
incentives, at the sole discretion of and approval by the Committee.  Factors in determining whether any cash 
incentive would be paid to the Chief Executive Officer include:  

• SBS’ financial operating performance as compared with its approved fiscal operating plan,  
• progress in the development of management and other human resources within SBS, and  
• progress in corporate development. 
 
Executive Officer Compensation Policy: 
 
Base salaries for all other executive officers have been set at competitive levels by the Chief Executive 

Officer in consultation with the Management Development and Compensation Committee, giving due regard to 
individual performance and time in position. Cash incentive compensation for all other executive officers is 
discretionary, proposed by the Chief Executive Officer, and approved by the Committee, based on factors similar to 
those used for establishing cash incentive compensation for the Chief Executive Officer.  Factors included in 
determining discretionary cash incentive compensation for management with line responsibility for division 
operations are generally tied to performance targets for the businesses under their authority and contribution to 
overall earnings per share. These performance targets are set as part of the annual budgeting process for SBS and its 
subsidiaries.  No cash incentive compensation was paid for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

 
Chief Executive Officer Compensation (Mr. Peckham).  Clarence W. Peckham was appointed to the position 

of Chief Executive Officer effective April 17, 2003, succeeding Christopher J. Amenson who assumed the position 
of Executive Chairman effective the same date.  Mr. Peckham entered into a five-year employment agreement with a 
base salary of $300,000 and was granted a stock option of 100,000 shares of SBS common stock, with annual 
vesting of 20,000 shares beginning on April 30, 2004 through April 30, 2008, based on continuous employment 
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through these dates.  Mr. Peckham’s level of compensation is consistent with that of similar positions of companies 
of similar size in the electronics and other relevant industries, as well as market competitive conditions to attract 
high quality leadership in SBS’ industry.  At the sole discretion of the Management Development and Compensation 
Committee, Mr. Peckham is eligible to receive additional cash incentive compensation.  No cash incentive 
compensation was paid to him in fiscal 2003. 

 
Former Chief Executive Officer Compensation (Mr. Amenson).  Christopher J. Amenson was appointed Chief 

Executive Officer on April 26, 2002, and held that position until April 17, 2003, when he assumed the position of 
Executive Chairman.  Concurrent with Mr. Amenson’s appointment as Chief Executive Officer, effective April 26, 
2002, Mr. Amenson entered into a three-year employment agreement with a base salary of $200,000 and was 
granted a stock option of 120,000 shares of SBS common stock, for which all shares are exercisable as of April 17, 
2003, the effective date of his change from the position of Chief Executive Officer, in connection with the terms of 
the employment agreement. In line with the compensation policies applicable to the Chief Executive Officer, the 
Management Development and Compensation Committee recommended to the Board and the Board approved, 
based on economic and market conditions at that time, that Mr. Amenson’s compensation be closely aligned with 
the interests of SBS’ shareholders, weighting a significant portion of Mr. Amenson’s compensation to market 
appreciation of SBS common stock. Other than the stock options granted Mr. Amenson in connection with  his 
appointment to the position of Chief Executive Officer on April 26, 2002, no incentive options or cash incentive 
compensation were provided to him in fiscal 2003. 

 
Management Development and 
Compensation Committee 
 
Lawrence A. Bennigson, Chairman 
Peter D. Fenner 
Louis C. Golm 
Richard Szafranski 
Alan F. White 
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FIVE YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARISON 
 
How Did SBS Common Stock Perform During the Fiscal Year? 

 
The graph below provides a comparison of SBS’ cumulative total shareholder return with performances of the 

NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index and the NASDAQ Computer Manufacturer Index as a Peer Group. The 
following graph assumes the investment of $100 on June 30, 1998 in SBS Common Stock. The NASDAQ 
Computer Manufacturer Index’s and the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index’s returns assume reinvestment of 
stock and cash dividends. 

 
COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN* 

AMONG SBS TECHNOLOGIES, INC., THE NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S.) INDEX 
AND THE NASDAQ COMPUTER MANUFACTURER INDEX 
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 SBS Technologies, Inc.
 NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.)
 NASDAQ Computer Manufacturer  

 
 June 30, 

1998 
June 30, 

1999 
June 30, 

2000 
June 30, 

2001 
June 30, 

2002 
June 30, 

2003 

SBS Technologies, Inc. 100 67.20 122.64 125.63 81.27 64.81 
NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) 100 143.67 212.43 115.46 78.65 87.33 
NASDAQ Computer Manufacturer 100 186.70 343.75 139.30 91.04 104.54 
       

 
* $100 invested on June 30, 1998 in stock or index — including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal 

year ended June 30. 
 
 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 
The Annual Report to Shareholders concerning the operations of SBS for fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, 

including the financial statements for that year, has been enclosed with this Proxy Statement. 
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PROPOSALS TO BE VOTED UPON 
 

PROXY ITEM NO. 1 — ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 
 
SBS’ Bylaws provide for a Board of Directors composed of a minimum of one but not more than nine 

directors, all of whom are elected annually. Annually, the Board of Directors determines the number of nominees to 
be recommended to the Shareholders for election to the Board.  The following persons have consented to be 
nominated and, if elected, to serve as Directors of SBS. 

 
1. Christopher J. Amenson    2. Warren W. Andrews 
3. Lawrence A. Bennigson    4. Peter D. Fenner 
5. Louis C. Golm 6. Clarence W. Peckham 
7. Richard Szafranski 8. Alan F. White 
 

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote “FOR” the election of each named nominee. 
 

PROXY ITEM NO. 2 — RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF AUDITORS 
 
The Directors have selected KPMG LLP, independent certified public accountants, as SBS’ independent 

auditors for the 2004 fiscal year. KPMG LLP has no direct interest in SBS and has had no such interest during the 
past fiscal year. Representatives of KPMG LLP will be present at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, will be given 
the opportunity to make a statement if they so wish, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions. 

 
The Board of Directors recommends that you vote “FOR” the ratification of their selection of KPMG LLP as 
independent auditors of SBS. 

 
PROXY ITEM NO. 3 — APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO THE 1993 DIRECTOR AND 

OFFICER STOCK OPTION PLAN 
 

On July 29, 2003, the SBS Board of the Directors approved, subject to shareholder approval, an amendment, 
to become effective upon shareholder approval, to the Company’s 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan 
(“Plan”).  Specifically the amendment: 

 
(i) amends Section V, Plan Shares, by reducing the maximum number of Plan shares for which 

options may be awarded each fiscal year as follows (bolded language to be deleted): 

From – The maximum number of Plan Shares for which Options may be awarded each fiscal year 
is five percent of the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at the first day of that fiscal 
year.  Those Plan Shares underlying expired or terminated Options issued under the Plan and Plan 
Shares available each year under the Plan as to which Options were not granted in that year 
shall be added to the maximum number of Plan Shares available in any subsequent fiscal year. 

To – The maximum number of Plan Shares for which Options may be awarded each fiscal year is 
five percent of the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at the first day of that fiscal 
year.  Those Plan Shares underlying expired or terminated Options issued under the Plan shall be 
added to the maximum number of Plan Shares available in any subsequent fiscal year. 

(ii) amends Section VI, Grants to Directors, by changing the number of options automatically granted 
to each Eligible Director of the Company upon initial appointment from 5,000 to 11,500, by 
changing the number of options automatically granted to each Eligible Director of the Company 
upon re-election as a Director from 5,000 to 11,500, and by deleting the sentence, “An Eligible 
Director serving at the Effective Date of the Plan who did not receive a grant of 5,000 Option 
Shares upon becoming a Director will receive an Option for 5,000 Option Shares upon the 
Effective Date of the Plan.”   

(iii) amends Section VII, Exercise of Options, by extending the termination date of options granted to 
each Eligible Director under the Plan from the earlier of (a) failure to vest, (b) five years from the 
date of grant or (c) twelve months from the date the Eligible Director ceases to be a member of the 
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Board of Directors, to the earlier of (x) failure to vest, (y) ten years from the date of grant or (z) 
twelve months from the date the Eligible Director ceases to be a member of the Board of 
Directors. 

 
The purposes of the Plan is to promote the long-term success of the Company by (i) providing a means by 

which the Company can attract, retain and compensate Directors and Executive Officers who can materially 
contribute to the success of the Company and (ii) encourage stock ownership by Directors and Executive Officers so 
that they may have a proprietary interest in the Company’s success.  The Plan is intended to comply with the 
requirements of Rule 16b-3 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (“1934 Act”). 

 
All non-employee Directors (“Eligible Directors”) of the Company are eligible to participate in the Plan, as 

are all Executive Officers of the Company who are subject to the filing and reporting requirements of Section 16 of 
the 1934 Act (“Eligible Officers”).  As of the date of this Proxy Statement, six of the Company’s current eight 
Directors would qualify as Eligible Directors under the Plan, and approximately five of the Company’s Executive 
Officers would qualify as Eligible Officers.  The amendment proposed by this Proxy Statement affects only 
grants of Options to Eligible Directors and does not affect the Plan as it relates to grants of Options to 
Executive Officers. 

 
The following table reflects the benefits or amounts that will be received by or allocated to each of the 

following under the Plan, as amended, to the extent those benefits or amounts are determinable: 
 

NEW PLAN BENEFITS 
SBS Technologies, Inc. 

1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan 

Name and Position Dollar Value ($) Number of 
Units 

Christopher J. Amenson 
Chairman of the Board & Executive Chairman (1) (1) 
Bruce E. Castle 
Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary  (1) (1) 
James E. Dixon, Jr. 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer (1) (1) 
David H. Greig  
President & Chief Operating Officer  (1) (1) 
Clarence W. Peckham 
Chief Executive Officer (1) (1) 
Executive Group (1) (1) 
Warren W. Andrews 
Non-Executive Director $ 101,359 (3) 11,500 (2) 
Lawrence A. Bennigson 
Non-Executive Director $ 101,359 (3) 11,500 (2) 
Peter D. Fenner 
Non-Executive Director $ 101,359 (3) 11,500 (2) 
Louis C. Golm 
Non-Executive Director $ 101,359 (3) 11,500 (2) 
Richard Szafranski 
Non-Executive Director $ 101,359 (3) 11,500 (2) 
Alan F. White 
Non-Executive Director $ 101,359 (3) 11,500 (2) 
Non-Executive Director Group $ 608,154 (3)(4) 69,000 per year 
Non-Executive Officer Employee Group None None 
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NEW PLAN BENEFITS (Continued) 

(1) Benefits to Executive Officers, including those who might receive 5% or more of the 
options, are not determinable because of award of options to Executive Officers under the 
Plan is at the discretion of the Committee. 

(2) The awards described are contingent upon re-election of each of the identified Directors. 

(3) The dollar value is calculated using the price per share for common stock as of  
September 2, 2003, under the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value 
of the options issued with the following assumptions; expected life of 10 years, risk free rate of 
return of 3.49%, expected volatility of 71.3% and a dividend yield of 0%.  This actual amount will 
differ because the price per share used will be as of the date the Plan is approved by the 
Shareholders of the Company and the re-election, if applicable, of each Eligible Director.   

(4) The market value of the securities underlying these options as of September 2, 2003 was 
$776,940. 

 
The Plan provides an automatic formula award to Eligible Directors of options to purchase shares of 

Company Common Stock. Upon becoming a Director, by election or appointment within 90 days of the last 
shareholder meeting at which Directors were elected, an Eligible Director receives an option for the purchase of 
11,500 shares of Common Stock (as amended from 5,000, subject to approval by shareholders).  No persons named 
in this Proxy are being nominated for initial election or appointment to the Board of Directors of the Company under 
this provision. Thereafter, upon each re-election as a Director, each Eligible Director will be awarded an additional 
option for 11,500 shares of Common Stock (as amended from 5,000, subject to approval by shareholders).  Each re-
elected Eligible Director would, therefore, receive an option for 11,500 shares from the Plan, assuming approval of 
the amendment. No consideration will be received by the Company for the grant of the options.   

 
The maximum number of Plan Shares for which Options may be awarded each fiscal year is five percent of 

the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at the first day of that fiscal year.  Those Plan Shares underlying 
expired or terminated Options issued under the Plan will be added to the maximum number of Plans Shares 
available in any subsequent fiscal year (as amended, subject to approval by shareholders, the Plan Shares available 
each year under the Plan as to which Options were not granted in previous years will not be added to the maximum 
number of shares available for grant). 

 
 As amended, subject to approval by shareholders, the Plan will no longer provide for special grants of 

Options to Eligible Directors serving at the Effective Date of the Plan, which was the date of original adoption of the 
Plan.   See proposed deletion to Section VI of the Plan in Proxy Item No. 3, subparagraph (ii) above. 

A committee, consisting of two or more non-employee Directors, administers the Plan, and, from time to time 
and in its sole discretion, selects from Eligible Officers those to whom Options will be awarded and makes those 
awards.  The number of Option Shares covered by an Option will be determined by the Committee in accordance 
with criteria determined by the Committee.  The Committee will determine the exercise price (which if not 
otherwise determined, will be the closing price for the Common Stock on the trading day immediately preceding the 
date of grant), the terms of vesting, and exercise, and termination or expiration of the Options.   

 
The Plan may be amended by a majority vote of the Board of Directors, subject to shareholder approval for 

certain material amendments, except that, if the proposed amendment is adopted, Shareholder approval of an 
amendment will only be required if required by applicable law or regulation or the requirements of any stock 
exchange or Nasdaq System with which the Common Stock is registered.  Nasdaq rules require shareholder approval 
of material amendments, as defined in the rules. 

 
The options to be granted under the Plan are not qualified options under the provisions of the Internal 

Revenue Code (“IRC”).  No tax consequence to the optionee or the Company will result from the grant or vesting of 
the options.  Upon exercise, the optionee will recognize ordinary income under Section 83 of the IRC, and the 
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Company will have a corresponding tax deduction, in the amount of the difference between fair market value of the 
option shares and the exercise price. 

 
Please refer to the item entitled “Compensation of Executive Officers” for information concerning plans, 

including the Plan, under which the Company paid or distributed cash or non-cash compensation during the most 
recent fiscal year and previously adopted plans under which the Company may pay or distribute cash or non-cash 
compensation in the future to Executive Officers. 

 
Adoption of the amendment to the Plan requires the affirmative vote of a majority of shares of Common 

Stock represented in person or by proxy at the annual meeting. 
 
The foregoing is a general summary of the Plan and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the copy of the 

Plan, as amended, attached to this Proxy Statement as Appendix D. 
 
This proposed amendment of the Plan does not affect the total number of options for Company stock 

currently granted annually to Eligible Directors.  For total options for Company stock granted annually to Eligible 
Directors, see section under heading How Much Are The Directors Paid?  

 
For total shares of Common Stock of the Company subject to options issued by the Company under all of its 

existing equity compensation plans, weighted average exercise price, and number of securities remaining available 
for future issuance under equity compensation plans, see section under heading Compensation Plans of SBS Under 
Which Securities May Be Issued, included in this Proxy Statement. 

 
The Board of Directors believes that the proposed amendment further aligns Directors’ proprietary 

interests with the Company’s long-term success and recommends that you vote “FOR” the approval of the 
amendment to the 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan. 

 
 

OTHER MATTERS 
 
The Board of Directors is not aware of any other matters that are to be presented at the meeting. However, if 

any other matters should properly come before the meeting, the Proxies will vote on those matters in accordance 
with their judgment. 

 
The above Notice and Proxy Statement are sent by order of the Board of Directors. 
 

 /s/ Bruce E. Castle  
Bruce E. Castle 
Secretary 
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STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
 
The Audit Committee (“Committee”) is a standing committee of the SBS Technologies, Inc. (“Company”) Board of 
Directors, consisting solely of not fewer than three directors who are independent, as determined in accordance with 
all applicable rules and laws.  At least one member of the Committee shall be an “audit committee financial expert” 
consistent with SEC guidelines.   
 
The Committee’s primary functions are to oversee the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company 
and audits of the financial statements of the Company.   
 
The Committee is directly responsible for the oversight of the independent auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) 
and has sole authority and responsibility for the Auditor’s appointment, termination and compensation (subject, if 
applicable, to shareholder ratification).  The Auditor will report directly to the Committee and the Committee will be 
responsible for the resolution of any disagreements between management and the Auditor regarding financial 
reporting.  The Committee shall approve all audit fees and terms and all non-audit services provided by the Auditor.  
A Committee member designated by the Committee, or in the absence of such designation the Chairman (the 
“Designated Member”), may approve additional proposed non-audit services that arise between Committee meetings 
provided that the Designated Member notifies promptly the other members of the Committee in writing and the 
decision to pre-approve the service is presented for ratification at the next scheduled meeting of the Committee. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
1. Review and update the Committee's charter annually. 

 
2.  Consider and review with the Auditor and management: 
 

(a) The adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and 
internal controls, and any significant findings and recommendations of the Auditor and 
management’s responses thereto. 

 
(b) Any significant changes in disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls or any other 

factors that could significantly affect disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls 
subsequent to the date of management’s evaluation, including any corrective actions with 
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

 
(c) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 

significant role in the Company’s internal controls. 
 
                         
3.   Review with management and the Auditor at the completion of the annual examination the Company's 

annual financial statements and related footnotes, the audit and the conduct thereof, including any serious 
disagreements or disputes with management, and any other matters relating to the audit. 

 
4.   Review with the Auditor and management the Company's compliance with the Company's code of conduct 

and legal matters that may have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 
5.   Review and approve any related party transactions. 
 
6.  Prepare a letter for inclusion in the annual report in accordance with law.   
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7. Establish procedures for (a) the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints received by the Company 
regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters; and (b) the confidential, anonymous 
submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing 
matters. 

 
8.  The Committee will perform such other functions as described in the Statement of Purpose, and as assigned 

by law, the Company’s charter or bylaws, or the Board of Directors. 
 
The Committee shall have the power to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within the Committee’s 
scope of responsibilities.  The Committee shall be empowered to retain independent counsel, accountants, or other 
advisers to assist it in the conduct of any investigation and as the Committee otherwise determines necessary to 
carry out its duties.  The Committee shall meet at least four times per year or more frequently as circumstances 
require. 
 
Dated:  February 7, 2003 
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The Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised entirely of 
outside Directors. Members are not eligible to participate in the officer and employee compensation programs they 
oversee. The responsibility of the Management Development and Compensation Committee is to: 
 

 review the CEO’s policies and procedures designed to attract, develop and retain key managers and 
executives critical to the success of SBS and to align executive compensation with shareholder interests, 
and to make related recommendations to the Board of Directors, 

 
 provide guidance and overview of all management development, executive salary, incentive and benefit 

programs, 
 

 evaluate the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and to recommend Chief Executive Officer 
compensation to the full Board, and 

 
 meet annually with the Chief Executive Officer to review management development programs and 

activities, and succession planning. 
 
While the administration of management development and compensation is the responsibility of SBS management, 
the review and approval of the Management Development and Compensation Committee is required for: 
 

 overall executive (individuals which lead businesses or functional responsibilities) compensation, 
philosophy and policy, 

 
 incentive programs, 

 
 executive benefit and perquisite programs, 

 
 stock and stock option awards and their terms to be awarded to officers subject to Section 16(b) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and 
 

 Board member compensation and any other compensation issues as may be directed to it. 
 
Dated: February 7, 2003 
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STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
 
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (“Committee”) is a standing committee of the Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) of SBS Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”), consisting of not fewer than three independent 
directors.  The Committee shall have the responsibility to make recommendations to the Board with respect to 
nominees to be designated by the Board for election as directors and officers, the effectiveness, structure, size and 
composition of the Board, including committee assignments, and to monitor corporate governance standards of the 
Company. 
 
The Committee will periodically review its charter and recommend appropriate changes to the Board.  The 
Committee may retain independent consultants, as appropriate, and take such other actions as may be necessary to 
achieve the following duties and responsibilities: 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

1. Develop candidate criteria for Board membership, including at least one “financial expert” pursuant to SEC 
guidelines. 

 
2. Recommend to the Board nominees for election to the Board. 
 
3. Recommend to the Board nominees for election as officers of the Company. 
 
4. Recommend to the Board the composition and organization of the Board, including committee 

assignments. 
 
5. Recommend to the Board the optimal size of the Board. 
 
6. Review Board policies and practices that influence the effectiveness of the Board, including conflicts of 

interest. 
 
7. Recommend development programs and activities for Board members and oversee orientation of new 

Board members. 
 
8. Recommend criteria to be applied in determining whether directors should continue in office, and 

periodically review the performance of directors.  
 
9. Periodically review Company policies and procedures with respect to corporate governance standards, 

including the nature, timeliness and adequacy of information supplied to directors regarding Company 
activities, industry trends and public policy developments. 

 
10. Recommend Board stock ownership guidelines. 
 
Dated: February 7, 2003 
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I.  PURPOSE 
 
 The purpose of the 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”) is to promote the long term 
success of SBS Technologies, Inc. by: (i) providing a means through which the Company can attract, retain and 
compensate Directors and Executive Officers who can materially contribute to the success of the Company and (ii) 
encourage stock ownership by Directors and Executive Officers so that they may have a proprietary interest in the 
Company’s success. 
 
II.  DEFINITIONS 
 
 The capitalized words appearing in this Plan are defined as follows: 
 

A. COMMITTEE means the Committee of the Board of Directors appointed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company to administer the Plan as to officers, as more 
fully described in the Plan. 

 
B. COMMON STOCK means the no par value common stock of SBS Technologies, 

Inc. 
 
C. COMPANY means SBS Technologies, Inc., and any subsidiaries. 
 
D. OPTION means the right to acquire Common Stock, conferred pursuant to this Plan. 
 
E. OPTION SHARES means shares of Common Stock which may be acquired under an 

Option. 
 
F. OPTIONEE means the person entitled to acquire Option Shares under an Option. 
 
G. EFFECTIVE DATE means the date the Plan is approved by the affirmative votes of 

the holders of a majority of the outstanding Common Stock entitled to vote at a 
meeting of the Company shareholders duly held in accordance with the laws of New 
Mexico. 

 
H. PLAN means the 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan. 
 
I. PLAN SHARES means the aggregate amount of Common Stock which may be 

awarded under the Plan. 
 

III.  ELIGIBLE DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 
 
 All Directors of the Company who are not employees of the Company, whether elected or appointed, 
(“Eligible Directors”) and all Executive Officers of the Company subject to Section 16 of the Securities Act of 1934 
(“Eligible Officers”), are eligible for awards under the Plan. 
 
IV.  THE COMMITTEE 
 
 The Committee will consist of two or more “Non-Employee” Directors as that term is defined in Section 
16b-3(b)(3)(i).  No member of the Committee will be an Eligible Officer.  The Committee will administer the Plan 
and, from time to time and in its sole discretion, select from Eligible Officers those to whom Options will be 
awarded and make those awards.  The number of Option Shares covered by an Option will be determined by the 
Committee in accordance with the criteria determined by the Committee, including Company performance.  The 
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exercise price will be determined by the Committee and, if not otherwise determined, will be the closing price for 
the Common Stock on the trading day immediately preceding the date of grant.  The Committee will determine, in 
its sole discretion, the terms of vesting, and exercise, and termination or expiration of the Options.  Payment for 
Option Shares upon exercise of an Option will be made in cash or, in the discretion of the Committee determined as 
of the grant of (or by amendment to) the Option and incorporated therein, (i) in Common Stock (valued as 
determined by the Committee) or (ii) through a net exercise of the Option. 
 
V.  PLAN SHARES 
 
 The maximum number of Plan Shares for which Options may be awarded each fiscal year is five percent of 
the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at the first day of that fiscal year.  Those Plan Shares underlying 
expired or terminated Options issued under the Plan shall be added to the maximum number of Plan Shares available 
in any subsequent fiscal year. 
 
VI.  GRANTS TO DIRECTORS 
 
 Each Eligible Director, upon his or her appointment by the Board of Directors within 90 days of the 
Company’s most recently held meeting of shareholders at which Directors were elected, or election as a Director, 
shall automatically be awarded an option for 11,500 Option Shares.  Thereafter, upon each re-election as a Director, 
the Eligible Director shall automatically receive an Option for 11,500 Option Shares. 
 
VII.  EXERCISE OF OPTIONS 
 
 This paragraph applies to Options held by Eligible Directors.  The exercise price per Option Share shall be 
the closing price for the trading day immediately preceding the date of grant.  The Option will vest and become 
exercisable at 5:00 p.m., New Mexico time, on the day before the next meeting of shareholders of the Company at 
which Directors are elected following the grant of the option if the Eligible Director still holds office.  The Option 
shall terminate the earlier of (i) failure to vest, (ii) ten (10) years from the date of grant or (iii)  twelve months from 
the date the Optionee ceases to be a member of the Board of Directors.  Payment for Option Shares upon exercise of 
an Option will be made in cash, or in the discretion of the Board of Directors determined as of the date of grant (or 
upon amendment) of the Option and incorporated therein, (i) in Common Stock valued as determined by the Board 
of Directors, or (ii) through a net exercise of the Option. 
 
VIII.  RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER 
 
 Unless and until the Company registers Plan Shares under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Act”) and as 
required by the securities laws of other applicable jurisdictions, the Option Shares awarded under the Plan will be 
“restricted securities” as that term is defined under Rule 144 of that Act and may only be transferred upon 
registration or in reliance on an exemption, established to the satisfaction of the Company, under the Act.  Except 
with specific approval by the Board of Directors or the Committee, no Option will be transferable by the Optionee 
other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order as 
defined by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security 
Act, or the rules thereunder, unless a proposed transfer is in compliance with the requirements for registration of the 
Option or Option Shares on Form S-8 under the Act as those requirements are then in effect.  Moreover, all Option 
Shares are subject to the transferability restrictions imposed by Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  
No Option (other than upon exercise) or Option Share may be transferred or otherwise alienated in any way 
for a period of six months from the date of grant, as provided in Rule 16b-3(d)(3). 
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IX.  RECLASSIFICATION, CONSOLIDATION, MERGER OR EXCHANGE 
 
 If and to the extent that the number of issued shares of Common Stock is increased or reduced by change in 
par value, split up, reclassification, distribution of a dividend payable in Common Stock, or the like, the number of 
Plan Shares will be proportionately adjusted.  If the Company is reorganized, consolidated, or merged, or shares of 
Common Stock are exchanged, with another corporation (an “Event”), Eligible Directors and Eligible Officers will 
be entitled to receive shares of the reorganized, consolidated, or merged company, or shares exchanged, in the same 
proportion, under the same circumstances and subject to the same conditions as if the Event had not occurred. 
 
X.  MANDATORY TAX WITHHOLDING 
 
 Upon issuance of Option Shares under this Plan to an Eligible Director or Eligible Officer (“Participant”), 
the number of Option Shares otherwise issuable or payable may, at the option of the Optionee with the consent of 
the Company, be reduced by the amount necessary to satisfy the Participant’s United States Federal and, where 
applicable, state and local tax withholding requirements. 
 
XI.  SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL 
 
 This Plan will be presented for consideration and approval of the shareholders of the Company at a 
meeting, special or regular, of the shareholders of the Company.  If the Plan is not approved by the shareholders, the 
Plan shall terminate.  No awards may be made under the Plan until that approval is received. 
 
XII.  RIGHTS AS SHAREHOLDER AND EMPLOYEE 
 
 No person eligible to participate in this Plan will have any rights as a Shareholder of the Company with 
respect to the Option Shares before the date of issuance to that person of certificates for exercised awarded Option 
Shares.  Neither the Plan nor any awards granted under the Plan will confer upon a participant any right to continue 
in the employ or to continue as a Director of the Company. 
 
XIII.  TERM OF THE PLAN 
 
 The Plan will terminate on the earlier of the award of all of the Plan Shares or termination by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
XIV.  CONSTRUCTION 
 
 The Plan will be interpreted and administered under the laws of the State of New Mexico.  The Plan is 
intended to qualify under and comply with all applicable conditions of Rule 16b-3, or its successors, of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  To the extent any provision of the Plan or action by the Committee fails to so 
comply, it shall be deemed null and void, to the extent permitted by law and, with respect to actions by the 
Committee or Board of Directors, deemed advisable by the Committee or Board of Directors. 
 
XV.  INTERPRETATION 
 
 All questions of interpretation and application of the Plan will be determined, as they relate to the Eligible 
Officers,  solely by the Committee, as they relate to the Board of Directors, solely by the Board of Directors, the 
determination of which will be final and binding upon all parties. 
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XVI.  AMENDMENT OF PLAN 
 
 This Plan may be amended by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at any time and from time to time, 
except that shareholder approval of an amendment will be required if required by applicable law or regulation or the 
requirements of any stock exchange or Nasdaq System with which the Common Stock is registered. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements with respect to the financial condition, results of operations and 
business of SBS Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries (referred to variously as “SBS”, the “Company”, “we”, “us” and “our”).  
You may find many of these statements by looking for words like “intends,” “expects,” “projects,” “believes,” “anticipates” 
or similar expressions in this Form 10-K.  These forward-looking statements include: 
 

 statements regarding future events and the future financial performance of SBS; 
 expected sales and gross margin for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004;  
 expected sales levels for the quarter ending September 30, 2003;  
 expectations of internally-generated cash flows;  
 new product introductions; and 
 growth of the markets we serve. 

 
These statements are based upon certain assumptions and assessments made by the Company in light of our experience 

and our perception of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors we believe to be 
appropriate.  These assumptions and assessments include the volume and product mix of sales, estimates of costs and 
inventory and receivable levels based on preliminary information, and other items. 

 
The forward-looking statements included in this document are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties, and other 

factors.  Among these factors are:  
 

 business and economic conditions generally affecting our customers and their end customers, including but not 
limited to the changes in size and program priorities of military procurement budgets, may be less favorable than we 
expect, resulting in lower sales and earnings;  

 a high degree of uncertainty and rapid change in the markets addressed by our products, which may impact the 
timing and amount of future sales levels or cause the market value of our inventory to decline, resulting in reduced 
gross profit levels;  

 customer demand for and acceptance of our products, which may be less than we expect, which may decrease both 
sales and margins;  

 costs related to the integration into SBS of newly-acquired businesses may be greater than we expected;  
 our ability to design, test and introduce new products on a timely basis, which, if we are not able, may decrease both 

sales and margins;  
 the financial condition of our customers may be less favorable than we expect, resulting in reduced sales and 

earnings; and  
 the other risk factors listed under “Risk Factors” included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.  

 
Because forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, actual results may differ materially from those 

expressed or implied by them.  SBS cautions you not to place undue reliance on these statements, which speak only as of the 
date of this Form 10-K. 

 
SBS does not undertake any obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result 

of new information, future events or otherwise. 
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PART I 
 
Item 1.  Business 
 
Introduction 

 
We design and build open-architecture embedded computer products that enable original equipment manufacturers 

(“OEM”) to serve the commercial, communications, enterprise and government markets. Our products are integrated into a 
variety of applications, including communications networking, medical imaging, industrial automation and military systems. 
Our portfolio includes an extensive line of CPU boards, computer interconnections, avionics, telemetry, and fully integrated 
systems and enclosures. Our objective is to continue to capitalize on our design expertise and customer service capabilities to 
enhance product quality and reduce time to market for OEM customers. We have grown, and intend to continue to do so, 
through a combination of internal growth and acquisitions. We completed eleven acquisitions between 1992 and June 30, 
2003 that broadened our product offerings and customer base. We achieve internal growth by expanding our existing product 
lines through new product development, through increasing penetration of our existing customer base, and by adding new 
customers. 

 
SBS Technologies, Inc. was incorporated in New Mexico in November 1986 and began operations in September 1987. 

Our executive office is located at 2400 Louisiana Boulevard, NE, AFC Building 5, Suite 600, Albuquerque, New Mexico, 
87110, telephone number (505) 875-0600.  As of June 30, 2003, SBS Technologies, Inc. had five subsidiaries: SBS 
Technologies, Inc., Commercial Group (“SBS Commercial”), SBS Technologies, Inc., Government Group (“SBS 
Government”), SBS Technologies, Inc., Communications and Enterprise Group, SBS Technologies, Inc. Foreign Holding 
Company (“Foreign Holding”), and SBS Technologies, Inc., German Holdings, LLC (“German Holdings”).  In July 2002, 
the Avionics Products division of SBS was combined with SBS Government.  In September 2002, SBS Technologies, Inc., 
Industrial Computers, and SDL Communications, Inc., both of which were formerly subsidiaries of SBS Technologies, Inc., 
merged into SBS Technologies, Inc., Communications Products, a subsidiary of SBS Technologies, Inc., at which time its 
name was changed to SBS Technologies, Inc., Communications and Enterprise Group (“SBS Communications”). 

 
In April 2003, German Holdings acquired all of the shares of SBS Technologies Holding GmbH (“Holding GmbH”), 

formerly a subsidiary of Foreign Holding, and all of the shares of SBS or Computers Verwaltungs GmbH (“Verwaltungs”), 
formerly a subsidiary of Holding GmbH.  Later in April 2003, Holding GmbH was merged into SBS Technologies, GmbH & 
Co. KG (“KG”), formerly a subsidiary of Holding GmbH.  As a result of the merger, ortec Electronic Assembly GmbH 
(“ortec”), formerly a wholly owned subsidiary of Holding GmbH, is a wholly owned subsidiary of KG.  As of June 30, 2003, 
KG and Verwaltungs were subsidiaries of German Holdings.  KG is a partnership between German Holdings as sole limited 
partner and Verwaltungs as sole general partner.   

 
SBS Technologies (Canada), Inc. (“SBS Canada”) is a subsidiary of Foreign Holding.  Effective June 30, 2003, SBS 

Canada acquired all of the shares of Avvida Holdings Corp. (“Avvida Holdings”).  At that time, Avvida Systems Inc. 
(“Avvida Systems”) was a subsidiary of Avvida Holdings.  In July 2003, both Avvida Systems and Avvida Holdings were 
amalgamated under Canadian law into SBS Canada.  SBS Technologies Finance LP (“Finance LP”), a limited partnership, is 
owned 99% by Foreign Holding as sole general partner, and 1% by SBS Technologies, Inc. as sole limited partner.  Finance 
LP provides financing to SBS Canada. 

 
SBS Technologies®, IndustryPack®, Omnispan®, Denali®, Cascade®, Reliaspan®, and dataBLIZZARD® are 

registered trademarks of SBS. PC•MIP® is a registered trademark of MEN Micro, Inc. of Carrollton, Texas, and SBS. All 
other trademarks or tradenames referred to in this document are the property of their respective owners. 

 
Corporate Governance 

 
We strive to achieve excellence and integrity in all of our business practices, including corporate governance, oversight, 

accountability and transparency. We believe we have incorporated current best practices in our governance, including those 
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and The Nasdaq Stock Market®. The following are several examples of corporate 
governance initiatives implemented by the Company, many dating several years before the passage of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act:  

 The Company’s Board of Directors is comprised of eight members, six of whom are independent from management 
(“Independent Directors”). The Board has consisted of a majority of Independent Directors since 1992.  
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 The Board has three standing committees: the Audit Committee, the Nominating and Corporate Governance 
Committee, and the Management Development and Compensation Committee.  Each Committee has a written 
charter, available for review on our web site at www.sbs.com, and membership on all Board Committees is limited 
to the Independent Directors.    

 At each regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors, a meeting is held of the Independent Directors 
without any company officer or Employee Director participation. The Independent Directors’ meeting is chaired by 
the Board’s Lead Director, who is an Independent Director. These meetings have been conducted since 1998.  

 The Company has an Internal Financial and Disclosure Controls Committee, whose primary duties are to establish, 
evaluate and maintain systems of internal controls regarding financial information of the Company and disclosures 
required by applicable laws to ensure (a) accuracy, completeness, reliability and timeliness of financial and other 
reports, (b) effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and (c) compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  

 The Company has disseminated to all of its employees a Financial Complaint Procedures Policy, available for 
review on our web site at www.sbs.com, to enable the anonymous reporting of any possible financial wrongdoing 
within the Company. 

 The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for Directors and Principal Officers, available for review on our web 
site at www.sbs.com, binding upon all directors and executive officers of the Company, designed to deter 
wrongdoing and promote honest and ethical conduct, full, fair, accurate and timely public disclosures, compliance 
with all governmental requirements, prompt internal reporting of violations of the Code of Ethics, and accountability 
for adherence to the Code of Ethics. 

The following narrative should be read in conjunction with the Section entitled “Risk Factors.” 
 
SBS’ Operating Segments and Products 
 

 Throughout fiscal year 2003, we operated internationally through two operating segments: the Communications and 
Enterprise Group, and the Commercial and Government Group.  The Commercial and Government Group consists of SBS 
Government, SBS Commercial, KG, ortec and SBS Canada, aligning similar technologies and selling channels.  The 
Communications and Enterprise Group consists of SBS Communications.  These segments are based on the markets that are 
served and the products that are provided to those markets.  During fiscal year 2003, each segment had its own sales and 
distribution channels and had a manager who reported directly to the President and Chief Operating Officer. The Commercial 
and Government Group’s primary focus is to serve customers in the medical, semiconductor, aerospace, defense and other 
commercial markets. The Communications and Enterprise Group serves major telecommunications OEM’s and OEM’s that 
manufacture and distribute business-computing equipment.  As a result of changes in management responsibility, our desire 
to enhance regional-based sales and service to our European customers, and the acquisition of SBS Canada, we will be 
changing our operating segments to a geographic focus.  Going forward, we will report results for two operating segments – 
the Americas and Europe.  Under this structure, all sales and support to European customers will be handled by KG, and the 
balance of sales and support will be handled by our United States and Canadian operations.  We believe this change will 
enable management to better focus on regional market development, alignment of sales channels and customers’ product 
needs, and enhance customer service and satisfaction.    
 
Communications and Enterprise Group Products 
 

The Communications and Enterprise Group designs and builds high performance embedded system products including 
single board computers, input/output modules, and fully integrated systems.  Our products are designed to meet the evolving 
requirements of communications customers while reducing cost and expediting time to market.  Our products are based on 
standard form factor hardware designs such as CompactPCI, PMC, PCI with open standard operating support such as 
VxWorks and Linux, and consistent driver development kits for ATM, frame relay and other software protocols.  Our 
approach to product engineering and manufacture allows our OEM customers to quickly and efficiently integrate these 
products using advanced components and software.  Typical OEM products in which SBS products are used are optical 
switches, routers, wireless base stations and access systems, radio network controllers, ATM switches, media gateways, 
network access servers, test and monitoring equipment, and firewall and security appliances.  In fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 
2001, sales of these products comprised approximately 22.0%, 30.8%, and 49.2%, respectively, of Company total sales. As of 
September 1, 2003, 2002, and 2001, backlog orders expected to be filled within the current fiscal year were $5.4 million, $6.4 
million, and $17.7 million, respectively. However, we have in the past experienced order cancellations and requests for 
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extensions of product shipments and may continue to experience these cancellations and extensions in the future, and as a 
result, shipments of the Communications and Enterprise Group’s current backlog may be delayed or canceled. 
 
Commercial and Government Group Products 
 

The Commercial and Government Group designs and builds open-architecture computer components and systems for 
CompactPCI, PCI, PMC, VME, and PC/104 standard bus architectures. Our product lines include Intel and PowerPC 
architecture CPU boards, serial and networking modules, analog and digital I/O modules, computer interconnection and 
expansion units, MIL-STD-1553, ARINC 429, telemetry, and complete computer systems. These products support OEM and 
end-user applications in semiconductor manufacturing equipment, industrial automation, medical imaging, military and 
aerospace, and entertainment applications. Standard commercial level products are sold in these segments as well as 
ruggedized products in the military and aerospace markets.  In fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001, sales of these products 
comprised approximately 78.0%, 69.2%, and 50.8%, respectively, of Company total sales. As of September 1, 2003, 2002, 
and 2001, backlog orders expected to be filled within the current fiscal year were $22.4 million, $24.1 million, and $16.3 
million, respectively. However, we have in the past experienced order cancellations and requests for extensions of product 
shipments and may continue to experience these cancellations and extensions in the future, and as a result, shipments of the 
Commercial and Government Group’s current backlog may be delayed or canceled. 
 
Segment Financial Data 
 

See Notes 14 and 15 to SBS’ Consolidated Financial Statements for information about SBS’ industry segments, 
geographic areas, and major customers. 
 
Customers and Applications 
 

Our broad range of products is used by a diversified OEM customer base in a variety of applications including 
communications networking, medical imaging, industrial automation and military systems. In fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 
2001, no one customer equaled or exceeded 10% of our sales. Most of the Communications and Enterprise Group’s 
customers are OEM’s serving the telecommunications or business-computing markets. They use our products in applications 
such as wireless base station controllers, optical switches, routers and network monitoring and security applications.  The 
Commercial and Government Group’s customers are primarily OEM’s building products that are used in semiconductor 
manufacturing, industrial automation, medical imaging, military and aerospace, and entertainment applications, or customers 
using our products in applications such as mission critical components in fighter aircraft and ground vehicles, flight and 
ground simulation, electronic system test solutions, and data link and command and control applications.  Examples of these 
products include semiconductor manufacturing equipment, CT scan and MRI equipment, automotive manufacturing and test 
equipment, test and measurement equipment, industrial automation equipment, aircraft flight simulators, and audio mixing 
and video authoring equipment, systems and equipment for military aircraft, military ground vehicles, navy vessels, telemetry 
equipment, and space exploration applications.  
 
Sales and Marketing 
 

We market our products both domestically and internationally utilizing a combination of direct employee sales 
personnel, independent manufacturers’ representatives, and distributors. As of September 1, 2003, we had 91 employees, 
who typically hold engineering degrees, in sales, marketing and customer relations, 16 U.S.-based independent 
manufacturers’ representatives and 36 distributors located outside the U.S.  Within North America, our direct employee sales 
personnel are deployed regionally throughout the U.S. and Canada as sales specialists in our traditional markets. Also, we 
had one direct sales employee located in the United States and one located in Canada, who support our sales and distribution 
channels in the Asia Pacific region. Within Europe, as of September 1, 2003, we had one direct sales employee located in 
each of the United Kingdom, Sweden, and France, and four in Germany. Domestically and internationally, the direct 
employee sales personnel are supported by field application engineers, who provide pre-sale technical support to our 
customers, and business development personnel, who specialize in our traditional markets of commercial, government and 
communications. We serve a diverse set of large and small customers.  In order to gain access to this diverse customer base, 
we use all available selling channels.  Domestically, the direct employee sales personnel generally sell to the larger OEM 
accounts, while manufacturers’ representatives sell to the smaller accounts.  Internationally, our direct employee sales 
personnel sell to the larger OEM accounts, and independent distributors sell to the smaller accounts.  All quoting, pricing and 
final order acceptance for all sales are controlled by the responsible product line manager.    
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We maintain our primary sales offices in Albuquerque, New Mexico, Raleigh, North Carolina, Mansfield, 
Massachusetts, St. Paul, Minnesota, Waterloo, Ontario, Canada and Augsburg, Germany.  Sales and sales leads are generated 
through a range of activities, including direct sales calls, identification of participants in key defense and government related 
programs, participation in numerous trade shows, direct mail catalogs, advertisements in leading trade publications, and our 
web site. 
 
Research and Development 
 

We invest in research and development programs to develop new products in related markets and to integrate state of the 
art technology into existing products. As of September 1, 2003, we had approximately 163 employees engaged in research 
and development activities. Of these employees, 79 have technical degrees and 34 have advanced degrees. We seek to 
combine special-purpose hardware, firmware and software in our products to provide our customers with the desired 
functionality. Our research and development expense was $18.1 million, $18.5 million, and $20.1 million in fiscal year 2003, 
2002 and 2001, respectively, corresponding to 15.6%, 15.5% and 10.7% of sales, respectively. 
 

We have several trademarks and have filed applications for other trademarks as described in the Introduction above. 
However, we have generally sought only limited patent protection for our technology. Currently, we have only five U.S. 
patents issued and two Canadian patents issued, expiring December 2013 through June 2021, and one U.S. patent pending.  
We primarily rely on trade secrets for protection of our intellectual property and believe that future financial performance is 
much more dependent on the timely introduction of new products and technology and our customer relationships than 
protection of our intellectual property. 
 

During fiscal year 2003, our research and development efforts concentrated on introducing new products and 
technologies and on improving existing technology.  For the commercial and government markets, our focus was on 
releasing new boards such as the STANAG 3910 VME board. In addition, we introduced a new graphics product line, with 
the first product being the Sentiris 4110, a conduction cooled high performance graphics PMC card based on the NVidia 
graphics chip. Also, we introduced a ½ATR conduction cooled VME chassis, a custom ATR chassis, and three additional 
custom chassis. The research and development efforts targeted at the government market also were heavily focused on 
developing military systems, including several versions of flight computers for avionics.  For the single board computer 
product line, we developed the CM4, a 3U PowerPC based CompactPCI product, in both commercial and conduction cooled 
formats. Also, we released an updated VG4 PowerPC based VME board and a dual PowerPC version called the VG5. In the 
Intel product line, we released a new version of the CL7 Pentium III board and six custom versions of Intel CompactPCI and 
VME boards. We continued to expand the Ethernet and Fibre Channel offerings by developing eight new PCI-x/PMC boards, 
a new dual channel 2Gb Fibre Channel PMC card, and a conduction cooled Fibre Channel card. In addition, we released two 
new Ethernet switches and an eight port Ethernet hub for military applications.  New technology developments included a 
conduction cooled 3U CompactPCI 1394 card and a conduction cooled PMC audio card. Additionally, we developed new 
products based on the Infiniband® architecture, including an 8 port Infiniband® switch and a PCI Infiniband® host adapter 
card. Developments in software included release of support for the LynxOS operating system for PowerPC and Intel based 
single board computers. Also, we completed the Ready Driver program for VxWorks. Ready Driver is an SBS program to 
develop I/O drivers for a real time operating system to assure interoperability between I/O boards and single board 
computers.  New products continue to be designed for launch in the coming year, including new higher performance single 
board computers in single and dual processor models, high bandwidth input-output connectivity device, and integrated 
avionics platforms. 

 
During fiscal year 2003, we responded to continuing shifts in demand and technology trends of the communications 

market.  Our research and development efforts concentrated on both increasing the breadth of products available and 
evaluating new technologies to compete in a broader portion of this market.  We expanded our PowerPC processor portfolio 
to include a new PPC 750FX (Palomar 500), a high performance product for low cost applications.  Also, we introduced the 
MAXIM 524-T1R-F and the MAXIM 524-E1R-F WAN PMC adaptors to our popular 520 series of products.  We also 
completed development of the next generation Voice over ATM Blade, which supports AAL1, AAL2 and AAL5 with 
automatic protection switching software.  New products continue to be designed for launch in the coming year.  We expect 
these to increase the ease in which our broad selection of WAN I/O and processor PMC technologies can be embedded in 
communication equipment based on PIGMG 2.16 and PICMG 3 standards.  As an example, we are completing a new High-
Density T1/E1 Blade for 32 port T1/E1 monitoring on the CPCI bus.  This new Blade will incorporate the new Palomar 500.       
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Suppliers 
 

We use contract manufacturing to produce substantially all of our U.S.-built board-level products. We obtain parts from 
large electronics parts suppliers and printed circuit boards from printed circuit board manufacturers and provide these parts 
and boards as kits to contract manufacturing companies that fabricate our products. Following manufacturing, we perform 
test, packaging and support functions for our products. On June 12, 2003, we announced that we would be closing our 
Carlsbad, California facility and consolidating its manufacturing operations into our St. Paul, Minnesota facility, centralizing 
all manufacturing in the United States.  This consolidation was completed in August, 2003.  We now have two manufacturing 
facilities, St. Paul, Minnesota and Mindelheim, Germany. We have begun complete turnkey outsourcing to contract 
manufacturers, although it is for a small portion of our total production.  We reduce our dependence on a single contract 
manufacturer by using multiple contract manufacturers for many of our products.  
 

Our German operation manufactures approximately 70% of its board-level products at its facility in Mindelheim, 
Germany, using contract manufacturers for its OEM production business and certain ruggedized and military applications. 
 
Competition 
 

The embedded computer industry is highly competitive and fragmented, and our competitors differ depending on product 
type, company size, geographic market and application type. Consolidation within the communications, capital equipment 
and defense industries has resulted in increased competition and may result in an increase in pricing pressure across our 
product lines. We believe we differentiate ourselves from our competition based on the following: 

 
 broad product line, 
 willingness to adapt products to customer needs (customization), 
 after sale support, and 
 maintaining long-term customer relationships. 

 
Our competition in each of our product lines is described below. 
 
Our CPU product line competes against other suppliers of CPU boards based on PowerPC and Intel microprocessor 

technology, including Motorola, Inc., Force Computers, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Solectron Corporation), RadiSys 
Corporation, Performance Technologies, Incorporated, Kontron AG, GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, and others. In the 
ruggedized computer board and system market primarily serving military customers, our main competitors are DY4 Systems, 
a business unit of Force Computers, Inc. (a subsidiary of Solectron Corporation), and Radstone Technologies PLC.   

 
Our WAN I/O products compete with other suppliers of similar products within the embedded computer market. They 

include companies such as Performance Technologies, Incorporated, Interphase Corporation, and SBE, Inc.  
 
Our general purpose I/O products are standards-based I/O modules for technologies such as Ethernet, Fibre Channel, 

Serial, and others. Among our competitors for these products are Acromag, Inc., Systran, Inc., GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, 
and a few small companies. Our computer expansion unit product line competes directly with Mesa Ridge Technologies, Inc. 
dba Magma (a subsidiary of Mobility Electronics, Inc.) and indirectly with personal computer manufacturers that offer 
specialized computer motherboards with increasing numbers of PCI slots.  Specialized products such as bus adapters and 
dataBLIZZARD have no direct competitors.  Our InfiniBand technology products compete with Infinicon Systems, Inc., and 
a number of small start-up companies serving that market.  

 
Our avionics interface products compete with those of other companies such as Ballard Technologies, Inc., Data Devices 

Corporation, Excalibur Technologies Corporation, Condor Engineering, Inc. and Gesellschaft Fur Angewandte Informatik 
und Mikroelekemik GmbH.  Our telemetry products compete with suppliers such as AVTECH Systems, Inc., L3 
Communications, Inc. and the Veridian Systems division of Veridian Corporation. 

 
SBS Canada designs FPGA computing products that apply FPGA technology to processing applications often associated 

with DSP boards or single board computers.  We compete with companies offering these technologies like Mercury 
Computer Systems, and SKY Computers, Inc., a subsidiary of Analogic Corporation, imaging companies such as Matrox 
Graphics Inc., as well as a few small companies with FPGA products such as Annapolis Micro Systems, Inc. 

 
Our systems and enclosure products compete with other suppliers of special purpose PC and CompactPCI platforms, 
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enclosures and turnkey systems, such as Force Computers, Inc., RadiSys Corporation and Motorola, Inc. 
 

Employees 
 

As of September 1, 2003, we had approximately 417 employees at our eight locations: Albuquerque, New Mexico; 
Newark, California; Raleigh, North Carolina; St. Paul, Minnesota; Mansfield, Massachusetts; Waterloo, Ontario, Canada; and 
Augsburg and Mindelheim, Germany. Of these employees, 61 were in executive and administrative positions; 91 were in 
sales, marketing and customer relations; 163 were in research and development; 91 were employed in support of ongoing 
production, and 11 were employed on a part-time basis. 
 
Risk Factors 
 

Statements in this Report about the outlook for our business and markets, such as projections of future performance, 
statements of management’s plans and objectives, and forecasts of market trends and other matters, are forward-looking 
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s actual results may differ materially from the results discussed 
in the forward-looking statements. Factors that may cause such a difference, and may impact our future financial 
performance, include, but are not limited to, those discussed below: 
 

SBS’ period to period sales and operating results have fluctuated, and may continue to fluctuate significantly, which 
has caused, and may continue to cause, volatility in the market price for its common stock.  Our Company has experienced 
fluctuations in its period to period sales and operating results in the past, and management expects that fluctuations will occur 
in the future.  Our sales, on both an annual and a quarterly basis, can fluctuate as a result of a variety of factors, many of 
which are beyond our control and which we may not be able to predict.  These factors include: 
 
 the timing and volume of customer orders and delays, 
 success in achieving design wins in which our products are designed into those of our customers, 
 manufacturing delays,  
 delays in shipment due to component shortages,  
 cancellations of orders,  
 changes in the mix of products sold, 
 the rate of introduction of new products, 
 ability to maintain appropriate inventory levels, 
 excess or obsolete inventory and changes in valuation of inventory, 
 cyclicality or downturns in the markets served by our customers, including significant reductions in defense, 

communications and capital equipment expenditures, 
 political, legal, regulatory and economic conditions and developments in the areas of the world in which we operate or 

into which we might expand our operations, 
 competition from new technologies and other companies, 
 variations in sales channels, product costs and the mix of products sold, and 
 economic disruptions due to terrorist activity or epidemics.  

 
Because fluctuations in operating results have happened in the past, and may continue to happen in the future, we believe 

that comparisons of the results of our operations for preceding quarters and fiscal years are not necessarily meaningful, and 
that investors should not rely on the results for any one quarter or year as an indication of how the Company will perform in 
the future. Investors should also understand that, if our sales or earnings for any quarter or year are less than the level 
expected by securities analysts or the market in general, the market price for the Company’s common stock has been in the 
past, and may be, in the future, subject to an immediate and significant decline. 
 

SBS’ sales have been, and may to continue to be, significantly reduced due to the currently depressed 
communications and capital equipment markets and may be further limited if anticipated increases in defense spending 
do not occur or if defense spending is reduced or not allocated in a way that benefits us.  We have derived a significant 
portion of our sales from products for communications and capital equipment applications and directly or indirectly from the 
U.S. Department of Defense. The communications and capital equipment markets are characterized by intense competition 
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and rapid technological change. The communications market grew rapidly in the late 1990’s, but is currently experiencing 
prolonged depressed conditions as to which we have no immediate expectations of recovery.  After over a decade of 
downward trends, the current defense budget outlook is one of short-term growth.  However, Congress may not continue to 
approve increased defense funding, and in light of current record U.S. government budget deficits, may elect to reduce or 
defer defense spending.  Any increased funding may not be available for hardware procurements or increased research and 
development spending, especially in light of increased expenditures on consumables such as ordnance relating to actual and 
possible conflicts in Afghanistan, Iraq and other locations, and we may not win any contracts funded by any budgetary 
increases.  In addition, significant consolidation in the defense industry has reduced the number of defense contractors, 
resulting in increased competition for companies like SBS in establishing customer relationships with defense contractors. If 
spending by the Department of Defense declines, or if consolidation in the defense industry continues, we may be unable to 
maintain existing customer relationships or establish new relationships with defense contractors. Even if we are successful in 
maintaining existing customers and establishing new customer relationships with defense contractors, sales of our products to 
those customers may be reduced as a result of any Department of Defense spending cutbacks. 
 

SBS must persuade customers to outsource their component needs to grow SBS’ business.  Many of our potential 
customers design and manufacture embedded computer components internally, which they may view as a cost-savings over 
purchasing these components from suppliers like SBS. To increase our sales, we need to persuade them that use of our 
components and services is cost-effective. 
 

Increased market acceptance of our products also depends on a number of other factors, including: 
 

 the quality of our design and production expertise,  
 the increasing use and complexity of embedded computer systems in new and traditional products, 
 the expansion of markets that are served by embedded computers,  
 time to market requirements of our products,  
 the assessment by our customers of direct and indirect cost savings, and 
 our customers’ willingness to rely on us for mission-critical applications. 

 
SBS faces significant competition.  The embedded computer industry is highly competitive and fragmented. Our 

competitors differ depending on product and market type, company size, geographic market and application type. We face 
competition in each of our operating segments. 
 

Competition in all of our operating segments is based on:  
 
 performance,  
 time-to-market,  
 customer support,  
 product longevity, 
 existing customer relationships, 
 supplier stability,  
 price, 
 breadth of product offerings, and  
 reliability.  

 
Many of our existing and potential competitors are companies larger than we are that have a number of significant 

advantages over us, including: 
 
 significantly greater financial, technological and marketing resources, giving them the ability to respond more quickly to 

new or changing opportunities, technologies and customer requirements, 
 established relationships with customers or potential customers, which can make it harder for us to sell our products to 

those customers, 
 a longer operating history, and  
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 more extensive name recognition and marketing capability.  
 

In addition, existing or potential competitors may establish cooperative relationships with each other or with third 
parties, or adopt aggressive pricing policies to gain market share. 
 

Because of increased competition, we might encounter significant pricing pressures across our product lines. These 
pricing pressures could result in significantly lower average selling prices and reduced profit margins for our products. We 
may not be able to offset the effects of any price reductions with an increase in the number of our customers, cost reductions 
or otherwise. We cannot assure investors that we will be able to compete effectively in our current or future markets. 
 

If SBS does not persuade OEM’s to use its products instead of those of other suppliers, SBS’ sales could be harmed.  
Our sales depend, in part, on our ability to obtain and maintain design wins for our products from OEM’s. OEM’s that do not 
currently integrate our components into their products may not be willing to purchase components from us because the cost 
of integrating new components into their products may be more expensive than continuing to use existing components. 
OEM’s currently using our components may elect to use another supplier’s components if the other supplier’s designs are 
superior to our designs. Also, OEM’s currently integrating our components may redesign their products in a manner that no 
longer requires our components. If we fail to maintain existing design wins or to achieve new design wins, our sales could be 
reduced. 

 
SBS might have to expend substantial funds to redesign its technology because of changes in industry standards, 

customer preferences or technology.  Most of our products are developed to meet industry standards that define the basis of 
compatibility in operation and communication of a system supported by different vendors. These standards are continuing to 
develop. If these standards are eliminated or changed, the design of our products could be inappropriate or obsolete, and we 
could be required to undertake costly redesign and research and development efforts. Our sales also depend in part on the 
ability to develop state of the art products that comport with changing customer preferences. We may, or may not, be 
successful in developing these products in a timely manner, or in selling the products we develop. Our sales could 
significantly decrease, and our products could become obsolete, if we fail to adapt timely to changing industry standards, 
advances in technology, or customer preferences. 
 

If SBS’ sales do not increase, or if they decline, SBS could experience difficulty in obtaining debt or equity financing.  
Contraction and declines in the markets we serve has had and may continue to have an adverse impact on our sales and 
income.  We currently do not have any bank credit facility in place.  We may require external financing in the future, and that 
financing may not be available on terms acceptable to management or at all.  In addition, continuing losses would likely 
impede our ability to raise funds through the sale of debt or equity securities.   

 
SBS purchases many of the components it uses from third party suppliers who may discontinue or change their 

products or have insufficient supply.  Many of our products contain state-of-the-art electronic components. We depend upon 
third parties for our supply of many of these components. We obtain some of these components from a sole supplier or a 
limited number of suppliers, for which alternate sources may be difficult to locate. We have experienced, and may experience 
in the future, component part shortages, and we have in the past built, and may in the future build, inventory of these 
components. Moreover, suppliers may discontinue or upgrade some of the products incorporated into our products, which 
could require us to redesign a product to incorporate newer or alternative technology. Our inventory of component parts may 
become obsolete, which has in the past and may in the future result in write-downs.  Although we believe that we have 
arranged for an adequate supply of components to meet our short-term requirements, we do not have contracts for all 
components that would assure availability and price. If sufficient components are not available when we need them, our 
product shipments could be delayed, which could adversely affect our sales during certain periods as well as lead to customer 
dissatisfaction. If enough components are not available, we might have to pay premiums for parts in order to make shipment 
deadlines. Paying premiums for parts or building inventory of scarce parts, or having our existing inventory become obsolete, 
could lower or eliminate our profit margin, reduce our cash flow, and otherwise harm our business. 

 
SBS uses contract manufacturers to produce substantially all of its U.S.-built board-level products and so is 

dependent on their timeliness, quality, and availability.  We obtain parts from large electronics parts suppliers and printed 
circuit boards from printed circuit board manufacturers and provide these parts and boards as kits to contract manufacturing 
companies that fabricate our products.  Many of the contract manufacturers we utilize are small companies with limited 
capital resources.  We reduce dependence on a particular contract manufacturer by using multiple contract manufacturers for 
many of our products, although there is no assurance that we will not experience delays in obtaining product from contract 
manufacturers.  If it becomes necessary for us to move our production to new contract manufacturers due to non-performance 
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by current contract manufacturers, additional delays in obtaining product could be incurred, as qualifying new contract 
manufacturers is costly and time-consuming.  If we are unable to meet our customers’ delivery requirements due to delays in 
obtaining product from contract manufacturers, our sales and results of operations could be materially reduced.  

 
SBS is often required to incur substantial expense and development time well in advance of sales, requiring accurate 

gauging of future market demand.  Our business depends upon continually introducing new and enhanced products and 
solutions for business needs. The development or adaptation of products and technologies requires us to commit financial 
resources, personnel and time well in advance of sales. In order to compete, our decisions with respect to those commitments 
must accurately anticipate both future demand and the technology that will be available to meet that demand.  In addition, our 
customers typically require several months to test and evaluate our products before designing their products to incorporate 
our components. Once our customers have decided to use our components, they may require several more months to begin 
volume production of products incorporating these components. Because of this lengthy sales cycle, we may experience 
delays from the time we increase our operating expenses and our investments in inventory until the time that we generate 
sales from these components. We may never generate sales from components after incurring development expenses if our 
customers decide not to purchase them. Even if our customers select our components to incorporate into their products, our 
customers may not be able to market or sell their products successfully. 
 

SBS is subject to order and shipment uncertainties that could harm its operating results.  We typically sell our 
products pursuant to purchase orders that customers can cancel or defer on short notice without incurring a significant 
penalty. Cancellations or deferrals could cause us to hold excess inventory that may not be salable to other customers at 
commercially reasonable terms, which could reduce our profit margins, require inventory write downs, and restrict our ability 
to fund our operations. 

 
SBS has limited patent protection covering its technology, and we may not be able to protect its intellectual property. 

Disputes could be expensive.  Our success depends, in part, on our ability to develop and protect our intellectual property. 
We have sought only limited patent protection for our technology. We currently have five U.S. patents and two Canadian 
patents issued and one U.S. patent pending.  The bulk of the intellectual property on which we depend is unpatented.  We 
cannot guarantee that our pending patent will be issued, or that if issued, our pending or existing patents will be enforced in a 
court of law if challenged. Patent applications in the United States are not publicly disclosed until the patents are issued. 
Therefore, undisclosed U.S. patent applications that relate to our products and technology may have been filed. Also, we 
cannot be certain that foreign patents have not or will not be issued that would harm our ability to commercialize our current 
and future products. Even as we obtain certain patent protection for our intellectual property, third parties could 
independently develop and patent equivalent or superior products or technology, in which case we may be required to obtain 
licenses to that technology from those parties, reducing our profit margins. 
 

In addition to patent rights, we rely upon trade secret laws, industrial know-how and employee confidentiality 
agreements to protect our intellectual property. Third parties or employees may breach our agreements with them or 
otherwise attempt to disclose, obtain or use our products and technologies. Further, if consultants, employees and other 
parties apply technological information developed independently, by them or others, to our projects, disputes may arise as to 
the proprietary rights to that information. Those disputes may not be resolved in our favor. 
  

We may not be able to obtain court enforcement of our agreements, which would leave us with inadequate remedies to 
protect our intellectual property rights. This is particularly true in foreign countries, where laws or law enforcement practices 
often do not protect intellectual property as fully as in the United States. 

 
We enter into contracts with OEM’s which typically provide for broad indemnification of the OEM’s against allegations 

of infringements of intellectual property rights arising from our products, including costs of defense.  We do not carry 
insurance covering any such claims.  Any such claim or claims could materially adversely affect the Company’s financial 
condition. 

 
We may have to litigate to enforce or defend our intellectual proprietary rights. In addition, companies frequently sue 

other companies as a means of delaying the introduction of a competitor’s products or technologies. Any litigation, regardless 
of outcome, including any interference proceeding to determine priority of inventions, oppositions to patents in foreign 
countries, or litigation against us or any OEM indemnified by us under our contract with the OEM, may be costly and time 
consuming. Further, if it were ultimately determined that our claimed intellectual property rights are unenforceable, or that 
our products infringe on the rights of others, we may be required to pay past royalties or obtain licenses to use technologies. 
We may not be able to obtain licenses for these technologies on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. 
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SBS’ success depends, in part, on its ability to identify and to acquire and successfully integrate new businesses.  A 

major element of our business strategy is to pursue acquisitions that either expand or complement our business. We have 
increased the scope of our operations through eleven acquisitions since 1992, including the June 2003 acquisition of Avvida 
Systems. Where business conditions permit, we intend to continue to pursue actively acquisition opportunities, including 
some that could be material and that may become available in the near future. This acquisition strategy may pose additional 
risks to us, including: 

 
 We might not be able to identify or acquire acceptable acquisition candidates on favorable terms, and in a timely manner. 
 Our management and financial controls, personnel, and other corporate support systems might not be adequate to 

manage the increase in the size and the diversity of scope of our operations as a result of acquisitions and to integrate 
effectively acquired businesses. 

 Our acquisitions might not increase revenue or earnings, and the companies acquired might not continue to perform at 
their historical or anticipated levels. 

 We may use cash for acquisitions that would otherwise be available to fund our operations or to use for other corporate 
purposes. 

 Our shareholders may experience dilution if we use the Company’s capital stock to pay for acquisitions. 
 Our debt burden will increase as a result of any borrowings we may make to pay for acquisitions. 

 
SBS may need to raise additional capital to fund its operations and to complete acquisitions.  We depend on cash flow 

from operations to fund our operations and pay for our acquisitions. If we experience decreased sales, increased expenses, or 
a combination of the two, we may need to raise additional capital to fund our operations or acquire other businesses. If we 
decide to do so, we could attempt to issue debt securities or capital stock. We may not be able to sell these securities under 
then current market conditions. Even if we were successful in finding buyers for our securities, the buyers could demand 
commercially unreasonable terms. For example, if we had to sell debt securities, we might be forced to pay high interest rates 
or agree to onerous operating covenants, which could in turn harm our ability to operate our business by reducing our cash 
flow and increasing restrictions on our operating activities. If we were to sell the Company’s capital stock, we might be 
forced to sell shares at a depressed market price, which could result in substantial dilution to our existing shareholders. In 
addition, any shares of capital stock we may issue may have rights, privileges, and preferences superior to those of our 
common shareholders. If we are unable to raise additional capital on commercially reasonable terms, we may be required to 
reduce our operations and delay or terminate any potential acquisitions plans, which would harm our ability to grow. 

 
SBS’ future results are subject to the efficiency of its past and future consolidation efforts.  We have consolidated 

operations in the past, including Communications and Enterprise Group operating facilities previously based in Madison, 
Wisconsin, and Carlsbad, California.  These consolidations included moving manufacturing, testing and support functions to 
the St. Paul, Minnesota, facility, and moving certain product design functions to the Mansfield, Massachusetts and Raleigh, 
North Carolina facilities.  We may elect to consolidate other operations in the future.  Failure to effect a consolidation 
efficiently could result in missed customer deliveries, higher costs, reductions in quality, and lost productivity on other 
important projects, any of which could adversely affect our future results of operations. 

 
SBS’ earnings have been, and could continue to be, adversely affected because of charges resulting from acquisitions, 

or an acquisition could reduce shareholder value.  As part of our strategy for growth, we acquire compatible businesses. In 
accounting for a newly acquired business, we are, in many cases, required to amortize, over a period of years, certain 
identifiable intangible assets. Although usually the acquired business’ current operating profit offsets the amortization 
expense, a decrease in the acquired business’ operating profit could reduce our overall net income and earnings per share. 
Changes in future markets or technologies may require us to amortize intangible assets faster and in such a way that our 
overall financial condition or results of operations are harmed.  If economic and/or business conditions decline in the future, 
we may incur impairment charges against earnings which could be significant.  We may also be required, under accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, to charge against earnings upon consummation of an 
acquisition the value of an acquired business’ technology that does not meet the accounting definition of “completed 
technology.” Acquired businesses could also reduce shareholder value if they generate a net loss or require invested capital. 

 
SBS may expend resources without receiving benefit from strategic alliances with third parties.  From time to time, we 

may enter into strategic alliances to deliver solutions to our customers. These alliances are typically formed to provide 
products or services that we do not provide in our core businesses. We may expend capital and resources on these alliances 
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but may not receive any immediate or long-term return or economic benefit from them. 
 
SBS depends on its employees for success.  Our ability to maintain our competitive position and to develop and market 

new products depends, in part, upon our ability to retain key employees and to recruit and retain additional qualified 
personnel, particularly engineers. Competition for qualified employees in the computer industry is intense. The closure of the 
Carlsbad, California facility and the consolidation of Communications and Enterprise Group functions into facilities located 
in St. Paul, Minnesota, Mansfield, Massachusetts and Raleigh, North Carolina will require timely hiring of new competent 
employees.  If we are unable to retain and recruit key employees, our product development and marketing and sales could be 
harmed. 

 
SBS is subject to significant product liability risk.  Our products and services could subject us to product liability or 

government or commercial warranty claims. We maintain primary product liability insurance for our non-aviation products 
with a general aggregate limit of $1.0/$2.0 million per occurrence and a $50.0 million excess umbrella policy. We maintain, 
for our aviation products, a $100.0 million liability insurance policy, per occurrence. Our products are widely used in a 
variety of applications. If a claim is made against us, our insurance coverage might not be adequate to pay for our defense or 
to pay for any award, in which case we would have to pay for it. Also, as a result of the terrorist attacks of September 11, 
2001, the cost of insurance coverage has significantly increased.  In the future, we might not be able to continue our 
insurance coverage at desired levels, for premiums acceptable to us. If a litigant were successful against us, a lack or 
insufficiency of insurance coverage could significantly harm our financial condition. 

 
SBS faces political, economic and regulatory risks associated with its international sales and operations not faced by 

businesses operating only in the United States.  We sell our products in countries throughout the world from our United 
States, Canadian and German based operations. We intend to continue to expand our operations and sales outside the United 
States. Our international operations and sales subject the Company to risks not experienced by companies operating only in 
the United States, including: 

 
 increased governmental regulations,  
 export and import controls,  
 political, economic and other uncertainties, including, risk of war, revolution, terrorist attacks, epidemics, expropriation, 

renegotiation or modification of existing contracts, standards and tariffs, and taxation policies, 
 international monetary fluctuations that may make payment more expensive for foreign customers who may, as a result, 

limit or reduce purchases, 
 exposure to different and inconsistent legal standards, particularly with respect to intellectual property, 
 longer accounts receivable collection cycles,  
 trade disputes or new trading policies that could limit, reduce, disrupt or eliminate our sales and business prospects 

outside the United States, and 
 unexpected changes in regulatory requirements that impose multiple conflicting tax laws and regulations. 

 
Exchange rate fluctuations could reduce SBS’ earnings when stated in U.S. Dollars.  Substantially all of our U.S. 

export sales to date have been denominated in United States dollars and substantially all sales generated by our subsidiary 
based in Germany have been denominated in Euros. However, some sales in the future may be denominated in other 
currencies, including the Canadian dollar. Any decline in the value of other currencies in which we make sales against the 
United States dollar, the Canadian dollar or the Euro, or any decline in the value of the Canadian dollar or the Euro against 
the United States dollar, will have the effect of decreasing our consolidated earnings when stated in United States dollars. In 
the future, we may engage in hedging transactions to minimize the effect of the risks associated with these types of currency 
fluctuations; however, such hedging transactions could adversely impact our financial position and results of operations. 

 
SBS’ common stock price can be volatile because of several factors, including a limited public float. During the 

twelve-month period ended June 30, 2003, the sales price of our common stock fluctuated from $12.30 to $5.00 per share. 
We believe that the Company’s common stock is subject to wide price fluctuations because of several factors, including: 

 
 quarterly and annual fluctuations in our operating results,  
 a relatively thin trading market for our common stock, which causes trades of small blocks of stock to have a significant 

impact on the Company’s stock price, 
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 announcements of new technologies by us, our competitors or customers, 
 general conditions in the markets we serve, 
 fluctuations in earnings of our competitors,  
 changes in earnings estimates or investment recommendations by securities analysts,  
 general volatility of the stock markets and the market prices of other publicly traded companies,    
 economic disruptions due to terrorist activity, 
 investor sentiment regarding equity markets generally, including public perception of corporate ethics and governance 

and the accuracy and transparency of financial reporting, and 
 investor sentiment regarding the valuation of technology companies generally. 

 
SBS is subject to credit risk.  Credit risk is inherent in our commercial activities.  Credit risk relates to the risk of loss 

resulting from a customer’s failure to pay in accordance with contractual obligations.  The majority of our sales are on open 
account, typically with 30 to 60 day payment terms without any down payment or security.  Many of our customers and 
potential customers in various markets, including the communications market, have had the credit ratings of their debt 
reduced.  As a result, some of our customers’ creditworthiness may be reduced, which could pose a heightened risk of 
bankruptcy or delayed payment that could affect our earnings and cash flow. 

 
SBS may be vulnerable to the effects of terrorist attacks and acts of war.  We are unable to predict the impact of future 

terrorist attacks and acts of war on our industry and the United States economy as a whole.  The uncertainty associated with 
military activity of the United States and other nations and the risk of future terrorist activity may impact our results of 
operations and financial condition in unpredictable ways. The occurrence or risk of occurrence of future terrorist attacks or 
related acts of war could adversely affect the economy of the United States and other countries.  A lower level of economic 
activity could result in a decline in demand for our products that could adversely affect our sales and earnings and limit our 
future growth prospects. International backlash against United States government policy decisions relating to terrorism may 
result in reluctance in certain foreign countries to buy products from companies like SBS headquartered in the United States.  
The associated uncertainties caused by terrorist attacks and acts of war have resulted in adverse changes in the insurance 
markets.  We have already experienced substantial increases in insurance premium costs.  In the future, if we are unable to 
obtain adequate insurance coverage and experience an uninsured event, or if we incur significant increases in the cost of 
insurance, our future results of operations could be materially impacted.  

 
General business conditions are vulnerable to the effects of epidemics, which could materially disrupt SBS’ 

operations and financial results.  Our Company is vulnerable to the general economic effects of epidemics and other health-
related concerns.  In mid-2003, the outbreak of the SARS epidemic resulted in quarantines and substantial curtailment of 
travel and business activities for areas as geographically diverse as China and Toronto, Ontario.  We believe that many 
growth opportunities for current and future SBS products are located in Asia and other parts of the world where public health 
systems are not considered to be as advanced as in North America and Western Europe.  Further, we have significant 
customers, and significant end-customers of our customers, located in Asia, including China.  Public reports have speculated 
that terrorists or other states or organizations could in the future release biological hazards such as smallpox or anthrax that 
could result in epidemics.  A recurrence of SARS or any other epidemic could substantially reduce or delay regional or 
worldwide demand for our products, or disrupt supply channels, which could materially impact our future results of 
operations. 
 
Item 2.  Properties 

 
We lease office and manufacturing space in Albuquerque, New Mexico, Carlsbad, California, Newark, California, 

Raleigh, North Carolina, St. Paul, Minnesota, Mansfield, Massachusetts, Waterloo, Ontario, Canada, and Augsburg and 
Mindelheim, Germany. Our standard practice is to obtain all of our facilities through operating leases. We maintain an 
insurance plan covering all our facilities and contents. 

 
The Albuquerque, New Mexico leased facility consists of approximately 42,500 square feet located in a multi-floor 

office building. This facility houses certain sales, engineering and support functions for the Commercial and Government 
Group.  The Albuquerque facility also serves as our corporate headquarters.  The lease term runs through June 30, 2005, with 
an option to extend the term for an additional five years. We believe that this facility will be sufficient to serve our needs 
through the term of the lease. 
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Our general purpose I/O engineering team (Commercial and Government Group) is located in Newark, California. The 
facility, which contains approximately 27,000 square feet and is leased for a five-year term expiring November 30, 2004, is a 
one-story, multi-tenant building in a business park.  We are actively attempting to sub-lease this facility, and if successful, 
will move the general purpose I/O engineering team to a smaller facility in the immediate Newark, California area.  

 
Our Intel and PowerPC CPU sales and engineering functions (Commercial and Government Group) are located in 

Raleigh, North Carolina, where we lease approximately 11,700 square feet of a one-story multi-tenant facility.  The lease 
expires January 31, 2008, subject to one option to extend the term of the lease for three additional years.  We believe that this 
facility will be sufficient to serve our needs through the term of the lease. 

 
Our St. Paul, Minnesota facility consists of approximately 43,650 square feet, located in a business park.  This facility 

consists of approximately 18,850 square feet of office space occupied by certain sales, engineering, and support functions for 
the Commercial and Government Group, and 24,800 square feet of manufacturing and warehouse space utilized by our U.S. 
manufacturing center.  The lease expires on January 31, 2006. We believe that this facility will be sufficient to serve our 
needs through the term of the lease. 

 
Our facility, located in Mansfield, Massachusetts is a one-story multi-tenant building in a business park.  The facility 

consists of approximately 31,200 square feet occupied by sales, engineering and support functions for the Communications 
and Enterprise Group.  The lease is for a five-year term expiring on June 14, 2005.  We believe that this facility will be 
sufficient to serve our needs through the term of the lease.   

 
We lease a facility in Carlsbad, California, of approximately 75,200 square feet, located in a business park, consisting of 

approximately 32,000 square feet of office space and approximately 43,200 square feet of test, packaging and support space. 
The lease term is for seven years expiring in April 2006, plus one option to extend the lease for three additional years.  In 
August 2003, we substantially vacated the facility and are actively attempting to sublet this location.   

 
We lease in Waterloo, Ontario, Canada, approximately 19,400 square feet of a two-story multi-tenant building located 

within a business park.  This location includes office space, and engineering, assembly and test facilities for the operations of 
SBS Canada (Commercial and Government Group).  The lease term expires November 30, 2006, subject to one option to 
extend the term of the lease for five additional years.   We also have a right of first refusal to expand into any adjacent 
unoccupied portions of the building during the term of the lease.  We believe that this facility will be sufficient to serve our 
needs through the term of the lease. 

 
We lease in Augsburg, Germany, a six-floor building, consisting of approximately 30,000 square feet of office, test, 

packaging and support areas for the operations of KG (Commercial and Government Group). The lease has a term of ten 
years expiring December 31, 2005. We believe that the facility is sufficient to serve our needs through the term of the lease.  

 
We lease in Mindelheim, Germany approximately 6,200 square feet of a single-story multi-tenant building located within 

a business area, consisting of approximately 1,200 square feet of office space and approximately 5,000 square feet of 
manufacturing and warehouse space for our ortec operations.  The lease term expires August 31, 2008, subject to one option 
to extend the term of the lease for five additional years.  We believe this facility will be sufficient to serve our needs through 
the term of the lease.   

 
Item 3.  Legal Proceedings 
 

We are subject to various claims that arise in the ordinary course of our business. In our opinion, the amount of ultimate 
liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect our financial position, results of operations, or liquidity. We 
are not a party to, and none of our property is subject to, any material pending legal proceedings.  We know of no material 
proceedings contemplated by governmental authorities.   
 
Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
 

Not applicable.  
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PART II 
 
Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 
 
Market price per share 
 

The Company’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market using the symbol SBSE.  Quarterly market prices 
(as reported on the NASDAQ Stock Market) for the last two fiscal years were: 
 

Fiscal 2003  2002 
Quarters High  Low  High  Low 

First $12.30 $5.00 $20.05  $9.99 
Second 12.00 6.25 17.50  9.94 
Third 9.90 7.06 16.00  11.76 
Fourth 9.94 6.51 15.30  11.51 

 
Record Holders 
 

Based on data provided by SBS’ transfer agent and The Depository Trust Company, management believes that as of 
September 2, 2003, the number of share owner accounts of record, as defined by Rule 12g5-1 of the Exchange Act, was 
approximately 236, at which date the closing market price of SBS’ common stock was $11.26 per share. 
 
Dividends 
 

SBS has not paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock.  Management’s current policy is to retain earnings, if any, 
for use in SBS’ operations and for expansion of the business. No dividend payments are anticipated in the foreseeable future 
(see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis: Liquidity and Financial Condition”).   

 
Unregistered Securities 

 
On June 30, 2003, we issued an aggregate of 386,940 shares of our common stock in connection with the acquisition of 

100 percent of the outstanding common stock of Avvida Holdings Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Avvida Systems Inc.  
The offer and sale of these securities were affected without registration in reliance on the exemption afforded by Regulation S of 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.  We plan to file a registration statement on Form S-3 to register the shares issued on 
June 30, 2003 by December 31, 2003. 
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Item 6.  Selected Financial Data 
 
The following selected financial data for the years ended June 30, 1999 through June 30, 2003 have been derived from 

the audited consolidated financial statements of SBS.  This information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” and the audited consolidated financial statements 
and related notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. 
 

  Years Ended June 30 
   2003  2002 2001 2000 1999 
 (Thousands except per share data) 
Income:    

Sales  $ 115,521 $ 118,856 $ 187,180 $ 128,189 $ 105,999 
Gross profit 57,519  42,628 88,565 67,015 61,518 
Operating income (loss) 2,165  (38,412) 27,736 15,736 18,677 
Net income (loss)  (4,450) (a) (24,360) 17,184 8,903 12,278 

      
Financial Position:      

Working capital  73,187 69,304 75,282 37,535 29,084 
Total assets  128,610 125,648 147,172 133,160 92,008 
Total liabilities  12,503 12,002 13,377 34,146 14,780 
Total stockholders’ equity  116,107 113,646 133,795 99,014 77,228 

      
Per Share Data:      

Net income (loss) per common share: 
Income (loss) before 

cumulative effect of change 
in accounting principle $  0.11 (a) $ (1.67) $ 1.23 $ 0.71 $ 1.05 

Net income (loss)  $ (0.30)  $ (1.67) $ 1.23 $ 0.71 $ 1.05 
      

Net income (loss) per common share – assuming dilution 
Income (loss) before 

cumulative effect of change 
in accounting principle $  0.11 (a) $ (1.67) $ 1.14 $ 0.66 $ 1.00 

Net income (loss)  $ (0.30)  $ (1.67) $ 1.14 $ 0.66 $ 1.00 
      

__________ 

Notes: We have not declared any dividends during the periods presented and we do not expect to pay dividends in the 
foreseeable future. 

 
(a) The fiscal year 2003 summary financial data includes a transitional impairment charge of $6,058,000 (or 

($0.41) per common share), net of tax, reported as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle as 
a result of the Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (SFAS 142), 
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on July 1, 2002.    

 
On August 18, 2000, SBS declared a two-for-one stock split for stockholders of record on September 5, 2000, 

distributed on September 20, 2000. All references to net income per common share, net income per common share-
assuming dilution, common stock, and stockholders’ equity have been restated as if the stock split had occurred as of the 
earliest period presented. 
 

On June 30, 2003, SBS completed the purchase of Avvida Holdings and Avvida Systems (subsequently 
amalgamated under Canadian law into SBS Canada). 
 

On April 12, 2000, SBS completed the purchase of SDL Communications, Inc. (subsequently merged into SBS 
Communications). In connection with the acquisition, SBS recorded a $4.0 million acquired in-process research and 
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development (“IPR&D”) charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000. 
 
On December 20, 1999, SBS completed a pooling of interests transaction with SciTech Inc. (“SciTech”). SciTech 

was subsequently merged into SBS Communications.  SciTech’s historical results did not have a material effect on 
combined financial position or results of operations, therefore the financial position and results of operations of SBS and 
SciTech are combined from October 1, 1999 on a prospective basis. 

 
On August 12, 1998, SBS completed the purchase of VI Computer, Inc. (currently known as SBS Communications). 
 
On July 1, 1998, SBS acquired, through its subsidiary Holding GmbH, a 50.1% interest in or Industrial Computers 

GmbH (currently known as KG) and a 50.2% interest in ortec.  SBS also acquired, through its subsidiary, SBS 
Government, a 100% interest in or Computers, Inc. On December 9, 1998, SBS completed the purchases of the minority 
interests in KG and ortec.  

 
 
Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation 
 
Overview 
 

We design and build open-architecture embedded computer products that enable original equipment manufacturers 
(“OEM”) to serve the commercial, communications, enterprise and government markets. Our products are integrated into a 
variety of applications, including communications networking, medical imaging, industrial automation and military systems. 
Our portfolio includes an extensive line of CPU boards, computer interconnections, avionics, telemetry, and fully integrated 
systems and enclosures. Our objective is to continue to capitalize on our design expertise and customer service capabilities to 
enhance product quality and reduce time to market for OEM customers. We have grown, and intend to continue to do so, 
through a combination of internal growth and acquisitions. We completed eleven acquisitions between 1992 and June 30, 
2003 that broadened our product offerings and customer base. We achieve internal growth by expanding our existing product 
lines through new product development, through increasing penetration of our existing customer base, and by adding new 
customers. 

 
Sales for the year ended June 30, 2003 were $115.5 million, which represents a 2.8% decrease from the $118.9 million 

of sales for fiscal 2002.  Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2003 was $(4.4) million, or net loss per common share – 
assuming dilution of $(0.30).  Included in the determination of net loss in fiscal year 2003 is a transitional goodwill 
impairment charge of $6.1 million (or ($0.41) per common share), net of tax, which is reported as a cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle, as a result of our adoption of SFAS 142 effective on July 1, 2002.  We completed step 2 of 
our transitional impairment analysis during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003 and determined that the carrying values of 
goodwill in the Communications and Enterprise reporting unit and the Commercial reporting unit were in excess of their 
implied fair value as of July 1, 2002.  Additionally, on June 12, 2003, we announced plans to consolidate the 
Communications and Enterprise Group operations, which resulted in the closure of the Company’s Carlsbad, California 
facility in August 2003.  As a result, we recorded employee severance and other consolidation costs of $1.1 million during 
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003.  Including these charges, the total employee severance and consolidation costs for fiscal 
year 2003 were $1.7 million, which incorporates the cost reduction efforts implemented by management in fiscal year 2003.  
See our discussion below in the section titled, “Results of Operations”. 

 
The net loss in fiscal year 2003 compares to a net loss for the year ended June 30, 2002 of ($24.4) million, or net loss per 

common share – assuming dilution of ($1.67).  Our performance during fiscal 2002 was affected by external factors, 
including dramatic changes in the markets we serve, and internal factors, including changes in senior management and 
overall corporate strategy.  The net loss for fiscal 2002 included $15.1 million of inventory write-downs, $13.0 million of 
goodwill and identifiable intangible impairment charges, and $3.2 million of employee severance and consolidation costs.   

 
On June 30, 2003, SBS completed the acquisition of Avvida Systems Inc., based in Waterloo, Ontario, Canada.  Avvida 

specializes in the development of image processing solutions focused on programmable logic, specifically, fully 
programmable gateway array (FPGA) technology used on high performance video, image and data processing solutions.  See 
our discussion below in the section titled, “Recent Acquisitions”. 
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements and related disclosures in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. We use estimates when we account for items such as inventory, allowances for uncollectible 
accounts, depreciation and amortization periods, goodwill and intangible assets, and income taxes (see Note 1 to the SBS’ 
consolidated financial statements). These estimates and assumptions are based upon our continuous evaluation of historical 
results and anticipated future events. Actual results could differ from these estimates under different assumptions or 
conditions. 

 
The Securities and Exchange Commission defines critical accounting polices as those that are, in management’s view, 

most important to the portrayal of SBS’ financial condition and results of operations and those that require significant 
judgments and estimates. We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and 
estimates used in preparing our consolidated financial statements:  

 
 Revenue Recognition.  We recognize revenue from product sales generally upon shipment to customers provided we 

have received a valid purchase order, the price is fixed, title has transferred, collection of the associated receivable is 
reasonably assured, and there are no remaining significant obligations.  Where customer acceptance provisions exist, we 
generally defer revenue recognition until acceptance by the customer unless we demonstrate the product meets the 
customer specified criteria upon shipment provided all other revenue recognition criteria were met. 

 
 Inventory Valuation.  We record inventory write-downs based on estimates of obsolescence or unmarketable inventory, 

taking into account historical usage, forecasted future demand, and general market conditions.  Write-downs may also be 
recorded based on our decision to discontinue the marketing of certain products or product lines.   If our forecasts are 
incorrect, market conditions deteriorate, or we decide to exit other product lines, further inventory write-downs may be 
required which result in an increase to cost of sales and reduced gross profit.  If market conditions or demand are better 
than expected, we may sell inventories that have been previously written down, resulting in reduced or zero cost of sales 
and improved gross profit.  

 
 Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts.  We maintain allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable resulting from the 

failure of our customers to make required payments.  Our estimate is based on, among other things, the aging of accounts 
receivable, historical write-off experience, and the current and projected financial condition of our customers.  If we 
misinterpret the financial condition of our customers or if the financial condition of customers deteriorates, additional 
allowances for uncollectible accounts may be required, which would increase operating costs and reduce operating 
profit. 

 
 Goodwill.  In conjunction with the implementation of SFAS 142 as of the beginning of fiscal year 2003, goodwill is no 

longer amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually. The first step of the goodwill impairment test is a 
comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value. The fair value of a reporting unit is the amount 
which the unit as a whole could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing parties. We conducted a 
transitional goodwill impairment test upon adoption of SFAS 142 as of July 1, 2002, and an annual goodwill impairment 
test as of April 1, 2003.  The goodwill impairment test requires us to identify our reporting units and obtain estimates of 
the fair values of those units as of the testing date.  We estimate the fair values of our reporting units using discounted 
cash flow and public company market multiple valuation models. Those models require estimates of future revenues, 
profits, capital expenditures and working capital for each reporting unit. We estimate these amounts by evaluating 
historical trends, current budgets, operating plans and industry data. A decline in the fair value of any of our reporting 
units below its carrying value is an indicator that the underlying goodwill of the unit is potentially impaired. If that 
occurs, we are required the complete the second step of the goodwill impairment test to determine whether the unit’s 
goodwill is impaired. The second step of the goodwill impairment test is a comparison of the implied fair value of a 
reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying value. An impairment loss is required for the amount which the carrying value of 
a reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. If an impairment loss is recognized, the implied fair value of 
the reporting unit’s goodwill becomes the new cost basis of the unit’s goodwill. 
 
The estimated fair value in our transitional impairment analysis completed in December 2002 for two reporting units was 
less than each respective unit’s carrying value indicating a potential for impairment at the test dates.  Accordingly, we 
performed the required second step of the goodwill impairment test and compared the implied fair value of each 
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reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying value. The implied fair value of the goodwill in both reporting units tested in 
step 2, which was finalized during the quarter ended June 30, 2003, was less than the carrying value.  This resulted in a 
transitional impairment charge of approximately $6,058,000, net of tax, which is reflected as a cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle in SBS’ consolidated financial statements. 

 
The estimated fair value of goodwill in the annual test on April 1, 2003 was determined to be in excess of its carrying 
value, indicating the underlying goodwill was not impaired at that date. We plan to conduct our annual impairment test 
as of April 1 of each fiscal year, when our budgets and operating plans for the forthcoming year are finalized. The timing 
and frequency of our goodwill impairment tests are based on an ongoing assessment of events and circumstances that 
would more than likely reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. We will continue to monitor our 
goodwill balance for impairment and conduct formal tests when impairment indicators are present.  

 
 Long-Lived and Intangible Assets.  We evaluate the carrying value of long-lived and intangible assets whenever certain 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. These events or 
circumstances include, but are not limited to, a prolonged industry or economic downturn, a significant decline in SBS’ 
market value, or significant reductions in projected future cash flows.  An asset is considered to be impaired if future 
undiscounted cash flows, without consideration of interest, are insufficient to recover the carrying amount of the asset.  
Once an asset is deemed impaired, a charge to expense is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset 
exceeds fair value.  Fair value is generally determined by calculating the discounted future cash flows using a discount 
rate based upon our weighted average cost of capital.  Estimates of future cash flows require significant judgment, and 
any change in these estimates may result in additional impairment charges and reduced operating profits.   

 
 Income Taxes.  Our estimate of current and deferred income taxes reflects our assessment of current and future taxes to 

be paid or received on items reflected in the financial statements, giving consideration to the recoverability of certain of 
the deferred tax assets, which arise from temporary differences between the tax and financial statement recognition of 
revenue and expense.  Estimates of current income taxes include estimates for general business credits, benefits from 
U.S. sales to foreign jurisdictions, and benefits from the utilization of foreign tax credits. Actual income taxes may vary 
from our estimates due to future changes in tax laws or because of a review of our tax returns by taxing authorities, 
which may result in an increase or decrease to income tax expense.  We must also assess the likelihood that we will be 
able to recover our deferred tax assets. If recovery is determined not to be more likely than not, we must increase our 
provision for taxes by recording a reserve, in the form of a valuation allowance, for the deferred tax assets that we 
estimate will not ultimately be recoverable. As of June 30, 2003, we believe that all of our recorded deferred tax assets 
will ultimately be recovered. However, should there be a change in our ability to recover the deferred tax assets, our tax 
provision would increase in the period we determine that recovery is no longer more likely than not.  

 
Recent Acquisitions 

 
SBS completed the acquisitions described below during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. The acquisitions 

have been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, and the results of operations of the acquired companies 
have been combined with SBS’ since the respective dates of acquisition. The purchase price has been allocated to the 
underlying assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values with goodwill, if any, representing the 
excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired.   

 
On June 30, 2003, SBS acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of Avvida Holdings Corp. and its wholly-

owned subsidiary, Avvida Systems Inc. (Avvida), located in Waterloo, Canada.  Avvida provides image processing solutions to 
customers serving a wide variety of applications. Avvida’s focus is emerging programmable logic, including fully 
programmable gateway array (FPGA) technology utilized in high performance video, image and data processing solutions.  
We plan to incorporate FPGA technology into existing and future products across all SBS product lines.   

 
The aggregate purchase price of $6.2 million, including acquisition costs of $0.6 million, was paid in cash and shares of SBS 

common stock valued at $3,574,020.  The value of the 386,940 shares of SBS common stock was determined based on the 
average market price of SBS’ common shares over the two-day period before and after the terms of the acquisition were agreed to 
and announced.  The purchase price was allocated to the underlying assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their 
estimated fair values.  In conjunction with the purchase price allocation, the estimated fair value of identifiable intangible 
assets, specifically a core technology asset valued at $970,000 and a covenant not-to-compete valued at $1.2 million, was 
based on an assessment of their fair value determined by management, and goodwill of approximately $3.5 million was 
recorded which is not deductible for tax purposes.  The identifiable intangible assets will be amortized over a period of 5 
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years based on the estimated economic useful life of the core technology asset and the contractual period of the covenant.   
 
 
The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 have been 

prepared as if the acquisition of Avvida had occurred on July 1, 2002.  Accordingly, the weighted average shares used in the pro 
forma per share data were increased to reflect the shares issued in the acquisition.  Pro forma results of operations for 2002 are not 
presented as Avvida’s results of operations in fiscal 2002 were not material to SBS’ consolidated results of operations. 

 
Thousands (except per share amounts)   

Sales  $ 116,178 

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  $        207 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  (6,058) 
Net loss  $    (5,851) 
   
Per share – assuming dilution:   

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  $       0.01 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  (0.40) 
Net loss  $      (0.39) 

 
The pro forma information is presented for informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the results of 

operations that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been consummated on July 1, 2002, nor is it intended 
to be a projection of future results. 

 
On March 4, 2002, SBS completed the acquisition of certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Essential 

Communications, a division of publicly held Intrusion, Inc., for approximately $1.0 million in cash.  Founded in 1992, 
Essential develops and delivers early stage InfiniBand products.  SBS utilizes Essential’s InfiniBand product expertise and 
industry relationships to build on its current InfiniBand efforts in the enterprise server and storage markets.  The purchase 
price has been allocated to the underlying assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values.  In 
conjunction with the purchase price allocation, SBS recorded approximately $364,000 of identifiable intangibles, principally 
core-technology assets, which are being amortized over a two-year period.  No goodwill was recorded.   
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Results of Operation 
 

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated certain operating data, including balances as a percentage of 
sales: 

 
(dollars in thousands) Years ended June 30 
 2003 % 2002 % 2001 % 

Sales  $115,521 100.0 $118,856 100.0 $187,180 100.0 
Cost of sales  58,002  50.2 76,228 64.1 98,615 52.7 
     Gross profit  57,519  49.8 42,628 35.9 88,565 47.3 

Selling, general and administrative expense  33,608 29.1 38,817 32.7 33,031 17.6 
Research and development expense  18,077 15.6 18,461 15.5 20,054 10.7 
Employee severance and consolidation costs  1,729 1.5 3,232 2.7 —  
Impairment of intangible assets  —  13,005 10.9 —   
Goodwill amortization —  4,523 3.8 4,720 2.5 
Amortization of intangible assets  1,940     1.7 3,002 2.5 3,024 1.6 
     Operating income (loss)  2,165 1.9 (38,412) (32.3) 27,736 14.8 

Interest and other income, net  454 0.4 646 0.5 410 0.2 
Interest expense  (20) —  (15) —  (1,071) (0.6) 
Foreign exchange losses (207) (0.2) (29) —  (200) (0.1) 

     Income (loss) before income taxes  2,392 2.1 (37,810) (31.8) 26,875 14.4 
Income tax expense (benefit)  784 0.7 (13,450) (11.3) 9,691 5.2 

Income (loss) before cumulative effect 
of change in accounting principle 1,608 1.4 (24,360) (20.5) 17,184 9.2 

Cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle (6,058) (5.2) —  —  

Net income (loss)  (4,450) (3.8) (24,360) (20.5) 17,184 9.2 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2003 Compared to Year Ended June 30, 2002 
(References to fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002 relate to the fiscal years ended on June 30) 

 
Sales.   For the year ended June 30, 2003, sales decreased 3%, or $3.4 million, from $118.9 million for the year ended 

June 30, 2002, to $115.5 million.  Sales for the Communications and Enterprise Group were down 31%, or $11.2 million, 
from $36.6 million in fiscal 2002, to $25.4 million as we continue to experience the effects of economic and market 
conditions negatively impacting our telecommunications infrastructure customers.  Sales for the Commercial and 
Government Group increased 10%, or $7.9 million, to $90.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2003, from sales for the 
comparable period in fiscal 2002 of $82.3 million.  One of our greatest challenges is a market that is still not demonstrating 
growth. We have seen some signs of economic recovery in our lead generation and quoting activity, but the timing and scale 
of the effects on our business of these early indicators are, at this point, unpredictable.  We believe that both the commercial 
and communications markets bottomed during fiscal year 2003.  Both markets remain very competitive, but we will continue 
to invest in our business development team and in focused R&D so that we can increase our market share. In the government 
market, we believe that opportunities for new systems and applications will continue. We believe that our product portfolio is 
competitive, and that SBS will benefit from those opportunities. We are aggressive in our development activities, and we 
believe that there will be growth in this market, which should contribute to total company sales growth in fiscal year 2004. 
However, should the U.S. defense budget be reviewed in light of the growth in the federal budget deficit or for other reasons, 
U.S. procurement spending may be affected.  

 
Gross Profit. For the year ended June 30, 2003, gross profit increased 35%, or $14.9 million, from $42.6 million for the 

year ended June 30, 2002, to $57.5 million.  The increase in gross profit was primarily due to significant inventory write-
downs and other charges recorded in fiscal 2002.  In fiscal 2002, we recorded $15.1 million of inventory write-downs and 
$185,000 of expenditures associated with our manufacturing consolidation and cost reduction efforts.  The write-downs 
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consisted of inventory associated with programs that were not anticipated to come back to their previous forecasts, inventory 
associated with our decision to exit the legacy PCI chassis product line, inventory associated with products that we will no 
longer market, and reduced demand for certain Communications and Enterprise Group products.  Additionally, the 
implementation of a new inventory management methodology associated with the consolidation of our manufacturing 
operations, contributed to the inventory write-down in fiscal 2002.  The consolidation efforts and new inventory methodology 
resulted in a reduction in required inventory levels.  For these reasons, gross profit as a percent of sales for fiscal 2003 
improved to 49.8% compared with 35.9% for fiscal 2002 (48.7% excluding the $15.3 million of charges noted above).  
During the year ended June 30, 2003, we sold approximately $1.0 million of inventory that had been previously written down 
to zero cost, increasing gross margin as a percentage of sales by 0.9%.  Based on management’s sales projections for fiscal 
2004, gross profit as a percentage of sales is expected to be similar to the percentage experienced in the year ended June 30, 
2003; however, actual results may vary.   

 
Selling, General and Administrative Expense.   For the year ended June 30, 2003, selling, general and administrative 

(SG&A) expense decreased 13.4%, or $5.2 million from $38.8 million for the year ended June 30, 2002, to $33.6 million. 
This decrease was primarily due to the benefits realized from the implementation of cost reduction efforts which began 
during fiscal 2002 and continued in fiscal 2003.  SG&A expense as a percentage of sales decreased to 29.1% in the year 
ended June 30, 2003 from 32.7% in the year ended June 30, 2002, primarily as a result of the cost reduction efforts, partially 
offset by reduced sales levels. 

 
Research and Development Expense.   For the year ended June 30, 2003, research and development (R&D) expense 

decreased 2.1%, or $384,000 from $18.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2002, to $18.1 million.  This decrease was 
primarily due to the cost reduction efforts implemented in both fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002, partially offset by the addition of 
research and development employees resulting from the acquisition of the assets of Essential Communications completed in 
March 2002.  For the year ended June 30, 2003, R&D expense as a percentage of sales remained consistent at 15.6% 
compared with 15.5% in the year ended June 30, 2002. 

 
Employee Severance and Consolidation Costs.  For the year ended June 30, 2003, we recorded employee severance and 

consolidation costs of $1.7 million, which include the following: 
 
 a charge for the impairment of leasehold improvements of approximately $841,000 recorded in the fourth quarter; 

 
On June 12, 2003, we announced that we would be closing our Carlsbad, California facility and consolidating its 
manufacturing operations into our St. Paul, Minnesota facility, centralizing all manufacturing in the United States to 
one facility. This consolidation was completed in August, 2003.  In addition, the results for the quarter ending 
September 30, 2003, will include charges associated with the closure of the Carlsbad, California facility, which we 
estimate will range from $1.1 million to $1.6 million. 

 
 employee severance and related costs of approximately $702,000; and  

 
Due to the economic and market conditions facing our Communications and Enterprise Group, on July 22, 2002, we 
notified 19 full and part-time employees at our Madison, Wisconsin engineering design center that their jobs had 
been eliminated.  Additionally, for the same reason, on September 30, 2002, we notified 22 employees of the 
Communications and Enterprise Group that their jobs were being eliminated.  We also incurred severance costs for 
12 other employees who were notified that their jobs had been eliminated.  As a result of these actions, we incurred 
$412,000 of employee severance costs, of which there were no costs remaining to be paid as of June 30, 2003. 
 
As a result of the June 2003 announcement of the closure of our Carlsbad, California facility, we recorded severance 
and related costs of approximately $290,000, due primarily to the planned reduction of the workforce in August 
2003.  Of this amount, approximately $224,000 was accrued at June 30, 2003 and we expect to pay substantially all 
of these costs during the quarter ending September 30, 2003.  The results for the quarter ending September 30, 2003 
will include the remainder of the severance and related costs associated with the closure of the Carlsbad, California 
facility, which we estimate will be approximately $400,000. 

 
 lease termination costs of approximately $186,000, as a result of our decision to exit certain locations.  

 
These costs compare with total employee severance and related costs of approximately $3.2 million incurred during 

fiscal 2002, as a result of other actions taken by management in response to unfavorable economic and market conditions.  
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Impairment of Intangible Assets. We recorded no intangible asset impairment charges in fiscal 2003, compared to 

impairment charges of $13.0 million recorded in fiscal 2002.  For the year ended June 30, 2002, $2.7 million of the $13.0 
million asset impairment charge represented the write-off of the remaining goodwill recorded in connection with the 
acquisition of SBS Technologies, Inc., Industrial Computers (formerly Micro Alliance) in November 1997.  This write-off 
was the result of SBS’ decision in the quarter ended December 31, 2001 to exit the PCI chassis business.  The remaining 
$10.3 million represented the write-down of goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets associated with the acquisition 
of SDL in April of 2000.  The write-down, which occurred in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, was based on SBS’ projection 
of undiscounted future operating cash flows.  This evaluation indicated that these cash flows were not sufficient to recover 
the carrying amounts of the goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets.  As a result, the impairment charge was 
recorded to the extent that the carrying value exceeded fair value of the assets.  The evaluation was performed as a result of 
continued order cancellations and a continued decline in sales and bookings in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. 

 
Amortization of Goodwill.  There was no goodwill amortization expense in fiscal 2003, whereas goodwill amortization 

amounted to approximately $4.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2002.  Effective July 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS 142 and 
no longer amortize goodwill.  As of the date of adoption, we had unamortized goodwill of approximately $20.5 million, 
subject to the transition provisions of SFAS 142.  Included in the determination of net loss in fiscal 2003 is a transitional 
goodwill impairment charge of $9.5 million ($6.1 million net of income taxes), which is reported as a cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle, as a result of the Company’s adoption of SFAS 142.  We completed step 1 of our transitional 
impairment analysis during the quarter ended December 31, 2002 and noted an indication of potential impairment for two 
reporting units.  Accordingly, we completed step 2 of the required transitional impairment analysis during the fourth quarter 
of fiscal 2003 and determined that the carrying values of goodwill of the Communications and Enterprise reporting unit and 
the Commercial reporting unit (component of the Commercial and Government Group segment) were in excess of their 
implied fair value as of July 1, 2002.  We completed our annual goodwill impairment test for fiscal 2003 as of April 1, 2003 
and found no indication of impairment. 

 
Amortization of Intangible Assets.  For the year ended June 30, 2003, amortization of intangible assets was $1.9 million, 

compared to $3.0 million for the same period of fiscal 2002.  The decrease was primarily due to the intangible asset 
impairment charges recorded during fiscal 2002 discussed previously. 

 
Interest and Other Income, Net.  For the year ended June 30, 2003, net interest and other income of $454,000 consisted 

primarily of interest income associated with surplus cash.   For the year ended June 30, 2002, net interest and other income of 
$646,000 consisted primarily of a recovery from insurance of $307,000, and interest income associated with surplus cash, 
partially offset by a $323,000 charge related to an other-than-temporary decline in our investment in a software company.   

 
Foreign Exchange Losses.  For the year ended June 30, 2003, net foreign exchange losses of $207,000 were principally 

attributable to changes in exchange rates relating to payments made by SBS to a foreign subsidiary for marketing and other 
corporate costs borne by the foreign subsidiary.   For fiscal 2002, net foreign exchange losses were not significant. 

 
Income Tax Expense (Benefit).  For the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, income tax expense (benefit) from 

continuing operations (excluding taxes allocated to the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle of $3.4 
million) represented effective rates of 32.8% and (35.6)%, respectively.  The change in the effective income tax rate was due 
to the impact of a shift in the mix of pre-tax income from domestic and foreign sources coupled with benefits realized from 
tax planning strategies in excess of previous estimates.  We recorded a tax benefit related to the net loss in fiscal 2002 due to 
our ability to realize the benefit through a tax loss carry back to prior periods.   

 
Earnings Per Share.  For the year ended June 30, 2003, income per common share and income per common share – 

assuming dilution, before the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle, was $0.11 compared to a loss per 
common share and a loss per common share – assuming dilution, before the cumulative effect of the change in accounting 
principle, of $(1.67) for the same period in fiscal 2002.   The per share impact of the transitional impairment charge as a 
result of the Company’s adoption of SFAS 142, reported as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in fiscal 
2003, was a loss per common share and a loss per common share – assuming dilution of $(0.41).  For the year ended  
June 30, 2003, net loss per common share and net loss per common share – assuming dilution were $(0.30) compared to 
$(1.67) for the same period in fiscal 2002.    
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Review of Business Segments 
 
We operate internationally through two operating segments: the Communications and Enterprise Group, and the 

Commercial and Government Group.  The Commercial and Government Group consists of SBS Government, SBS 
Commercial, KG, ortec and SBS Canada, aligning similar technologies and selling channels.  The Communications and 
Enterprise Group consists of SBS Communications.  These segments are based on the markets we serve and the products we 
provide to those markets.  Each segment has its own sales and distribution channels and a manager who reports directly to the 
President and Chief Operating Officer. The Commercial and Government Group’s primary focus is to serve customers in the 
medical, semiconductor, aerospace, defense and other commercial markets. The Communications and Enterprise Group 
serves major telecommunications OEM’s and OEM’s that manufacture and distribute business-computing equipment.   

 
The following is a discussion of sales to external customers and segment profit (loss) for each reportable segment. In the 

measure of segment profit (loss) (“Segment Profit (Loss)”), we do not allocate the following to these segments: 
 
 substantially all amortization expense associated with acquisitions,  
 intangible asset impairment charges, 
 substantially all interest income earned on cash balances, and  
 corporate overhead costs, excluding corporate marketing costs. 

Communications and Enterprise Group  

 
Sales to External 

Customers 
Segment           

Loss  
Fiscal 2003  $  25.4 million $ (4.2) million 
Fiscal 2002 $  36.6 million $ (14.4) million 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2003, Communications and Enterprise Group sales to external customers decreased 30.7%, 

or $11.2 million compared to the same period of fiscal 2002.  This decrease was due principally to the economic and market 
conditions negatively affecting this Group.  We continue to experience the effects of reduced booking activities compared to 
prior periods, and delays of existing backlog orders and prior order cancellations by our telecommunications infrastructure 
customers.   

      
For the year ended June 30, 2003, the reduction in the Group’s segment loss was primarily due to significant inventory 

write-downs recorded in fiscal 2002, coupled with lower sales and gross profit, offset partially by reduced R&D expenses in 
fiscal 2003 compared with fiscal 2002.  Total inventory write-downs of $11.7 million recorded in fiscal 2002 were associated 
with programs that were not anticipated to come back to their previous forecasts and with our decision to exit our legacy PCI 
chassis product line.  In fiscal 2003, we recorded employee severance and consolidation costs due to the cost reduction 
efforts implemented in response to the economic and market conditions negatively affecting the Group and the 
announcement, on June 12, 2003, of the closure of our Carlsbad, California facility and the consolidation of its manufacturing 
operations into our St. Paul, Minnesota facility, which we completed in August, 2003.  For these reasons, for the year ended 
June 30, 2003, segment loss as a percent of sales to external customers improved from (39.3)% for the year ended June 30, 
2002 to (16.7)%.  The results for the quarter ending September 30, 2003 will include the balance of the costs associated with 
the closure of the Carlsbad, California facility, estimated to be between $1.5 million and $2.0 million. 

Commercial and Government Group 

 
Sales to External 

Customers 
Segment           

Profit  
Fiscal 2003  $  90.2 million $  19.4 million 
Fiscal 2002 $  82.3 million $  11.7 million 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2003, Commercial and Government Group sales to external customers increased 9.6%, or 

approximately $7.9 million compared to the same period of fiscal 2002. Unit shipments in fiscal 2003 increased for the 
Group’s computer processor products, and decreased slightly from fiscal 2002 levels for general purpose input/output 
products, computer connectivity and expansion products, and avionics and telemetry products.  We believe the uncertainty 
caused by the military activity in the Middle East during the quarter ended March 31, 2003 adversely affected the placement 
of some customer orders.   
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For the year ended June 30, 2003, the increase in segment profit was primarily due to the increase in sales combined with 

a change in sales mix to products with higher gross margins and decreases in SG&A expenses as a result of the cost reduction 
efforts implemented during fiscal 2003 and 2002.  In addition, there were significant inventory write-downs recorded in fiscal 
2002.  In fiscal 2002, a $3.4 million inventory write-down and $185,000 of expenditures associated with our manufacturing 
consolidation and cost reduction efforts were recorded. The inventory write-down in fiscal 2002 consisted of inventory 
associated with products that will no longer be marketed and excess component parts based on the implementation of the new 
inventory management methodology associated with the consolidation of our manufacturing operations.  This was partially 
offset by increased R&D expenses in fiscal 2003 compared with fiscal 2002 resulting from the Essential Communications 
asset acquisition in March 2002.  For the same reasons, for the year ended June 30, 2003, segment profit as a percent of sales 
to external customers improved to 21.6% in fiscal 2003 from 14.2% for the same period of fiscal 2002. 
 
Year Ended June 30, 2002 Compared to Year Ended June 30, 2001 
(References to fiscal 2002 and  fiscal 2001 relate to the fiscal years ended on June 30) 
 

Sales.  In fiscal 2002, sales decreased 36.5%, or $68.3 million, from $187.2 million in fiscal 2001, to $118.9 million.  
Unit shipments declined within the Communications and Enterprise Group, primarily due to depressed market and economic 
conditions, customer order cancellations, and delays of shipment dates by several of the Group’s telecommunications 
infrastructure customers.  Unit shipments of the Commercial and Government Group’s avionics, telemetry and computer 
processor products increased.  Unit shipments of the Group’s general purpose I/O products and computer connectivity and 
expansion unit products declined, due to unfavorable economic and market conditions and delays of shipment dates by 
several customers.   

 
Gross Profit.  In fiscal 2002, gross profit decreased 51.9%, or $46.0 million, from $88.6 million in fiscal 2001, to $42.6 

million. This decrease was primarily due to the decrease in sales combined with $0.2 million of expenditures associated with 
SBS’ manufacturing consolidation and cost reduction efforts, a $12.4 million inventory write-down recorded during the 
second quarter of fiscal 2002, and a $2.7 million inventory write-down recorded during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.  The 
second quarter write-down consisted of inventory associated with programs that are not anticipated to come back to their 
previous forecasts, inventory associated with SBS’ decision to exit our legacy PCI chassis product line, and inventory 
associated with SBS products that will no longer be marketed.  Additionally, the implementation of a new inventory 
management methodology associated with the consolidation of SBS’ manufacturing operations contributed to the inventory 
write-down.  The consolidation efforts included a reduction in the number of material handling employees and inventory 
specialists, a reduction in the amount of floor space for the storage of inventory, and the adoption of a purchasing 
methodology based on projected component part demand to achieve manufacturing and material handling efficiencies.  This 
new methodology calculates the maximum level of inventory to be maintained by comparing historical usage over a fixed 
period of time to forecasted future demand.  The consolidation efforts and new inventory methodology resulted in a reduction 
in required inventory levels.  The fourth quarter write-down was primarily due to reduced demand for certain 
Communications and Enterprise Group products.  As of June 30, 2002, approximately $0.7 million of inventory previously 
written down had been utilized.  Excluding the $15.3 million of charges noted above, for fiscal 2002, gross profit as a 
percentage of sales would have been 48.7%, compared to 47.3% for fiscal 2001. 

 
Selling, General and Administrative Expense.  In fiscal 2002, selling, general and administrative expense increased 

17.5%, or $5.8 million from $33.0 million in fiscal 2001, to $38.8 million. This increase was primarily due to an increase in 
SBS’ sales personnel associated with the realignment of our business, additional corporate personnel, increases in executive 
compensation, relocation expenses for recently hired employees, additional information technology department personnel, 
depreciation and consulting expenses associated with the implementation of SBS’ customer relationship management system, 
additional reserves for accounts receivable due to collection issues, and costs associated with the termination of SBS’ 
proposed acquisition of Interactive Circuit Systems (“ICS”) in the quarter ended December 31, 2001.  This increase, 
combined with the decrease in sales, resulted in an increase in SG&A expense as a percentage of sales to 32.7% in fiscal 
2002 from 17.6% in fiscal 2001.   

 
Research and Development Expense.  In fiscal 2002, research and development expense decreased by 7.9%, or $1.6 

million, from $20.1 million in fiscal 2001, to $18.5 million, primarily due to cost reductions in the Communications and 
Enterprise Group, resulting from depressed business conditions.  In fiscal 2002, research and development expense as a 
percentage of sales increased to 15.5% from 10.7% in fiscal 2001, primarily due to the decrease in sales volume.   In July 
2002, the Communications and Enterprise Group’s Madison, Wisconsin facility was closed, resulting in the termination of 7 
full-time employees and 11 part-time employees.  
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Employee Severance and Consolidation Costs.  In fiscal 2002, SBS recorded employee severance and related costs as 

follows: 
 On April 28, 2002, SBS announced the resignation of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, Grahame 

E. Rance.  During the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SBS recorded approximately $2.0 million of severance and other 
costs related to the Separation Agreement between SBS and Mr. Rance.  

 During the year ended June 30, 2002, because of unfavorable economic and market conditions, facility consolidation 
actions, and the decision to exit the legacy PCI Chassis product line, SBS reduced its employee base, resulting in 
elimination of 159 positions in manufacturing, R&D, administration, and sales and marketing.  On August 14, 2001, SBS 
notified 58 employees that their positions would be eliminated by the end of September 2001.  On December 26, 2001, 
the SBS Board of Directors approved additional reductions, to be completed through March 31, 2002, and SBS notified 
54 employees that their jobs would be eliminated.  On May 21, 2002, SBS announced further reductions, which were 
effective immediately, and notified 47 employees that their jobs had been eliminated.   As a result, for the year ended 
June 30, 2002, we recorded employee severance and other termination charges of approximately $1,253,000.  As of  
June 30, 2002, cash payments of $963,000 were made, $21,000 of the original charge was reversed as a result of the 
decision not to terminate certain originally notified employees, and $269,000 was paid prior to December 31, 2002.  
 
Impairment of Intangible Assets. For fiscal 2002, $2.7 million of the $13.0 million asset impairment charge represented 

the write-off of the remaining goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisition of Industrial Computers (formerly Micro 
Alliance) in November 1997.  This write-off was the result of SBS’ decision in the quarter ended December 31, 2001 to exit 
the PCI chassis business.  The remaining $10.3 million represented the write-down of goodwill and other identifiable 
intangible assets associated with the acquisition of SDL in April of 2000.  The write-down, which occurred in the fourth 
quarter, was based on SBS’ projection of undiscounted future operating cash flows.  This evaluation indicated that these cash 
flows were not sufficient to recover the carrying amounts of the goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets.  As a result, 
the impairment charge was recorded to the extent that the carrying value exceeded fair value of the assets.  The evaluation 
was performed as a result of continued order cancellations and a continued decline in sales and bookings in the fourth quarter.    

  
Interest and Other Income, Net.  In fiscal 2002, net interest and other income of $646,000 consisted primarily of a 

recovery from insurance of $307,000, and interest income associated with surplus cash, partially offset by the fiscal 2002 
second quarter $323,000 write-down related to the other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of SBS’ investment in an 
unrelated software company.  In fiscal 2001, interest income of $410,000 consisted primarily of interest associated with SBS’ 
surplus cash. 

 
Income Taxes.  For fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, income taxes represented effective income tax rates of 35.6% and 36.1%, 

respectively.  A tax benefit related to the loss from operations was recorded in fiscal 2002 primarily due to SBS’ ability to 
realize the benefit through tax loss carrybacks to prior periods. 

 
Earnings per Share.  For fiscal 2002, net loss per common share was $(1.67) compared to net income per share of $1.23 

for fiscal 2001.  For fiscal 2002, net loss per common share – assuming dilution was $(1.67) compared to net income per 
common share – assuming dilution of $1.14 for fiscal 2001. 

 
Review of Business Segments 

 
SBS operates internationally through two operating segments: the Communications and Enterprise Group, and the 

Commercial and Government Group.  These segments are based on the markets we serve and the products we provide to 
those markets.  Each segment has its own sales and distribution channels and has a manager who reports directly to the 
President and Chief Operating Officer.   

 
The following is a discussion of sales to external customers and segment profit (loss) for each reportable segment.  In 

the measure of segment profit or loss, SBS does not allocate to segments: substantially all of the amortization expense 
associated with acquisitions; asset impairment charges; substantially all interest income earned on cash balances; interest 
expense associated with SBS borrowing facilities; acquired in-process research and development charges; and corporate 
overhead costs, excluding sales and marketing costs. 
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Communications and Enterprise Group 
 

 
Sales to External 

Customers 
Segment Profit 

(Loss) 
Fiscal 2002 $  36.6 million $ (14.4) million 
Fiscal 2001 $  92.0 million $  22.1 million 

 
Communications and Enterprise Group sales to external customers in fiscal 2002 decreased 60.2%, or $55.4 million, 

from $92.0 million in fiscal 2001, to $36.6 million. This decrease was primarily due to depressed market and economic 
conditions, customer order cancellations and delays of shipment dates by several of the Group’s telecommunications 
infrastructure customers.   

 
For fiscal 2002, Communications and Enterprise Group segment loss was $(14.4) million, compared to segment profit 

of $22.1 million for fiscal 2001.  This decrease was primarily due to the decrease in sales, severance and other employee 
termination costs, reserves for accounts receivable, a second quarter $9.0 million inventory write-down and a fourth quarter 
$2.7 million inventory write-down.  The second quarter inventory write-down was associated with programs that were not 
anticipated to come back to their previous forecasts and with SBS’ decision to exit our legacy PCI chassis product line.  The 
fourth quarter inventory write-down was due to additional order cancellations and the continued decline in sales and 
bookings.  This decrease was partially offset by a reduction in R&D expenditures resulting from depressed business 
conditions.  In July 2002, SBS closed the Group’s Madison, Wisconsin facility, resulting in the termination of 7 full-time 
employees and 11 part-time employees.  

 
Commercial and Government Group 

 

 
Sales to External 

Customers 
Segment  

Profit  
Fiscal 2002 $  82.3 million $ 11.7 million 
Fiscal 2001 $  95.2 million $ 21.4 million 

 
Commercial and Government Group sales to external customers in fiscal 2002 decreased 13.5%, or $12.9 million from 

$95.2 million in fiscal 2001, to $82.3 million. Sales of the Group’s general purpose I/O products and computer connectivity 
and expansion unit products decreased 33.0%, primarily as a result of unfavorable economic and market conditions and 
several customer delays of shipment dates.  Unit shipments of the Group’s computer processor products increased 6.2%, 
primarily due to the focus on high volume production business in the quarter ended September 30, 2001, and an increase in 
shipments to a customer in the quarter ended June 30, 2002, partially offset by weak demand in the quarters ended  
December 31, 2001 and March 31, 2002.   Unit shipments of the Group’s avionics and telemetry products increased 3.0%, 
primarily due to the release of the conduction-cooled PMC design, an increase in sales of the PMC2 board, and an increase in 
sales of integrated products.   

 
Commercial and Government Group segment profit decreased 45.3%, or $9.7 million, from $21.4 million in fiscal 2001 

to $11.7 million. This decrease was primarily due to the decrease in sales, $0.2 million of expenditures associated with SBS’ 
manufacturing consolidation and cost reduction efforts, severance and other employee termination costs, a second quarter 
$3.4 million inventory write-down, and an increase in SG&A expenses. The inventory write-down consisted of inventory 
associated with products that will no longer be marketed and with the implementation of a new inventory management 
methodology associated with the consolidation of manufacturing operations.  The increase in SG&A expense was primarily 
due to an increase in sales and marketing costs due to SBS’ pro-rata allocation of certain corporate SG&A expenses among 
segments, based on sales.  For the same reasons, segment profit as a percentage of sales decreased from 22.5% in fiscal 2001 
to 14.2% in fiscal 2002. 
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Liquidity and Financial Condition 
 
We use a combination of the sale of equity securities, internally generated funds and bank borrowings to finance our 

acquisitions, working capital requirements, capital expenditures and operations.  
 

Comparison of Condensed 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

  Years ended June 30, 
  2003  2002  2001 
  Thousands 

Cash Flow Provided By (Used In)        
Operating activities  $16,832  20,571  17,286 
Financing activities  (4,390)  (4,359)  (6,553) 
Investing activities  (456)  (1,433)  (4,513) 

Net Effects on Cash from:        
Exchange rates  333  298  (81) 
Cumulative effect of change in 

accounting principle  $ 6,058  —  — 
 
Cash totaled $37.1 million at June 30, 2003, an increase of $12.3 million from June 30, 2002.  Net cash provided by 

operating activities was $16.8 million and proceeds from the exercise of stock options totaled $13,000.  Operating cash 
inflows during fiscal 2003 include income tax refunds of approximately $4.3 million as a result of the net operating loss 
carryback of the tax loss generated in fiscal 2002 to prior tax years.  These cash inflows were offset by $2.6 million used for 
the acquisition of Avvida, $325,000 used for the purchase of license agreements, $1.4 million used for the purchase of capital 
equipment, $148,000 used to pay off notes payable assumed in the acquisition of Avvida, and $321,000 used to repurchase 
46,000 shares of SBS common stock pursuant to a repurchase plan initially adopted for a one year period by the Board of 
Directors on September 14, 2001 and extended until September 13, 2003.  That plan allowed for the repurchase of up to 
1,000,000 shares of SBS Common Stock at an aggregate cost not to exceed $8,000,000.  During the year ended June 30, 
2003, the increase in accounts receivable used operating cash of $288,000 prior to foreign currency translation adjustments of 
$257,000, and the decrease in inventory provided cash for operations of $1.6 million, prior to foreign currency translation 
adjustments of $600,000, due to continued efforts to reduce inventory quantities.  Liabilities, which increased by $0.5 million 
in fiscal 2003 principally due to liabilities assumed in the acquisition of SBS Canada, remain consistent with our current level 
of business. 

 
On September 20, 2002, the Company canceled its amended $30.0 million Credit Agreement (“Agreement”) with Bank 

of America, N.A.  At no time during fiscal year 2003 were any borrowings drawn on the Agreement.  Management does not 
believe, as of the date of this report and based upon management’s assessment of future cash needs and sources of cash, that 
our liquidity needs require us to maintain a credit facility at this time. 

 
Management believes that our internally generated funds will be sufficient to finance SBS’ current operations and capital 

expenditures, excluding acquisitions, for at least the next twelve months.  Because long-term cash flow cannot be predicted 
with certainty, it is possible that SBS could require external financing in the future, and that such financing may not be 
available on terms acceptable to SBS or at all. 

 
As of the date of this report, SBS does not have any material capital expenditure commitments.  As of June 30, 2003, 

SBS is committed to pay approximately $625,000 of severance and related costs to employees in connection with the closure 
of the Company’s Carlsbad, California facility (of which $224,000 is accrued).  Substantially all of these amounts will be 
paid during the quarter ending September 30, 2003 (see “Employee Severance and Consolidation Costs” above).   
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SBS is committed under non-cancelable operating leases that expire at various dates through fiscal 2008.  The following 
is a five-year schedule of future minimum lease payments: 

 

Year ending 
Buildings  

Lease Payments 
Equipment  

Lease Payments Total 
 (dollars in thousands) 

June 30, 2004 $   3,165 $    186 $    3,351 
June 30, 2005 2,902 109 3,011 
June 30, 2006 1,344 47 1,391 
June 30, 2007 394 30 424 
June 30, 2008 207 – 207 

 $   8,012 $    372 $  8,384 
 

For the periods ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, there was no significant impact from inflation. 
 

Business Outlook 
 

Consistent with our press release dated August 12, 2003, one of our greatest challenges is a market that is still not 
demonstrating growth. We have seen some signs of economic recovery in our lead generation and quoting activity, but the 
timing and scale of the effects on our business of these early indicators are, at this point, unpredictable.  We believe that both 
the commercial and communications markets bottomed during fiscal year 2003.  Both markets remain very competitive, but 
we will continue to invest in our business development team and in focused R&D so that we can increase our market share. 
In the government market, we believe that opportunities for new systems and applications will continue. We believe that our 
product portfolio is competitive, and that SBS will benefit from those opportunities. We are aggressive in our development 
activities, and we believe that there will be growth in this market, which should contribute to total company sales growth in 
fiscal year 2004. However, should the U.S. defense budget be reviewed in light of the growth in the federal budget deficit or 
for other reasons, U.S. procurement spending may be affected. 

 
At this time, we expect sales for the quarter ending September 30, 2003 to be similar to the sales of $29.5 million 

reported for the quarter ended June 30, 2003.  In addition, the results for the quarter ending September 30, 2003, will include 
the balance of costs associated with the closure of the Carlsbad, California facility, estimated to be between $1.5 million and 
$2.0 million. For the longer term, we believe we have the right strategy and we reaffirm our commitment to growth and 
earnings improvement.  

 
Management expects that corporate representatives of SBS will meet privately during the year with investors, investment 

analysts, the media and others, and may reiterate the Business Outlook published in this Form 10-K.  At the same time, this 
Form 10-K and the included Business Outlook will remain publicly available on our Web site (www.sbs.com).  Unless a 
notice stating otherwise is published, the public can continue to rely on the Business Outlook published on the Web site as 
representing our current expectations on matters covered. 

 
Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 
 

The Company’s liquid investment is cash invested in either money market accounts or in overnight repurchase 
agreements.  Due to the nature of these investments, we believe that the market risk related to these investments is minimal.  

 
As a result of the Company’s German and Canadian operating and financing activities, we are exposed to market risk 

from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.  As of June 30, 2003, we have no plans to enter into foreign exchange 
forward contracts to reduce exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. 

 
Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
The Board of Directors 
SBS Technologies, Inc.: 

 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SBS Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of  
June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash 
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2003. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audits. 

 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of SBS Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their 
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, effective July 1, 2002. 

 
KPMG LLP 

 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
August 11, 2003 
 

 
 



SBS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 

31 

     June 30,  June 30, 
     2003  2002 
     Thousands (except share amounts) 
   ASSETS     

Current assets:     
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 37,130  24,811 
 Receivables, net   23,164  22,619 
 Inventories  16,816  18,428 
 Income tax receivable  4,830  4,584 
 Deferred income taxes  1,629  9,446 
 Prepaid expenses  1,661  1,226 
 Other current assets  431  165 
   Total current assets  85,661  81,279 
        
Property and equipment, net  8,462  11,507 
Goodwill, net  16,124  20,468 
Intangible assets, net  6,906  6,284 
Deferred income taxes  11,086  5,703 
Other assets  371  407 
        
   Total assets $ 128,610  125,648 
        
   LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY      

Current liabilities:     
 Accounts payable $ 3,990  4,528 
 Accrued representative commissions  688  518 
 Accrued compensation  4,819  4,170 
 Other current liabilities   2,977  2,759 
   Total current liabilities  12,474  11,975 

Other long-term liabilities  29  27 

   Total liabilities  12,503  12,002 

Commitments and contingencies (notes 8, 12, 14, 18 and 19)     

Stockholders’ equity:     
 Common stock, no par value; 200,000,000 shares     
  authorized; 14,989,248 and 14,628,709 issued and      
  outstanding at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively  89,916  86,338 
 Unearned compensation  (37)  — 
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)  257  (3,113) 
 Retained earnings  25,971  30,421 
   Total stockholders’ equity  116,107  113,646 
        
   Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 128,610  125,648 
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Years Ended June 30,  

  2003  2002  2001  
  (Thousands except per share amounts)  
           
Sales $ 115,521  118,856  187,180  
Cost of sales  58,002  76,228  98,615  

Gross profit  57,519  42,628  88,565  

Selling, general and administrative expense  33,608  38,817  33,031  
Research and development expense  18,077  18,461  20,054  
Employee severance and consolidation costs  1,729  3,232  —  
Impairment of intangible assets  —  13,005  —  
Amortization of goodwill  —  4,523  4,720  
Amortization of intangible assets  1,940  3,002  3,024  

Operating income (loss)  2,165  (38,412)  27,736  

Interest and other income, net  454  646  410  
Interest expense  (20)  (15)  (1,071)  
Foreign exchange losses  (207)  (29)  (200)  
  227  602  (861)  

Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect 
of change in accounting principle  2,392  (37,810)  26,875  

Income tax expense (benefit)  784  (13,450)  9,691  

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle  1,608  (24,360)  17,184  

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 
(net of income tax benefit of $3,412)  (6,058)  —  —  

Net income (loss) $ (4,450)  (24,360)  17,184  
        

Earnings per share data:        

Net income (loss) per share:        
Income (loss) before cumulative effect $ 0.11  (1.67)  1.23  
Cumulative effect of change in 

accounting principle  (0.41)  —  —  
Net income (loss)  $ (0.30)  (1.67)  1.23  

Net income (loss) per share – assuming dilution:        
Income (loss) before cumulative effect $ 0.11  (1.67)  1.14  
Cumulative effect of change in 

accounting principle  (0.41)  —  —  
Net income (loss)  $ (0.30)  (1.67)  1.14  
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   Common Stock 
Unearned 
Compen-

Accumulated 
other 

Compre-
hensive  Retained 

Total 
Stock- 

holders’  

Compre-
hensive 
income 

  Shares Amount sation income (loss) earnings equity  (loss) 

  Thousands (except share amounts) 

Balances at June 30, 2000  13,302,144 $  65,385 $        — $   (3,967) $   37,597 $  99,015   

Exercise of stock options  1,180,010 12,987 — — — 12,987   
Stock-based compensation  — 28 28 — — 56   
Restricted stock awards 

issued to directors  39,926 611 (506) — — 105 
 

 
Income tax benefit from stock 

options exercised   — 6,465 — — — 6,465 
 

 
Net income   — — — —  17,184 17,184  $   17,184 
Other comprehensive income: 

Foreign currency 
translation adjustments  — — —  (2,016) — (2,016) 

 

(2,016) 
Comprehensive income         15,168 

Balances at June 30, 2001  14,522,080 85,476 (478) (5,983) 54,781 133,796   

Exercise of stock options  179,129 1,555 — — — 1,555   
Stock-based compensation  — 45 56 — — 101   
Stock repurchased and retired  (42,500) (488) — — — (488)   
Cancellation of stock issued 

to officer under restricted 
stock awards   (30,000) (422) 422 — — — 

 

 
Income tax benefit from stock 

options exercised   — 172 — — — 172 
 

 
Net loss  — — — —  (24,360) (24,360)  (24,360) 
Other comprehensive income: 

Foreign currency 
translation adjustments  — — — 2,870 — 2,870 

 

2,870 
Comprehensive income         (21,490) 

Balances at June 30, 2002  14,628,709  86,338 — (3,113)  30,421  113,646   

Exercise of stock options  5,560  13 — — — 13   
Restricted stock awards 

issued to directors  14,039  312 (110) — — 202 
 

 
Stock-based compensation  — — 73 — — 73   
Stock repurchased and retired  (46,000) (321)  — — — (321)   
Acquisition of Avvida 

Systems, Inc.  386,940 3,574 — — — 3,574 
 

 
Net loss  — — — —  (4,450) (4,450)  (4,450) 
Other comprehensive income: 

Foreign currency 
translation adjustments  — — —  3,370 — 3,370 

 

3,370 
Comprehensive income         $   (1,080) 

Balances at June 30, 2003  14,989,248 $   89,916 (37) 257 25,971 116,107   
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  Years ended June 30, 
  2003  2002  2001 
  Thousands 
Cash flows from operating activities:       

Net income (loss)  (4,450)  (24,360)  17,184 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net  6,058  —  — 
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in 

accounting principle $ 1,608  (24,360)  17,184 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 

provided by operating activities:       
Depreciation and amortization  6,851  11,311  10,198 
Impairment of intangible assets  —  13,005  — 
Bad debt expense  458  799  454 
Deferred income taxes  6,200  (10,204)  (451) 
Income tax benefit of stock options exercised  —  172  6,465 
(Gain) loss on disposition of assets  16  (15)  25 
Foreign exchange losses  207  29  200 
Stock-based compensation, including restricted 

stock awards issued to directors  275  101  161 
Changes in assets and liabilities (net of effects 

from acquisitions):       
Receivables  (288)  4,328  1,157 
Inventories  2,212  23,532  (10,602) 
Income tax receivable  73  (1,473)  (1,814) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets  (614)  2,545  (2,907) 
Accounts payable  (667)  659  (2,116) 
Accrued representative commissions  153  (324)  168 
Accrued compensation  455  (330)  (263) 
Other current liabilities  (107)  796  (573) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  16,832  20,571  17,286 

Cash flows from investing activities:       
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired  (2,643)  (1,033)  — 
Acquisition of property and equipment  (1,431)  (3,334)  (6,713) 
Purchase of license agreement  (325)  —  (236) 
Other  9  8  396 

Net cash used by investing activities  (4,390)  (4,359)  (6,553) 

Cash flows from financing activities:       
Payments on notes payable     (148)  (2,500)  (17,500) 
Repurchase and retirement of common stock  (321)  (488)  — 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options  13  1,555  12,987 

Net cash used by financing activities  (456)  (1,433)  (4,513) 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash  333  298  (81) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ 12,319  15,077  6,139 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  24,811  9,734  3,595 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 37,130  24,811  9,734 
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  Years ended June 30, 
  2003  2002  2001 
  Thousands 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       
Interest paid $ 12  15  1,415 
Income taxes paid (received) $ (4,256)  (1,991)  5,392 
       
Non-cash financing and investing activities – 

common stock issued for acquisition $ 3,574  —  — 
       

Summary of assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed through acquisitions       

Current assets $ 437  603  — 
Property and equipment, net   388  417  — 
Deferred income taxes   280  224  — 
Goodwill   3,496  —  — 
Intangible assets   67  —  — 
Identifiable intangible assets   2,170  364  — 
Current liabilities   (473)  (149)  — 
Deferred revenue   —  (426)  — 
Notes payable   (148)  —  — 
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Overview 
 
SBS Technologies, Inc. (“SBS” or “the Company”) designs and builds open architecture embedded computer products that 
enable original equipment manufacturers (“OEM”) to serve the commercial, communications, enterprise and government 
markets. SBS products are integrated into a variety of applications including communication networking, medical imaging, 
industrial automation, and military systems. The portfolio includes an extensive line of CPU boards, computer 
interconnections, avionics, telemetry and fully integrated systems and enclosures. SBS has operations in New Mexico, 
Minnesota, North Carolina, California, Massachusetts, Canada and Germany. 
 
1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
(a) Principles of Consolidation 

 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all of its 
subsidiaries. All inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated. 
 

(b) Cash Equivalents 
 
Temporary investments with original maturities of ninety days or less are classified as cash equivalents.  At  
June 30, 2003, substantially all cash was held at two financial institutions. 
 

(c) Inventories 
 
Inventories are valued at standard cost, which approximates the lower of weighted average cost or market. 
 

(d) Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided for by straight-
line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets.   
 

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
 
Goodwill represents the excess of costs over fair value of assets of businesses acquired. The Company adopted the 
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets” (SFAS 142), as of July 1, 2002. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase business 
combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but instead tested for impairment 
at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142.  SFAS 142 also requires that intangible assets with 
estimable useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and 
reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived 
Assets” (SFAS 144). 
 
In connection with SFAS 142’s transitional goodwill impairment evaluation, the Company performed an 
assessment of whether there was an indication that goodwill is impaired as of the date of adoption. To accomplish 
this, the Company was required to identify its reporting units and determine the carrying value of each reporting 
unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting 
units as of July 1, 2002. The Company was required to determine the fair value of each reporting unit and 
compare it to the carrying amount of the reporting unit within six months of July 1, 2002.  To the extent the 
carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeded fair value, the Company would be required to perform the second 
step of the transitional impairment test, as this is an indication that the reporting unit goodwill may be impaired. In 
this second step, the Company would compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the 
carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill, both of which were measured as of the date of adoption. The 
implied fair value of goodwill would be determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to all of the 
assets (recognized and unrecognized) and liabilities of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price 
allocation, in accordance with SFAS 141, “Business Combinations.” The residual fair value after this allocation 
would be the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. The implied fair value as of July 1, 2002 for two 
reporting units tested was less than the carrying amount requiring an impairment loss to be recognized. 
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The Company plans to conduct its annual impairment test as of April 1 of each fiscal year. 

 
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142, goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected periods to be 
benefited, generally 10 years, and assessed for recoverability by determining whether the amortization of the goodwill 
balance over its remaining life could be recovered through undiscounted future operating cash flows of the acquired 
operation. All other intangible assets were amortized on a straight-line basis, generally from 3 to 10 years. The amount 
of goodwill and other intangible asset impairment, if any, was measured based on projected discounted future 
operating cash flows using a discount rate reflecting the Company’s average cost of funds. 
 

(f) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
 
SFAS 144 provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of. SFAS 144 also changed the 
criteria for classifying an asset as held for sale; and broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of that qualify for 
reporting as discontinued operations and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such operations. The Company 
adopted SFAS 144 on July 1, 2002.  
 
In accordance with SFAS 144, long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and purchased intangibles 
subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a 
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated 
by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is 
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be 
disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair 
value less costs to sell, and the assets would no longer be depreciated.  The assets and liabilities of a disposed group 
classified as held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance 
sheet. 
 
Goodwill and intangible assets not subject to amortization are tested annually for impairment, and are tested for 
impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired.  An impairment loss 
is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair value. 
 
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 144, the Company accounted for long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS No. 121, 
“Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” 
 

(g) Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue from product sales is generally recognized upon shipment to customers provided the Company has 
received a valid purchase order, the price is fixed, title has transferred, collection of the associated receivable is 
reasonably assured, and there are no remaining significant obligations.  Where customer acceptance provisions 
exist, the Company generally defers revenue recognition until acceptance by the customer unless the Company 
demonstrates the product meets the customer specified criteria upon shipment provided all other revenue 
recognition criteria have been met.   

 
(h) Income Taxes 

 
SBS accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Deferred income taxes are recognized for the 
tax consequences of differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing 
assets and liabilities by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years. The effect on deferred taxes 
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the change. 
 

(i) Financial Instruments 
 
SBS’ financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable. The carrying 
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable, because of their nature, 
approximate fair value. 
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(j) Reclassifications 
 
Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year 
presentation. 
 

(k) Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

(l) Stock Based Compensation 
 
On January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – 
Transition and Disclosure,” which amended the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation,” (SFAS 123).  The Company applies the intrinsic-value-based method of accounting 
prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, 
and related interpretations, to account for its fixed-plan stock options. Under this method, compensation expense 
is recorded on the date of grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise 
price. Substantially all stock-based compensation reflected in reported net income (loss) relates to restricted stock 
award grants to members of the Company’s Board of Directors, as all employee stock options granted under the 
Company’s stock option plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the 
grant date.  SFAS 123 established accounting and disclosure requirements using a fair-value-based method of 
accounting for stock-based employee compensation plans. As allowed by SFAS 123, the Company has elected to 
continue to apply the intrinsic-value-based method of accounting described above, and has adopted only the 
disclosure requirements of SFAS 123.  The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and net income 
(loss) per common share if the company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock-based 
employee compensation. 
 

Thousands Years ended June 30, 
(except per share amounts) 2003  2002 2001 

Net income (loss), as reported  (4,450)  (24,360)  17,184 
Add: stock-based employee compensation expense included in 

reported net income (loss), net of related tax effects  167  62  98 
Deduct: stock-based employee compensation expense determined 

under fair value method for all awards, net of related tax effects  (3,341)  (4,375)  (8,104) 

Pro forma net income (loss)   (7,624)  (28,673)  9,178 

Net income (loss) per common share:       

As reported  (0.30)  (1.67)  1.23 
Pro forma  (0.52)  (1.97)  0.66 

Net income (loss) per common share – assuming dilution:       
As reported  (0.30)  (1.67)  1.14 
Pro forma  (0.52)  (1.97)  0.65 

 
The per share weighted average fair value of stock options, granted at a price equal to the market value of the 
underlying common stock on the grant date was $4.23, $6.37, and $12.43 during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003, 
2002, and 2001,  respectively.  
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The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average 
assumptions: 

 
  2003  2002 2001 

Expected life (years) 2.40  2.95 3.09 
Risk free interest rate 2.39%  3.74% 3.97% 
Volatility 77.93%  72.08% 72.32% 
Dividend yield —   —  —  

 
(m) Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

 
Comprehensive income (loss) represents net income (loss) for the period adjusted for non-owner changes in 
stockholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.  Cumulative comprehensive income (loss) in the 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity consists of foreign currency translation adjustments.  
 

(n) Currency Translation 
 
For foreign operations that prepare financial statements in functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar, the 
Company translates the assets and liabilities at the exchange rates in effect at the end of the period and the 
statement of operations balances using average exchange rates from throughout the period. Cumulative translation 
adjustments are presented as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within 
stockholders’ equity.  Gains or losses from transactions denominated in non-functional currencies are recognized 
in the statement of operations based on changes in the exchange rates during the period the transactions remain 
outstanding. 
 

2) Business Acquisitions 
 
SBS completed the acquisitions described below during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. The acquisitions 
have been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, and the results of operations of the acquired companies 
have been combined with SBS’ since the respective dates of acquisition. The purchase price has been allocated to the 
underlying assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values with goodwill, if any, representing 
the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired.   
 
On June 30, 2003, SBS acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of Avvida Holdings Corp. and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Avvida Systems Inc. (Avvida), located in Waterloo, Canada.  Avvida provides image processing 
solutions to customers serving a wide variety of applications. Avvida’s focus is emerging programmable logic, including 
fully programmable gateway array (FPGA) technology utilized in high performance video, image and data processing 
solutions.  The Company plans to incorporate FPGA technology into existing and future products of SBS.   
 
The aggregate purchase price of $6.2 million, including acquisition costs of $0.6 million, was paid in cash and shares of 
SBS common stock valued at $3,574,020.  The value of the 386,940 shares of SBS common stock was determined based 
on the average market price of SBS’ common shares over the two-day period before and after the terms of the acquisition 
were agreed to and announced.   
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of 
acquisition.  
 

Current assets  $    437 
Property and equipment  388 
Intangible assets  2,237 
Goodwill  3,496 
Deferred income taxes  280 
Total assets acquired  6,838 

Current liabilities  (473) 
Notes payable  (148) 
Total liabilities assumed  (621) 

Net assets acquired  $  6,217 
 
The purchase price was allocated to the underlying assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair 
values.  In conjunction with the purchase price allocation, the estimated fair value of identifiable intangible assets, 
specifically, a core technology asset valued at $970,000 and a covenant not-to-compete valued at $1.2 million, were based 
on an assessment of their fair value determined by management and goodwill of approximately $3.5 million was recorded 
which is not deductible for tax purposes.  The identifiable intangible assets will be amortized over a period of 5 years based 
on the estimated economic useful life of the core technology asset and the contractual period of the covenant. 
 
The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 have been 
prepared as if the acquisition of Avvida had occurred on July 1, 2002.  Accordingly, the weighted average shares used in 
the pro forma per share data were increased to reflect the shares issued in the acquisition.  Pro forma results of operations 
for 2002 are not presented as Avvida’s results of operations in fiscal 2002 were not material to SBS’ consolidated results of 
operations. 
 

Thousands (except per share amounts)   

Sales  $ 116,178 

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  $        207 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  (6,058) 
Net loss  $    (5,851) 
   
Per share data:   

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  $       0.01 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  (0.40) 
Net loss  $      (0.39) 

 
The pro forma information is presented for informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the results of 
operations that actually would have been achieved had the acquisitions been consummated at such dates, nor is it intended 
to be a projection of future results. 
 
On March 4, 2002, SBS completed the acquisition of certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Essential 
Communications, a division of publicly held Intrusion, Inc., for approximately $1.0 million.  Founded in 1992, Essential 
develops and delivers early stage InfiniBand  products.  SBS utilizes Essential’s InfiniBand product expertise and industry 
relationships to build on its current InfiniBand efforts in the enterprise server and storage markets.  In conjunction with the 
purchase price allocation, SBS recorded approximately $364,000 of identifiable intangible assets, principally core-
technology assets, which are being amortized over a two-year period.  No goodwill was recorded.   
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3) Receivables 
 
Receivables, net consisted of the following:  
 

 Thousands June 30 
  2003 2002 

Accounts receivable  $24,000 $23,992 
Allowance for doubtful accounts:   

Beginning balance  (1,373) (980) 
Provision for bad debts  (458) (799) 
Accounts written off and foreign 

currency translation adjustments 995 406 
Ending balance  (836) (1,373) 

Accounts receivable, net  $23,164 $22,619 
 
4) Inventories 

 
Inventories consisted of the following:  
 

Thousands June 30 
 2003 2002 

Raw materials  $  8,793 9,663 
Work in process  5,414 5,328 
Finished goods  2,609 3,437 
 $  16,816 18,428 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2003, approximately $1.0 million of inventory previously written down was utilized.  For the 
year ended June 30, 2002, approximately $0.7 million of inventory previously written down was utilized. 
 
SBS recorded a $12.4 million inventory write-down during the second quarter of fiscal 2002, and a $2.7 million inventory 
write-down during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.  The second quarter write-down consisted of inventory associated with 
programs that are not anticipated to come back to their previous forecasts, inventory associated with SBS’ decision to exit 
our legacy PCI chassis product line, and inventory associated with SBS products that were no longer marketed.  
Additionally, the implementation of a new inventory management methodology associated with the consolidation of SBS’ 
manufacturing operations resulted in a reduction in required inventory levels.  The fourth quarter write-down was primarily 
due to customer order cancellations and reduced demand for certain communications and enterprise products noted during 
the fourth quarter.   

 
5) Property and Equipment 

 
Property and equipment, net consisted of the following:  
 

 Thousands June 30 Estimated  
  2003 2002 useful life 

Computers  $   5,392 $   5,756 3 – 5 yrs 
Purchased software  7,925 7,979 3 – 5 yrs 
Furniture and equipment  6,001 5,762  3 – 10 yrs 
Leasehold improvements  3,278 3,270 2 – 7 yrs 
 22,596 22,767  
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (14,134) (11,260)  
 $  8,462 $  11,507  
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During the quarter ended June 30, 2003, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $841,000, 
included in the caption “Employee severance and consolidation costs” in the accompanying financial statements, 
related to certain leasehold improvements in connection with the announcement of the Company’s consolidation of the 
Communications and Enterprise Group resulting in the closure of its Carlsbad, California facility.  The impairment 
charge was recognized based on the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeded the fair value of the 
assets as determined on the date of announcement in accordance with SFAS 144.  
 

6) Goodwill and Intangible Assets 
  
Effective July 1, 2002, SBS adopted SFAS 142 and no longer amortizes goodwill.  As of the date of adoption, SBS had 
unamortized goodwill of approximately $20.5 million subject to the transition provisions of SFAS 142, which included 
approximately $434,000 for the net book value of acquired assembled workforce intangibles, as these assets did not meet 
the criteria for recognition apart from goodwill.   
 
The Company completed step 1 of the required transitional goodwill impairment analysis in accordance with SFAS 142 
prior to December 31, 2002 and an indication of potential impairment was determined for two reporting units, the 
Commercial Group reporting unit (component of the Commercial and Government Group segment) and the 
Communications and Enterprise Group reporting unit.  The Company completed step 2 of the required transitional analysis 
during the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and the results indicated the carrying value of goodwill for both reporting units was 
greater than the implied fair value of the goodwill determined in accordance with SFAS 142. As a result, the Company 
recorded a transitional impairment charge of approximately $9.5 million ($6.1 million net of tax) which has been reflected 
as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the year ended June 30, 2003 in the accompanying statements 
of operations. 
 
On April 1, 2003, the Company completed step 1 of the required annual goodwill impairment analysis for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2003 and the estimated fair value of goodwill was determined to be in excess of its carrying value 
indicating the underlying goodwill was not impaired at that date. 
 
Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended June 30, 2003 are as follows: 
 

Total Goodwill by Operating Segment 

Thousands 

Communications 
and Enterprise 

Group 

Commercial and 
Government  

Group 

 

Total 

Balance at June 30, 2002 $     3,448 17,020 20,468 
Transitional impairment charge          (3,448) (6,022) (9,470) 
Acquisition of Avvida          – 3,496 3,496 
Foreign currency translation 

adjustments          – 1,630 1,630 
Balance at June 30, 2003 $            – 16,124 16,124 
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The following table presents the impact of the adoption of SFAS 142 on reported income (loss) before the cumulative 
effect of a change in accounting principle and net income (loss) per applicable common share before the cumulative effect 
of a change in accounting principle had SFAS 142 been in effect in fiscal 2002 and 2001: 
 

Thousands except per share amounts Years ended June 30, 
 2003 2002  2001 

Reported income (loss) before cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle  $  1,608  (24,360)  17,184 

Adjustments:       
  Goodwill amortization  –  4,448  4,645 
  Workforce amortization  –  75  75 
  Income tax effect  –  (1,741)  (1,817) 
    Net adjustments   –  2,782  2,903 
Adjusted income (loss) before cumulative effect of 

change in accounting principle  $  1,608  (21,578)  20,087 

Income (loss) per common share before cumulative 
effect of change in accounting principle:    

  Reported   $    0.11  (1.67)  1.23 
  Adjusted   0.11  (1.48)  1.44 

Income (loss) per share – assuming dilution before 
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle:       

Reported   $    0.11  (1.67)  1.14 
Adjusted   0.11  (1.48)  1.33 

 
The following table discloses information regarding the carrying amounts and associated accumulated amortization for 
intangible assets subject to amortization after the adoption of SFAS 142. 
 

Amortized Intangible Assets 

 Thousands 
Estimated 
useful life 

Gross 
carrying 
amount 

Accumulated 
amortization  

Net carrying 
amount 

As of June 30, 2003   
  Core-developed technology 2 – 7 yrs $   9,723  5,679  4,044 
  License agreements 2 – 5 yrs 2,561  1,424  1,137 
  Covenant not-to-compete 3 – 5 yrs 2,842  1,365  1,477 
  Other intangibles 8 – 17 yrs 368  120  248 
        Total $  15,494  8,588  6,906 

As of June 30, 2002   
  Core-developed technology  $    8,753 4,723 4,030 
  License agreements  2,236 826 1,410 
  Covenant not-to-compete  1,623 996 627 
  Other intangibles  300 83 217 
        Total $  12,912 6,628 6,284 

 
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, due to recent order cancellations and a continued decline in sales and 
bookings, SBS recorded a $10.3 million write-down of the core-developed technology and related goodwill associated 
with the acquisition of SDL Communications, Inc. in April 2000.  This write-down was based on SBS’ projection of 
undiscounted future operating cash flows over the remaining useful lives of the core-technology asset and related 
goodwill, which indicated that these cash flows were not sufficient to recover the carrying amounts of the assets.  As 
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such, impairment charges were recorded to the extent that the carrying amount of the assets exceeded fair value.  
Additionally, on December 26, 2001, the SBS Board of Directors approved SBS’ plan to exit our legacy PCI chassis 
product line.  This product line was associated with SBS’ acquisition of SBS Technologies, Inc. Industrial Computers 
(formerly Micro Alliance) in November 1997.  In conjunction with the acquisition, SBS recorded approximately $4.5 
million of goodwill, of which $2.7 million was unamortized at December 26, 2001.  Based on SBS’ decision to exit 
the PCI Chassis product line, the remaining unamortized goodwill was determined to be impaired and was written off 
in the quarter ended December 31, 2001, as the fair value of projected future cash flows was zero.   
 
The following table summarizes estimated amortization expense for the fiscal years ending in June 2004 through 2008. 
 

Estimated amortization expense: Thousands 
  For the fiscal years ending: 
      June 30, 2004 $   2,135 
      June 30, 2005 1,734 
      June 30, 2006 1,310 
      June 30, 2007 1,181 
      June 30, 2008 512 
      Thereafter 34 
       6,906 

 
7) Product Warranty Liability 

 
The Company’s customers receive a warranty, generally for a period of two years, upon purchase of products.  The 
Company accrues estimated costs to repair or replace potentially defective products when products are shipped and 
revenue is recognized. Estimated warranty costs are based upon prior actual warranty costs for substantially similar 
transactions.  The following table presents the activity in the Company’s product warranty liability for the year ended 
June 30, 2003. 
 

Thousands  

Balance at beginning of period $ 567 
Estimated warranty costs for product sales 554 
Adjustments to settle warranty activity (573) 

Balance at end of period $ 548 
 
8) Notes Payable 

 
Notes payable consist of revolving credit facility notes. As of June 30, 2002, there were no notes outstanding on the credit 
facility.  On September 20, 2002, SBS canceled its credit facility with Bank of America, N.A. 
 

9) Income Taxes 
 
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle is 
comprised of the following: 
 

Thousands Years Ended June 30 
  2003  2002  2001 

U.S  $  (2,142) (38,833)  27,128 
Foreign  4,534 1,023  (253)
 $   2,392 (37,810)  26,875 
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Total income taxes for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were allocated as follows: 
 

  Years ended June 30, 
  2003  2002  2001 

    
Income from continuing operations $ 784  (13,450)  9,691 
Cumulative effect of change in 

accounting principle  (3,412)  —  — 
       

 $ (2,628)  (13,450)  9,691 
 
Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations is comprised of the following:  
 

 Thousands Years Ended June 30 
  2003  2002  2001 
Current:         

U.S. Federal  $   (6,793) (3,911)  8,572 
State  107 32  1,694 
Foreign  1,271 722  (210) 

Deferred:     
U.S. Federal  5,345 (8,953)  (536) 
State  506 (1,540)  (86) 
Foreign  348 200  257 

 $       784 (13,450)  9,691 
 
Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations was provided for at effective rates of 32.8, 35.6, and 36.1 percent 
in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Actual tax expense (benefit) differ from the “expected” income taxes (computed by 
applying the statutory U.S. Federal tax rate to income before income taxes) as follows: 
 

Thousands Years Ended June 30 
 2003  2002  2001 

Computed “expected” tax expense (benefit)  $   837  (13,234)  9,406 
State income tax, net of federal benefit  398  (980)  1,045 
Non-deductible goodwill   —  1,599  325 
Foreign operations, net  600  433  (76) 
Benefit from foreign sales  (105)  (646)  (700) 
Research and experimental tax credits  (76)  (648)  (378) 
Change in valuation allowance (789)  —  — 
Other  (81)  26  69 
 $   784  (13,450)  9,691 
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The significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows: 
 

 Thousands As of June 30 
 2003  2002 
Deferred tax assets:      

Amortization $  6,133  3,356 
Operating loss and tax credit carryforwards 2,622  — 
Acquired IPR&D 2,365  2,647 
Inventory 1,751  9,116 
Accrued expenses and reserves  1,604  1,388 
Foreign tax credits 1,557  789 
Other 166  566 

 16,198  17,862 
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets —  (789) 

Total deferred tax assets 16,198  17,073 

Deferred tax liabilities:    
Occupancy and other expenses   (1,490)  — 
Identifiable intangible assets (1,146)  (1,924) 
Foreign dividends (847)  — 

Total deferred tax liabilities (3,483)  (1,924) 

Net deferred tax assets $ 12,715  15,149 
 
At June 30, 2003, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards for Federal income tax purposes of approximately 
$4.6 million which are available to offset future Federal taxable income, if any, through 2023.  At June 30, 2003, the 
Company has tax credit carryforwards for Federal income tax purposes of approximately $311,000 which are available to 
offset future Federal tax payments, if any, through 2023.   
 
As of June 30, 2003, SBS had a foreign tax credit carryforward of approximately $1.6 million, which which are available 
to offset future Federal tax liabilities from foreign source income, if any, through 2008.  Excess foreign tax credits may be 
carried back two years and forward five years.  During the quarter ended June 30, 2003, in conjunction with the 
execution of certain tax planning strategies management believes that it is more likely than not that we will realize the 
benefits of the foreign tax credit carryforward.  Accordingly, SBS released the valuation allowance established in prior 
periods.  In addition, as of June 30, 2003, management established a deferred tax liability of approximately  
$0.8 million due to the consideration of the repatriation of undistributed foreign earnings, to the extent necessary to 
utilize excess foreign tax credits, as a source of foreign income in future periods.  In assessing the realizability of the 
remaining deferred tax assets, management considered projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies.  
Based on SBS’ historical taxable transactions, the timing of the reversal of existing temporary differences, and the 
evaluation of tax planning strategies, management believes it is more likely than not that SBS’ future taxable income 
will be sufficient to realize the benefit of the remaining deferred tax assets existing at June 30, 2003. 
 
SBS generally does not record deferred income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries based upon 
our policy that those earnings are permanently reinvested and have specific uses in such foreign jurisdictions.  At  
June 30, 2003, the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries amounted to approximately $13.8 million.  Upon 
distribution of these earnings, SBS may be subject to U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes.  It is not practical, 
however, to estimate the amount of taxes that may be payable on the eventual remittance of these earnings. 
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10) Earnings Per Share 
 
Net income (loss) per common share is based on weighted average shares outstanding.  Net income (loss) per common 
share – assuming dilution includes the dilutive effects of potential common shares outstanding during the period.   
 

Thousands (except per share amounts) Years ended June 30,  
 2003 2002  2001 

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle  1,608  (24,360)  17,184 

Cumulative effect of change in accounting 
principle  (6,058)  —  — 

Net income (loss)  (4,450)  (24,360)  17,184 

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share     
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 

used in earnings per share computations  14,605  14,559  13,926 

Per share – income (loss) before cumulative 
effect of change in accounting principle  0.11  (1.67)  1.23 

Per share – cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle  (0.41)  —  — 

Per share – net income (loss)   (0.30)          (1.67)  1.23 

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share – 
Assuming Dilution     

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 
used in earnings per share computations  14,630  14,559  15,123 

Per share assuming dilution – income (loss) 
before cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle  0.11  (1.67)  1.14 

Per share assuming dilution – cumulative 
effect of change in accounting principle  (0.41)  —  — 

Per share assuming dilution – net income 
(loss)   (0.30)          (1.67)  1.14 

Shares Used in Net Income (Loss) per Share 
Computations    

Average outstanding common shares  14,605  14,559  13,926 
Incremental shares from assumed conversions – 

potential common shares   25  –  1,197 
Shares used in net income (loss) per common 

share – assuming dilution computations  14,630  14,559  15,123 
 
Due to the reported net loss for the year ended June 30, 2002, 190,757 potential common shares were not included in the 
computation of net loss per common share – assuming dilution because the effect would be anti-dilutive.  For the years 
ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, options to purchase 3,243,859, 2,381,237, and 420,517 shares of common stock, 
respectively, were outstanding but were not included in the computation of net income per common share – assuming 
dilution, because the options’ exercise price  was greater than the average market price of the common shares. 
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11) Leases 
 
SBS leases its main facilities in Albuquerque, New Mexico, Carlsbad, California, Newark, California, St. Paul, Minnesota, 
Raleigh, North Carolina, Mansfield, Massachusetts, Waterloo, Ontario, Canada, Augsburg, Germany and Mindelheim, 
Germany under noncancelable operating leases which expire at various dates through fiscal 2008. SBS also leases various 
items of equipment under noncancelable operating leases which expire at various dates through fiscal 2007.   
 
The following is a five-year schedule of future minimum lease payments: 
 

Year ending 
Buildings  

Lease Payments 
Equipment  

Lease Payments Total 
 (dollars in thousands) 

June 30, 2004 $    3,165 186 3,351 
June 30, 2005 2,902 109 3,011 
June 30, 2006 1,344 47 1,391 
June 30, 2007 394 30 424 
June 30, 2008 207 – 207 

 $    8,012 372 8,384 
 
Total rental expense for operating leases for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, was approximately  
$3.3 million, $3.5 million, and $3.0 million, respectively. 
 

12) Stock Option Plans and Warrants 
 

(a) 1992, 1993, 1995, 1996 and 1997 Incentive Stock Option Plans 
 
SBS has 1992, 1993, 1995, 1996 and 1997 Incentive Stock Option Plans whereby a total of 2,800,000 shares of its 
common stock are reserved for discretionary grant of options by the Board to officers and employees. The plans all 
terminate ten years after inception, from the years 2001 to 2006.  As of June 30, 2003, the 1992 and 1993 Incentive 
Stock Option Plans have expired and there are no options outstanding or available for grant.  The options are intended 
to qualify as “incentive stock options” within the meaning of Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code (the 
“Code”). The plans generally permit options to be granted (i) only to employees or officers and not to directors as 
such; (ii) for a period of up to ten years; and (iii) at prices not less than fair market value of the underlying common 
stock at the date of grant. Under the Code, holders of more than 10 percent of SBS’ stock cannot be granted options 
with a duration of more than five years or exercisable at a price less than 110 percent of the fair market value of the 
underlying common stock on the date of grant. Options granted under the plans may be exercised as provided by the 
administering committee or Board of Directors of SBS. All of these options are exercisable at the quoted market 
value of SBS’ common stock in effect on the respective dates of the grants. 
 

(b) 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan 
 
SBS has a 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan whereby a total of 5% of the number of shares of its common 
stock outstanding at the first day of each fiscal year plus shares not awarded in prior years and underlying expired or 
terminated options are reserved for grant of options to all Directors of SBS who are not employees and all Executive 
Officers of SBS. Directors who are not employees of SBS receive automatic grants upon appointment to the Board of 
Directors and annually for service as a Director. Executive Officers receive grants at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors. All options are granted at a price equal to fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of 
grant. The Directors’ options become exercisable one year from the date of grant and terminate twelve months from 
the date the optionee ceases to be a member of the Board of Directors or in five years, whichever occurs first. 
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(c) 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
 
The 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors on January 21, 1996 and was 
subsequently approved at the November 1996 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. The plan, as amended, provided for the 
grant of options to eligible employees through January 21, 2003. As a result, there are no more shares available for 
grant in this plan as of June 30, 2003.  In fiscal 1999, a subsequent amendment changed the grant date from January 
21 to December 31 for grants made subsequent to January 21, 1999. Individual grants are issued for a percentage of 
the employee’s annual base salary, as determined each year by the Board of Directors, up to 10%, divided by the fair 
market value of one share of SBS’ common stock on the date of grant. Options are eligible to be exercised beginning 
18 months after the date of grant for a period of nine months, at which time they will expire. 
 

(d) 1998 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan 
 
The 1998 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors on September 15, 1997 and 
subsequently approved at the December 1997 reconvened Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. All full-time employees of 
SBS and its subsidiaries and all non-employee Directors of SBS are eligible to participate in the plan, except that no 
person owning, directly or indirectly, more than 15% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock shall 
be eligible to participate. The plan provides for the grant of any or all of the following types of awards: (i) stock 
options, including incentive stock options; (ii) stock appreciation rights; (iii) restricted stock; (iv) performance shares 
and units; and (v) other stock-based awards. The maximum number of shares of common stock that shall be available 
for grant of awards under the plan shall not exceed 3,000,000, subject to adjustment in accordance with the 
provisions of the plan. The exercise price of each option granted under (i) is determined by the Board of Directors but 
cannot be less than 100% of the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The exercise 
price of each option granted under (v) is determined by the Board of Directors and can be less than the fair market 
value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The term of these options cannot exceed ten years from 
grant date. The plan expires in January 2008. 
 

(e) 2000 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan 
 
The 2000 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors on August 31, 2000 and 
subsequently approved at the December 2000 reconvened Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. Any employee of SBS or 
its subsidiaries, and any consultants, directors, or other persons providing services to SBS or its subsidiaries are 
eligible to participate in the plan. The plan provides for the grant of nonqualified stock options and a limited number 
of grants of restricted stock. The number of shares of stock available for award under the plan during any fiscal year 
of SBS is equal to ten percent of the adjusted average of the outstanding stock, as that number is determined by SBS 
to calculate net income per common share — assuming dilution for the preceding fiscal year, reduced by any shares 
of stock under the plan subject to unexercised options and any shares of stock under the plan subject to restrictions. 
The exercise price of each option granted shall be the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date 
of grant unless otherwise specified by the Board at the time of grant. If options are awarded in exchange for 
previously earned cash compensation, or in connection with an acquisition, merger, combination or other similar 
event involving SBS, or in substitution or replacement for options granted to employees by the other entities, the 
Board has the authority to establish an exercise price that is less that 100% of the fair market value of the underlying 
common stock on the date of grant. The term of these options cannot exceed ten years from grant date. The plan 
expires in July 2010. 
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Information regarding SBS’ stock option plans and warrants is summarized in the table below: 
 

  
  

ALL 
ISOPs 

1993 
D&O 

1996 
ESPP 1998 LT 2000 LT Total 

Outstanding at 6/30/00 773,524 243,926 205,490 2,584,546 — 3,807,486 
  Granted  50,012 325,000 115,850 79,560 746,500 1,316,922 
  Exercised  433,964 50,043 108,788 587,215 — 1,180,010 
  Cancelled  — — 27,450 507,812 72,000 607,262 

Outstanding at 6/30/01 389,572 518,883 185,102 1,569,079 674,500 3,337,136 
  Granted — 404,479 188,650 25,000 482,337 1,100,466 
  Exercised 41,000 10,000 — 128,129 — 179,129 
  Cancelled — 256,883 147,552 230,695 268,988 904,118 

Outstanding at 6/30/02 348,572 656,479 226,200 1,235,255 887,849 3,354,355 
  Granted — 159,000 159,050 58,105 250,100 626,255 
  Exercised 566 — — 4,994 — 5,560 
  Cancelled — 127,500 110,900 163,375 219,966 621,741 

Outstanding at 6/30/03 348,006 687,979 274,350 1,124,991 917,983 3,353,309 

Exercisable at 6/30/01 319,566 182,800 78,052 547,850 — 1,128,268 

Exercisable at 6/30/02 315,234 252,000 74,650 835,750 279,079 1,756,713 

Exercisable at 6/30/03 331,336 372,661 124,350 976,138 542,892 2,347,377 

Available for grant 
at 6/30/03 92,496 1,368,845 — 752,117 544,990 2,758,443 

 
Weighted average option exercise price information for fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001 follows: 
 

  2003  2002  2001 

Outstanding at July 1  $16.60  17.78  12.71 
Granted during the year 

(at market value)   9.53  13.20  25.33 
Exercised during the year   2.41  8.68  11.05 
Cancelled during the year 17.84  18.58  15.56 
Outstanding at June 30 15.08  16.60  17.78 
Exercisable at June 30 16.68  17.00  13.29 
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Significant option groups outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2003 and related weighted average price and life 
information follows: 
 

Range of  
Exercise Prices 

Number 
Outstanding 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 
Number 

Exercisable 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$  5.44 – $10.85 834,695 6.07 $   9.08 249,990 $   8.14 
$11.15 – $12.69 711,883 7.20 12.01 436,311 12.02 
$12.94 – $15.50 743,388 4.51 14.42 660,221 14.41 
$15.63 – $25.94 671,783 5.72 17.80 621,963 17.67 
$26.75 – $36.13 391,560 7.50 30.08 378,892 30.00 
$  5.44 – $36.13 3,353,309 6.06 $ 15.08 2,347,377 $ 16.68 

 
13) Retirement Plan 

 
SBS maintains a retirement plan under Section 401(k) of the Code for all U.S. employees of SBS. The plan provides for 
employees to selectively defer a percentage of their wages, which SBS matches at a predetermined rate not to exceed 4 
percent of the employee’s wages. The plan also provides for additional contributions at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors. SBS’ contributions to the plan during the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were approximately $1.0 
million, $1.1 million, and $1.1 million, respectively. 
 

14) Segment Financial Data 
 
SBS operates internationally through two operating segments: the Communications and Enterprise Group, and the 
Commercial and Government Group.  These segments are based on the markets that are served and the products that are 
provided to those markets.  Each segment has its own sales and distribution channels and has a manager who reports 
directly to the President and Chief Operating Officer. The Commercial and Government Group’s primary focus is to serve 
customers in the medical, semiconductor, aerospace, defense and other commercial markets. The Communications and 
Enterprise Group serves major telecommunications OEM’s and OEM’s that manufacture and distribute business-
computing equipment.  A description of these segments follows: 
 
 The Communications and Enterprise Group designs and builds high performance embedded system products 

including single board computers, input/output modules and fully integrated systems.  These products are 
designed to meet the evolving requirements of communications customers while reducing cost and expediting 
time to market.  These products are based on standard form factor hardware designs such as CompactPCI, PMC, 
PCI with open standard operating support such as VxWorks and Linux, and consistent driver development kits for 
ATM, frame relay and other software protocols. 

 
 The Commercial and Government Group designs and builds open-architecture computer components and systems 

for CompactPCI, PCI, VME, and PC/104 standard bus architectures.  The Group’s product lines include Intel and 
PowerPC architecture CPU boards, serial and networking modules, analog and digital I/O modules, computer 
interconnection and expansion units, MIL-STD-1553, ARINC 429, telemetry and complete computer systems.  
These products support OEM and end-user applications in semiconductor manufacturing equipment, industrial 
automation, medical imaging, military and aerospace, and entertainment applications.  

 
SBS measures its segments’ results of operations based on income (loss) before income taxes and the cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle and prior to allocation of corporate overhead expenses other than corporate sales and 
marketing costs, intangible asset impairment charges, substantially all amortization associated with acquisitions, 
substantially all interest income and expense, and acquired in-process research and development charges associated with 
purchase business combinations. The accounting policies used to measure segment results of operations are the same as for 
SBS taken as a whole. 
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Thousands  

Commercial & 
Government 

Group 

Communi-
cations & 
Enterprise 

Group 

Corporate 
& 

Unallocated 
(1) 

 

Total 

Years ended June 30:        

Gross Sales 2003 90,646  25,406 –  116,052 
Inter-segment sales  (483)  (48) –  (531) 
Sales to external customers  90,163  25,358 –  115,521 

Gross Sales 2002 85,122  36,882 –  122,004 
Inter-segment sales  (2,856)  (292) –  (3,148) 
Sales to external customers  82,266  36,590 –  118,856 

Gross Sales 2001 98,463  96,924 –  195,387 
Inter-segment sales  (3,304)  (4,903) –  (8,207) 
Sales to external customers  95,159  92,021 –  187,180 

Interest and other income, net 2003 117  – 337  454 
 2002 67  382 197  646 
 2001 23  15 372  410 

Interest expense 2003 8  – 12  20 
 2002 –  – 15  15 
 2001 1  – 1,070  1,071 

Depreciation and  2003 2,090  892 2,998  5,980 
amortization 2002 1,910  834 8,567  11,311 

 2001 1,691  812 7,695  10,198 

Segment profit (income 
(loss) before taxes) 2003 19,448 

 

(4,238) (12,818) 

 

2,392 
 2002 11,691  (14,381) (35,120)  (37,810) 
 2001 21,368  22,122 (16,615)  26,875 
As of June 30:        
Total Assets 2003 41,956  11,382 75,272  128,610 
 2002 35,217  15,465 74,966  125,648 

(1) The corporate and unallocated column includes amounts for corporate items. With regard to results of 
operations, corporate and unallocated includes corporate overhead expenses other than corporate sales 
and marketing costs, asset impairment charges, substantially all interest expense, substantially all interest 
income, investment write-downs, and substantially all amortization of associated with acquisitions. 
Corporate assets primarily include cash and cash equivalents, deferred and current income tax assets, 
goodwill, and intangible assets. 
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15) Geographic Areas and Major Customers 
 

 Thousands  

United 
States 

Domestic 

United 
States 

Exports Germany Canada Total 

Sales to External   
Customers(1) 2003 $ 80,700 13,568 21,253 — $ 115,521 
 2002 87,087 19,201 12,568 — 118,856 
 2001 140,887 34,448 11,845 — 187,180 
       
Long-lived assets, net 2003 $ 7,473 — 601 388 $     8,462 
 2002 11,090 — 417 — 11,507 

 
(1) Sales are classified according to the location of the shipment.  

 
During the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, United States export sales as a percentage of total United States 
sales were 14.4%, 18.1%, and 19.6%, respectively. United States export sales were made primarily in the following foreign 
markets (sales classified by location of customer): 
 

 Years ended June 30 
(Dollars in thousands) 2003  2002  2001 

 Sales %  Sales %  Sales % 

Japan $  3,835 28.3 $  3,066 16.0 $ 4,784 13.9 
Canada 1,546 11.4   3,494 18.2  5,424 15.7 
Korea 1,167 8.6 1,240 6.5 720 2.1 
United Kingdom 1,028 7.6 932 4.8 1,327 3.9 
Sweden 802 5.9 2,339 12.2 12,539 36.4 
France 715 5.3 1,682 8.8 1,752 5.1 
Israel 595 4.4 527 2.7 1,865 5.4 
Germany 400 2.9 1,528 7.9 2,275 6.6 
China 395 2.9 1,096 5.7 762 2.2 
All others 3,085 22.7 3,297 17.2 3,000 8.7 

 $ 13,568 100.0 $ 19,201 100.0 $ 34,448 100.0
 
In fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001, no one customer, or group of entities known to be under common control, exceeded 10% of 
SBS’ sales. 
 

16) Related Party Transactions 
 
Effective March 9, 2001, Grahame E. Rance was appointed to the positions of President and Chief Executive Officer of 
SBS and member of the Board of Directors.  Mr. Rance succeeded Christopher J. Amenson, who remained as Chairman of 
the Board of Directors of SBS until November 8, 2001, at which time Mr. Rance was appointed as Chairman.  As part of 
his compensation package, Mr. Rance received a $1,893,750 interest free loan from SBS, paid in cash on April 4, 2001.  
Forgiveness of the loan was to occur ratably over six annual anniversaries of Mr. Rance’s employment with SBS.  
Additionally, Mr. Rance received a $570,000 interest free loan from SBS that was repaid upon the sale of his former home 
during the quarter ended December 31, 2001. 
 
On April 26, 2002, at its regularly scheduled Board meeting, Christopher J. Amenson was elected Chairman of the Board 
of Directors and Chief Executive Officer and David H. Greig was elected President and Chief Operating Officer.  Former 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Grahame E. Rance, resigned to pursue other business opportunities.  As part of the 
Separation Agreement between Mr. Rance and SBS, the unamortized portion of the loan to Mr. Rance of $1,573,700 was 
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forgiven, Mr. Rance received 8 months base pay, and he returned 30,000 shares of restricted SBS common stock, 5,000 of 
which were vested and 25,000 of which were unvested.   This resulted in severance and other costs of approximately  
$2.0 million in the quarter ended June 30, 2002. 
 

17) Employee Severance and Consolidation Expenses  
 

On June 12, 2003, the Company announced the closure of its Carlsbad, California facility and the consolidation of its 
manufacturing operations into the Company’s St. Paul, Minnesota facility, centralizing all manufacturing in the United 
States to one facility.  The estimated total employee severance and related costs to be recorded as a result of the 
closure are $690,000, excluding leasehold improvement impairment charges of approximately $841,000 (recorded in 
the quarter ended June 30, 2003 as a result of the announcement in accordance with SFAS 144) and lease termination 
costs estimated to range from $1.1 million to $1.6 million (to be recorded on the cease use date during the quarter 
ending September 30, 2003 in accordance with SFAS 146).  For the quarter ended June 30, 2003, SBS recorded 
employee severance and consolidation costs of $1,131,000, of which $290,000 represents severance and related costs due 
to the planned workforce reduction in August 2003 and $841,000 represents an impairment charge for certain leasehold 
improvements (see Note 6).  At June 30, 2003, accrued severance and related costs of $224,000 will be paid to 
substantially all employees during the three months ending September 30, 2003. 
 
Due to the depressed economic and market conditions facing our Communications and Enterprise Group, on July 22, 2002, 
SBS notified 19 full and part-time employees at our Madison, Wisconsin engineering design center that their jobs had been 
eliminated.  Additionally, for the same reason, on September 30, 2002, SBS notified 22 employees of the Communications 
and Enterprise Group that their jobs were being eliminated.  Also, during the year ended June 30, 2003, severance costs 
were incurred for 12 other employees who were notified that their jobs had been eliminated.  As of June 30, 2003, 
severance costs of $412,000 and lease termination fees in connection with the closure of certain locations of approximately 
$186,000 were paid.  There are no costs remaining to be paid related to these activities at June 30, 2003. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2002, based on unfavorable economic and market conditions, facility consolidation actions, 
and the decision to exit the legacy PCI Chassis product line, SBS reduced its employee base, resulting in elimination of 159 
positions in manufacturing, research and development, administration, and sales and marketing.  On August 14, 2001, SBS 
notified 58 employees that their positions would be eliminated by the end of September, 2001.  On December 26, 2001, the 
SBS Board of Directors approved additional reductions, to be completed through March 31, 2002 and 54 employees were 
notified that their jobs would be eliminated.  On May 21, 2002, SBS announced further reductions, which were effective 
immediately, and 47 employees were notified that their jobs had been eliminated.   As a result, for the year ended June 30, 
2002, employee severance and other termination charges of approximately $1,253,000 were recorded.  As of June 30, 
2002, cash payments of $963,000 had been made, $21,000 of the original charge was reversed as a result of the 
decision not to terminate certain originally notified employees, and the remaining $269,000 was paid during the year 
ended June 30, 2003.  
 

18) Contingencies 
 
SBS is subject to various claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business. In the opinion of management, the amount 
of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect the financial position, results of operations, or 
liquidity of SBS. 
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 
 

Not applicable.  
 
Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures 
 
Quarterly Controls Evaluation and Related CEO and CFO Certifications 

  
As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the company evaluated the 

effectiveness of the design and operation of “disclosure controls and procedures” (Disclosure Controls). The 
controls evaluation was done under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 

  
Attached as Exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K are certifications of the CEO (Exhibit 31.1) and 

the CFO (Exhibit 31.2), which are required in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 (the Exchange Act). This Controls and Procedures section includes the information concerning the 
controls evaluation referred to in the certifications and it should be read in conjunction with the certifications 
for a more complete understanding of the topics presented. 
  
Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls 

  
Disclosure Controls are procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our 

reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Annual Report, is recorded, processed, summarized and 
reported within the time periods specified in the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. 
Disclosure Controls are also designed to ensure that the information is accumulated and communicated to our 
management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure.  

 
Internal control over financial reporting (Internal Controls) are procedures which are designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America and includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in 
reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.  

 
Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls 

  
Our management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls or Internal 

Controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can 
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. Further, the 
design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls 
must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no 
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, 
within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in 
decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls can 
also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by 
management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain 
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in 
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures. 
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may 
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occur and not be detected. 
  
Conclusions 

  
Based on our controls evaluation (with the participation of our CEO and CFO), as of the end of the period 

covered by this report, our CEO and CFO have concluded that, subject to the limitations noted above, our 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”)) are effective to ensure that information required to be 
disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized 
and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. 

 
There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during our fourth fiscal quarter that has 

materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 
 

PART III 
 

Certain information required by Part III is incorporated by reference to the SBS’ definitive proxy statement 
pursuant to Regulation 14A (the “Proxy Statement”) for our annual meeting to be held November 13, 2003. 
 
Item 10.  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant 
 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to SBS’ Proxy Statement under the 
sections entitled “Board of Directors,” pertaining to information on directors, and “Compensation of Named 
Executive Officers,” pertaining to information on executive officers.  
 
Item 11.  Executive Compensation 
 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to SBS’ Proxy Statement under the 
section entitled “Compensation of Named Executive Officers.” 
 
Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
Matters 
 
 The following sets forth certain information as of June 30, 2003 with respect to equity compensation plans 
of SBS under which securities may be issued: 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 
 

 
 
 
 
Plan Category 

Number of securities to 
be issued upon exercise 
of outstanding options, 
rights, restricted stock, 
and other stock-based 

awards 

Weighted-average 
exercise price of 

outstanding options, 
rights, restricted stock, 
and other stock-based 

awards 

Number of securities 
remaining available for 
future issuance under 

equity compensation plans 
(excluding securities 

reflected in first column) 

Equity compensation 
plans approved by 
security holders 3,353,309 $15.08 2,758,443 

Equity compensation 
plans not approved by 
security holders — — — 

Total 3,353,309 $15.08 2,758,443 

 
All other information required by this item is incorporated by reference to SBS’ Proxy Statement under the 

section entitled “Ownership of SBS Common Stock.” 
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Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to SBS’ Proxy Statement under the 
section entitled “Reportable Transactions.” 

 
Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services 
 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to SBS’ Proxy Statement under the 
section entitled “Independent Public Accountants.” 

 
PART IV 

 
Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K 
 

(a) Financial Statements  
 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

 
(b) Financial Statement Schedules  

 
Not applicable 

 
(c) Exhibits 
 

The Exhibits listed on the accompanying Index to Exhibits at the end of this Report are filed as part of, 
or incorporated by reference into, this Report. Management contracts or compensatory plans or 
arrangements are indicated in the index by an asterisk (*). 

 
(d) Reports on Form 8-K During the Fourth Quarter 

 
1. On April 17, 2003, SBS Technologies, Inc. filed a Form 8-K regarding changes in senior 

management effective immediately.  

2. On April 24, 2003, SBS Technologies, Inc. filed a Form 8-K regarding its financial results for the 
quarter ended March 31, 2003.  

3. On June 12, 2003, SBS Technologies, Inc. filed a Form 8-K announcing that it has reached 
agreement to acquire Avvida Systems, Inc., a privately held company located in Waterloo, 
Ontario, Canada, and the closure of SBS’ facility in Carlsbad, California. 

4. On June 30, 2003, SBS Technologies, Inc. filed a Form 8-K announcing the completion of the 
acquisition of Avvida Systems, Inc., a privately held company located in Waterloo, Ontario, 
Canada. 
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SIGNATURES 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 

SBS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
 

Date:   September 24, 2003   By:  /s/ Clarence W. Peckham   
Clarence W. Peckham  
Chief Executive Officer 

Date:   September 24, 2003   By:  /s/ James E. Dixon, Jr.  
James E. Dixon, Jr. 
Executive Vice President, Chief 
Financial Officer, and Treasurer 
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3.i Restated Articles of Incorporation dated November 10, 
2000 10-Q 001-10981 3.i 9-30-2000  

3.ii Restated and amended By-laws dated November 10, 
2000 10-Q 001-10981 3.ii 9-30-2000  

4.a Article VI of the Articles of Incorporation, as amended, 
as included in the Articles of Incorporation of SBS 
Technologies, Inc. 10-Q 001-10981 3.i 9-30-2000  

4.b Articles I and II of the Restated and Amended Bylaws 
of SBS Technologies, Inc. 10-Q 001-10981 3.ii 9-30-2000  

4.c Form of certificate evidencing Common Stock 10-Q 001-10981 4.c 3-31-2001  

4.1 Rights Agreement dated as of September 15, 1997 
between SBS Technologies, Inc. and First Security 
Bank (now Wells Fargo), National Association, as 
Rights Agent, which includes the form of Right 
Certificate as Exhibit A, and the Summary of Rights to 
Purchase Common Stock as Exhibit B.2.  Agreement to 
Serve as Rights Agent.  On January 21, 1998, pursuant 
to Section 21 of the Rights Agreement, SBS appointed 
Norwest Bank Minnesota, N.A. (now Wells Fargo) as 
Successor Rights Agent.   10-K 001-10981 4.1 6-30-2002  

10.c* 1997 Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan.   10-K 001-10981 10.c 6-30-2002  

10.f * 1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan.   10-K 001-10981 10.f 6-30-2002  

10.h* 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan.   10-K 001-10981 10.h 6-30-2002  

10.i * 1993 Director and Officer Stock Option Plan (as 
amended).   10-K 001-10981 10.i 6-30-2002  

10.v * 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (as amended).   10-K 001-10981 10.v 6-30-2002  

10.ac Office/Warehouse Lease Between Lutheran 
Brotherhood, (a Minnesota Corporation), and Bit 3 
Computer Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
SBS Technologies, Inc., dated September 5, 1997 10-Q 001-10981 10.ac 9-30-2002  

10.ad Amendment #1 to Lease between Lutheran 
Brotherhood, a Minnesota Corporation, and Bit 3 
Computer Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of 
SBS Technologies, Inc., dated December 23, 1997 10-Q 001-10981 10.ad 9-30-2002  

10.ah Standard Industrial Lease Between Carlsbad Business 
Park, LLC, (a California Limited Liability Company), 
and SBS Technologies, Inc. dated September 10, 1998 10-Q 001-10981 10.ah 9-30-1998  

10.al Lease Agreement between Mair GmbH & Co. KG and 
or Industrial Computers GmbH, a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of SBS Holding GmbH, a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of SBS Technologies, Inc. 10-Q 001-10981 10.al 3-31-1999  
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10.am * 1998 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan.       X 

10.an Partnership Agreement between SBS or Industrial 
Computer GmbH & Co. KG and SBS or Industrial 
Computers Verwaltungs GmbH, general partner, and 
SBS Technologies Holding GmbH, limited partner 10-K 001-10981 10.an 6-30-1999  

10.ao Lease Agreement between 8-L Newark 8371, LLC 
and SBS Technologies, Inc. dated August 14, 1999 10-Q 001-10981 10.ao 9-30-1999  

10.ax Lease between AFC-5, LLC, a New Mexico limited 
liability Company, and SBS Technologies, Inc., dated 
May 16, 2000 10-K 001-10981 10.ax 6-30-2000  

10.ay Lease between Long Gate, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company, and SDL Communications, Inc., a 
Massachusetts corporation, dated June 15, 2000 10-K 001-10981 10.ay 6-30-2000  

10.ba Lease between Rosa Point II, LLC and SBS 
Technologies, Inc., dated February 15, 2001 10-Q 001-10981 10.ba 3-31-2001  

10.be * 
2000 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan 

DEF 
14A 001-10981 

Exhibit 
“A” 10-2-2000  

10.bh * Employment agreement between Registrant and 
Charles Tompkins, dated January 15, 2001 10-K 001-10981 10.bh 6-30-2001  

10.bn Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 4, 2002, 
by and among SBS Technologies, Inc. Connectivity 
Products, SBS Technologies, Inc. and Intrusion, Inc. 
with respect to certain assets of its Essential 
Communications Division 10-Q 001-10981 10.bn 3-31-2002  

10.bo * Separation Agreement between Grahame Rance and 
SBS Technologies, Inc. effective April 26, 2002 10-Q 001-10981 10.bo 3-31-2002  

10.bp * Employment Agreements between David Greig and 
SBS Technologies, Inc., Clarence Peckham and SBS 
Technologies, Inc. and James E. Dixon, Jr. and SBS 
Technologies, Inc., effective April 26, 2002, dated 
May 9, 2002 10-Q 001-10981 10.bp 3-31-2002  

10.bq * Employment Agreements between Christopher J. 
Amenson and SBS Technologies, Inc., effective April 
26, 2002, dated April 26, 2002. 10-Q 001-10981 10.bq 3-31-2002  

10.br * Employment Agreement between Daniel Moore and 
SBS Technologies, Inc., effective April 26, 2002, 
dated May 15, 2002.   10-K 001-10981 10.br 6-30-2002  

10.bs Fourth Modification of Credit Agreement, Note, 
Guaranty Agreements and Related Loan Documents 
between SBS Technologies, Inc., and Bank of 
America, N.A., formerly NationsBank, N.A., dated 
June 30, 2002.   10-K 001-10981 10.bs 6-30-2002  

10.bt Amendment #2 to Lease between Oakview Eagan 
Investors, LLC (a Delaware Limited Liability 
Company), as successor in interest to Lutheran 
Brotherhood, (a Minnesota Corporation), and SBS 
Technologies, Inc., Commercial Group, formerly 
known as Bit 3 Computer Corporation, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of SBS Technologies, Inc., dated 
May 22, 2002.   10-K 001-10981 10.bt 6-30-2002  
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10.bu Amendment #1 to Lease between AFC-5, LLC (a New 
Mexico Limited Liability Company) and SBS 
Technologies, Inc., dated February 1, 2001.   10-K 001-10981 10.bu 6-30-2002  

10.bv Amendment #2 to Lease between AFC-5, LLC (a New 
Mexico Limited Liability Company) and SBS 
Technologies, Inc., dated April 1, 2002.   10-K 001-10981 10.bv 6-30-2002  

10.bw Lease Agreement between Teal Properties, LLC and 
SBS Technologies, Inc. dated October 2, 2002. 10-Q 001-10981 10.bw 9-30-2002  

10.bx Employment agreement between Bruce E. Castle and 
SBS Technologies, Inc., effective July 31, 2002 10-Q 001-10981 10.bx 3-31-2003  

14 Code of Ethics.      X 

21 Subsidiaries of the registrant.      X 

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP.      X 

25 Power of attorney.      X 

31.1 Section 302 certification of Clarence W. Peckham, 
Chief Executive Officer     X 

31.2 Section 302 certification of James E. Dixon Jr., Chief 
Financial Officer      X 

32.1 Section 906 certification of Clarence W. Peckham, 
Chief Executive Officer      X 

32.2 Section 906 certification of James E. Dixon Jr., Chief 
Financial Officer     X 

* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
 
 



All references to “SBS” refer to SBS Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries. “SBS Technologies” is a trademark of SBS Technologies, Inc. registered in the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. All other trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners.

Diversity Statement
It is the policy of SBS to afford equal
opportunity for employment to all
individuals regardless of race, color, religion,
gender, national origin, age, disability,
veteran status, pregnancy, or sexual
orientation. The Board of Directors of SBS is
committed to this policy. We are strongly
bound to the policy by the fact that
adherence to the principles involved is the
only acceptable way of life.

Forward Looking
Statements
This document contains certain “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of
the federal securities laws. These statements
are based on management’s current
expectations and are subject to uncertainty
and changes in factual circumstances. The
forward-looking statements include
statements addressing future financial and
operating results of SBS. Actual results may
vary materially from the expectations
contained in the forward-looking
statements.

The following factors, among others, could
cause actual results to differ materially from
those described in the forward-looking
statements: changes in business conditions
and the economy in general, changes in
market demand , allocations of products by
suppliers and failure to obtain and retain
expected synergies from newly acquired
businesses of SBS generally.

More detailed information about these and
other factors is set forth in our attached
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Corporate Headquarters
2400 Louisiana Blvd. NE
AFC Building 5, Suite 600
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87110

Legal Counsel
Schuler, Messersmith, Daly & Lansdowne
Albuquerque, New Mexico

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLP
Albuquerque, New Mexico

Transfer Agent
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A.
Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
Post Office Box 64854
St. Paul, Minnesota 55154

Board of Directors
Christopher J. Amenson
Chairman of the Board

Clarence W. Peckham
Chief Executive Officer

Warren W. Andrews
Publisher and Editorial Director
RTC Magazine and COTS Journal

Lawrence A. Bennigson, PhD
Senior Vice President and
Senior Fellow, Harvard Business
School Interactive

Peter D. Fenner
Former President and CEO
Com21, Inc.

Louis C. Golm
Former President
Air Touch International

Richard Szafranski
Managing Director and Partner in Toffler
Associates®

Alan F. White
Senior Associate Dean
Sloan School of Management
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

Executive Officers
Clarence W. Peckham
Chief Executive Officer

Christopher J. Amenson
Executive Chairman

David H. Greig
President & Chief Operating Officer

James E. Dixon, Jr.
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer

Bruce E. Castle
Vice President, General Counsel
& Secretary

Form 10-K
The Company’s Annual Report to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on
Form 10-K (excluding exhibits) is contained
within this document and will be furnished
without charge to stockholders upon written
request to:

Jennifer D. Wade
Vice President, Investor Relations
SBS Technologies, Inc.
2400 Louisiana Blvd. NE, #5-600
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87110

Annual Meeting
Thursday, November 13, 2003
9:30 a.m. EST
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Faculty Club
50 Memorial Drive, 6th Floor
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02139

Trading and Dividend
Information
SBS Technologies, Inc.’s Common Stock
trades on the Nasdaq Stock Market® under
the symbol SBSE.

SBS has not paid any cash dividends on its
Common Stock. Management’s current
policy is to retain earnings, if any, for use in
SBS’ operations and for expansion of 
the business.

Common Stock 
Market Price

High Low
Fiscal 2003

First Quarter $12.30 $5.00
Second Quarter $12.00 $6.25
Third Quarter $9.90 $7.06
Fourth Quarter $9.94 $6.51

Fiscal 2002
First Quarter $20.05              $9.99
Second Quarter $17.50              $9.94
Third Quarter $16.00            $11.76
Fourth Quarter $15.30            $11.51

The closing price on September 2, 2003 
was $11.26.

As of September 2, 2003, there were
approximately 236 shareowner accounts of
record, as defined by Rule 12g5-1 of the
Exchange Act.



2400 Louisiana Blvd. NE, AFC Building 5, Suite 600

Albuquerque, New Mexico 87110

505.875.0600

www.sbs.com
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